
     CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE     
 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – November 14, 2022 Page 1 of 3 

Date: November 14, 2022 
Place: In-Person / Headquarters -17520 – 22nd Ave E., Tacoma, WA   

Virtual / (Visit www.centralpiercefire.org for instructions to join webinar) 
Time: 5:00 p.m. 

Citizens attending virtually that wish to address the Board during Public Comment 
use the “raise hand” feature on the webinar. Statements or comments for the record 
may be submitted to aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org by 4:00pm meeting day.  

1. Call to Order

A. Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of Agenda

A. Pg. 1: Agenda

4. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda)

5. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)

A. Excused Absences:
B. Pg. 4: Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of October 24, 2022
C. Pg. 7: Approval of:

Pg. 31: For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling 
$3,622,587.22 are included in Warrants noted above: 

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13595 to 13595 - $1,093.19 (Included in A/P Warrant 58079)
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13596 to 13623 - $101,273.73 (Included in A/P Warrant

58079)
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13624 to 13628 - $12,546.41 (Included in A/P Warrant

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57885 to 57885 totaling: $ (2,159.44) 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58059 to 58059 totaling: $ 1,093.19 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58059 to 58059 totaling: $ (1,093.19) 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58060 to 58060 totaling: $ 1,093.19 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58061 to 58077 totaling: $ 14,878.90 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58078 to 58085 totaling: $ 651,893.74 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58086 to 58094 totaling: $ 4,967,928.44 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107675 to 107678 totaling: $ 17,243.26 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107679 to 107687 totaling: $ 17,366.16 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58095 to 58095 totaling: $ 8,150.72 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58096 to 58115 totaling: $ 134,976.45 
GRAND TOTAL $ 5,811,371.42 

1

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/
mailto:aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org


     CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE     
 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – November 14, 2022 Page 2 of 3 

58079) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13629 to 13634 - $882,357.36 (Included in A/P Warrant

58087)
 Employee EFT Contributions/Deductions including all taxes & retirement numbered 56728 to

57061 - $2,522,970.85 (Included in A/P Warrant 58089)
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13635 to 13669 - $102,345.68 (Included in A/P Warrant

58098)

6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action)
A. Pg. 64: Board Policy 3.04 District Change Funds – Chief Morrow

B. Pg. 71: 2023 Budget – FD Robacker
i. Resolution No. 22-08 – Regular Levy
ii. Resolution No. 22-09 – EMS Levy
iii. Resolution No. 22-10 – Benefit Charge
iv. Resolution No. 22-11 – Budget Adoption & Levy Certification

7. New Business (First Reading)

8. Considerations and Requests
A. Pg. 133: 2022 Appendix A Revision – Creation of Community Health Worker –

HRD Washo
B. Pg. 135: 2022 Appendix A Revision – Creation of Help Desk Supervisor – HRD 

Washo
C. Pg. 137: Retro-active increase for 2022 for OPEIU and Non-Represented, Non-

Uniformed Personnel – HRD Washo
D. Pg. 141: 2023-2025 OPEIU Collective Bargaining Agreement – HRD Washo
E. Pg. 170: Request to Exceed 10 Retirees Under Resolution 13-01 – HRD Washo
F. Pg. 171: Retiree Medical Benefit – Annis-Levings – HRD Washo
G. Pg. 172: Revisions to 2023 Non-Represented Non-Uniformed Wage Increase –

HRD Washo
H. Pg. 173: Partial Lease Termination – Old Station 72 – Chief Morrow

9. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports

A. Pg. 178: Human Resources – HRD Washo

B. Pg. 180: Training – AC Benning

C. Pg. 181: Field Operations – AC Kent

D. Pg. 182: EMS – AC Bouchard

2



 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – November 14, 2022   Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 

E. Pg. 183: DC Operations – DC Stueve 
 

F. Pg. 184: Fire Chief’s Report – Chief Morrow 
 
10. Correspondence 

 

A. Pg. 186: Letter of Appreciation 
 

B. Pg. 187: Employee Recognition 
 
11. Commissioner Comments 
 
12. Adjournment 
 

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 3                                                                                                   October 24, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 24, 2022 
 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce 
Fire & Rescue to order at District Headquarters – 17520 22nd Ave E., Tacoma at 5:00 p.m.  
A remote attendance option was available to the public. Present were Chair Holm, 
Commissioners Stringfellow, Willis, Coleman, and Mitchell, Ex-Officio Door, Chief Morrow, 
Deputy Chief Stueve, Assistant Chiefs Berdan and McKenzie, FD Robacker, HRD Washo, 
and Executive Assistant Paramapoonya, recorder.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Commissioner Stringfellow led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve the 
agenda. MOTION CARRIED.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of October 10, 2022    
C. Approval of: 

 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to approve the 
Consent Agenda with warrants totaling $1,192,812.88. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 

A. Board Policy 2.17 Anti-Harassment Procedures 
 
Chief Morrow reviewed Board Policy 2.17 Anti-Harassment Procedures. There were no 
changes to be made after the First Reading. Commissioner Stringfellow moved and 
Commissioner Willis seconded to approve the Second Reading of Board Policy 2.17 Anti-
Harassment Procedures as presented by Staff. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
2023 BUDGET PRESENTATION  
Chief Morrow and FD Robacker reviewed the 2023 Management Strategies, and proposed 
budgets. FD Robacker discussed the 2023 budget summary and financial forecasts.  
 
 
 
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57989 to 58030 totaling: $ 673,175.07 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58031 to 58058 totaling: $ 519,637.81 
GRAND TOTAL $ 1,192,812.88 

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 3                                                                                                   October 24, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

PUBLIC HEARING ON 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET 
Chair Holm announced the public hearing on the 2023 Annual Budget and opened the 
floor for public comment. The proposed 2023 Annual Budget is $123,789,275.00, a 23% 
increase over 2022. The tax rates were set, with the Regular Tax Levy at the highest lawful 
and the EMS Levy at $0.50. Having received no comments, Chair Holm closed the public 
hearing. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ON 2023 FIRE BENEFIT CHARGE  
Chair Holm announced the public hearing on the 2023 Benefit Charge and opened the 
floor for public comment. The proposed amount of revenue for collection in 2023 is 
$30,376,500.00. This reflects a 17.3% increase over 2022. The cost factor will be adjusted 
accordingly. Having received no comments, Chair Holm closed the public hearing. 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 

A. 2023 Budget – FD Robacker  
i. Resolution No. 22-08 – Regular Levy  
ii. Resolution No. 22-09 – EMS Levy 
iii. Resolution No. 22-10 – Benefit Charge  
iv. Resolution No. 22-11 – Budget Adoption & Levy Certification 

 
FD Robacker discussed the rates within the standard resolutions required annually by 
Pierce County. 
 

B. Board Policy 3.04 District Change Funds – Chief Morrow 
 
Chief Morrow reviewed Board Policy 3.04 District Change Funds. All feedback and/or 
comments from the Board over the next two weeks will be included in revisions.  

 
 

CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  
No Considerations or Requests. 
 
 

STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

 
A. Finance/FD Robacker: FD Robacker reviewed the Finance Division Report, 

including the September checkbook.  
 

B. Prevention & Education/AC Berdan: AC Berdan provided the Board with a Division 
update. Thank you to Dominos for partnering with the P&E Division to increase 
community engagement regarding fire prevention.  
 

C. Health & Safety/AC McKenzie: Solo washers have been fully implemented.  
 

D. Fire Chief’s Report/Chief Morrow: Chief Morrow discussed his report. Cooperative 
explorations are taking place with surrounding agencies.  

5



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 3                                                                                                   October 24, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Employee Recognition: Chair Holm enjoyed reading about the great work of our 

personnel. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  
At 6:34 p.m., Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Stringfellow seconded to 
move into Executive Session for 10 minutes under RCW 42.30.110(1)(g). MOTION 
CARRIED. 
 
At 6:44 p.m., Chair Holm extended the meeting for five minutes. 
 
At 6:49 p.m., Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Mitchell seconded to 
return to Regular Session. MOTION CARRIED. 

 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Chair Holm: Looking forward to the Annual Commissioners Conference this week. I really 
appreciated the meeting with the Chair and Vice Chair of Graham Fire & Rescue.  
 
Vice Chair Stringfellow: Chair Holm and I were invited to sit down with the Chair and Vice 
Chair from Graham. It was very positive and beneficial.  
 
Commissioner Willis: Thank you to Chief Morrow and FD Robacker for putting the budget 
presentation together.  
 
Commissioner Coleman: I appreciate Chief Morrow and the Staff for everything.  
 
Commissioner Mitchell: I really appreciate all the hard work from Chief Morrow and FD 
Robacker.  
 
Ex-Officio Door: Ex-Officio Door provided an update on the ongoing budget sessions for 
the City of Puyallup.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Willis 
seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:13 p.m. 
 
 
 
            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 
      
ARIEL PARAMAPOONYA 
RECORDER  

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: November 14, 2022 
Item Title:  Board Policy 3.04 – District Change Funds 
Attachments:  Board Policy 3.04  
Submitted by: Chief Morrow 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
“I move to approve the second reading of Board Policy 3.04 – District Change Funds as 
presented by Staff.” 
 
 
SUMMARY:     
Board Policy 3.04 – District Change Funds was presented to the Board for its first reading. 
Since that time, Staff received input and made edits to the formatting and content of the policy. 
 
The Policy is presented for its second reading and approval. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
N/A 

64



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

BOARD POLICY 

NUMBER 3.04 

 

ORIGINATED: January 28, 2001 

APPROVED: November 8, 2022 

EFFECTIVE: November 14, 2022 

 

 

SUBJECT: DISTRICT CHANGE FUNDS POLICY 

 

PURPOSE: To establish a uniform policy for handling all District change funds. 

 

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY: 

 

 The Board of Fire Commissioners and Executive Staff Members have the authority and 

responsibility to ensure all District Members are familiar with, and operate, within the 

parameters of this Board Policy. 

 

POLICY: It is the policy of the District that Change Funds will only be established or dissolved by 

Resolution, and that Change Fund imprest amounts will only be increased or decreased 

by Resolution. 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

I. The Fire Chief or designee will assign a custodian who is to be responsible for the 

safekeeping and maintenance of the change fund necessary to conduct business. 

 

II. Change funds are to be kept in a secure location with limited access.  

 

III. Change funds are to be maintained at authorized levels, and will be reconciled at least 

monthly and replenished to the authorized balance. 

 

IV. Change funds are to be used for the sole purpose of making change for business 

transactions. These are public funds and may never be used for personal cash advances, 

loans, or expenditures. 

 

V. It is the responsibility of the custodian to ensure that the change fund contains the 

appropriate breakdown of currency and coins.  

 

VI. Change funds are subject to random audits.  

 

65



VII. The Finance Director or designee will, at a minimum, count change funds on an annual 

basis.  

 

VIII. If it is deemed necessary to change the custodian of the change fund, a count of the 

change fund will take place before the fund is transferred to the new custodian.  It is the 

responsibility of the retiring custodian to ensure that the change fund is at the 

authorized imprest amount before the transfer takes place.  

 

IX. Any discrepancy in the change fund is the sole responsibility of the custodian unless 

there are extenuating circumstances i.e. the station has been broken into and a police 

report has been filed.  What constitutes extenuating circumstances is at the discretion 

of the Fire Chief and the Finance Director.  

 

X. If it is deemed that the change fund is no longer necessary, the change fund will be 

returned and the fund dissolved by resolution.  

 

XI. The Custodian of the change fund will sign a copy of these procedures acknowledging 

receipt and willingness to comply with these procedures.  The signed copy will be kept 

on file in the Finance Director’s office. 

  

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

MATT HOLM 

BOARD CHAIR 

66



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

STANDARD OPERATING GUIDELINEBOARD POLICY 

NUMBER 3.04 

 

ORIGINATED AND APPROVED: January 28, 2001 

REVIEWEDAPPROVED: October 12, 2022 

LAST REVIEWEFFECTIVE: 

 

 

SUBJECT: DISTRICT CHANGE FUNDS POLICY 

 

PURPOSE: To establish a uniform policy for handling all District change funds. 

 

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY: 

 

 The Board of Fire Commissioners and Executive Staff Members have the authority and 

responsibility to ensure all District Members are familiar with, and operate, within the 

parameters of this Board Policy. 

 

POLICY: It is the policy of the District that Change Funds will only be established or dissolved by 

Resolution, and that Change Fund imprest amounts will only be increased or decreased 

by Resolution. 

 

PROCEDURE: XXX 

I. Change funds will only be established or dissolved by resolution.  

 

II. Change fund imprest amounts will only be increased or decreased by resolution.  

 

I. The Fire Chief or designee will assign a custodian who is to be responsible for the 

safekeeping and maintenance of the change fund necessary to conduct business. 

 

III.II. Change funds are to be kept in a secure location with limited access.  

 

IV.III. Change funds are to be maintained at authorized levels at all times, and will be 

reconciled at least monthly and replenished to the authorized balance. 

 

V. Change funds are to be used for the sole purpose of making change for business 

transactions. These are public funds and may never be used for personal cash advances, 

loans, or expenditures. 

IV.  

VI.I. The Fire Chief or designee will assign a custodian who is to be responsible for the 

safekeeping and maintenance of the change fund necessary to conduct business. 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: I, II, III, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Right

+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

67



VII.V. It is the responsibility of the custodian to ensure that the change fund contains the 

appropriate breakdown of currency and coins.  

 

VIII.VI. Change funds are subject to random audits.  

 

IX.VII. The Chief Financial Officer Finance Director or designee will, at a minimum, count 

change funds on an annual basis.  

 

X.VIII. If it is deemed necessary to change the custodian of the change fund, a count of the 

change fund will take place before the fund is transferred to the new custodian.  It is the 

responsibility of the retiring custodian to ensure that the change fund is at the 

authorized imprest amount before the transfer takes place.  

 

XI.IX. Any discrepancy in the change fund is the sole responsibility of the custodian unless 

there is are extenuating circumstances i.e. the station has been broken into and a police 

report has been filed.  What constitutes extenuating circumstances is at the discretion 

of the Fire Chief and the Chief Financial OfficerFinance Director.  

 

XII.X. If it is deemed that the change fund is no longer necessary, the change fund will be 

returned and the fund dissolved by resolution.  

 

XIII.XI. The Custodian of the change fund will sign a copy of these procedures acknowledging 

receipt and willingness to comply with these procedures.  The signed copy will be kept 

on file in the Chief Financial Officer’s Finance Director’s office. 

  

PROCEDURE: XXX 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

MATT HOLM 

BOARD CHAIR 

68



 
 

 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 1 of 2 
Policy 304 District Change Funds  Approved by  

______________ 11/8/2022  
                   Fire Chief 

 

(OLD VERSION) 

DISTRICT CHANGE FUNDS POLICY 
 
NUMBER .....  ..........  ......... 304 
CATEGORY  ..........  ......... Administration 
EFFECTIVE .  ..........  .........  DATE: 01/28/01 
UPDATED………………….05/01/2008 
AUTHOR .....  ..........  .........  Vicky Carlsen, CFO 
 
REFERENCE 
Authorized by the Board of Commissioners by Resolution No. 01-02 
 
SCOPE 
Administrative Personnel 
 
PURPOSE 
To establish a uniform policy for handling all District change funds. 
 
POLICY 
Change funds will only be established or dissolved by resolution.   
 
Change fund imprest amounts will only be increased or decreased by resolution.   
 
Change funds are to be kept in a secure location with limited access. 
 
Change funds are to be maintained at authorized levels at all times. 
 
Change funds are to be used for the sole purpose of making change for business transactions.   
 
Fire Chief or designee will assign a custodian who is to be responsible for the safekeeping and 
maintenance of the change fund necessary to conduct business. 
 
It is the responsibility of the custodian to ensure that the change fund contains the appropriate 
breakdown of currency and coins. 
 
Change funds are subject to random audits. 
 
The Chief Financial Officer or designee will, at a minimum, count change funds on an annual 
basis. 
 
If it is deemed necessary to change the custodian of the change fund, a count of the change 
fund will take place before the fund is transferred to the new custodian.  It is the responsibility 
of the retiring custodian to ensure that the change fund is at the authorized imprest amount 
before the transfer takes place. 
 
Any discrepancy in the change fund is the sole responsibility of the custodian unless there is 
extenuating circumstances i.e. the station has been broken into and a police report has been 
filed.  What constitutes extenuating circumstances is at the discretion of the Fire Chief and the 

69



 
 

 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 2 of 2 
Policy 304 District Change Funds  Approved by  

______________ 11/8/2022  
                   Fire Chief 

Chief Financial Officer. 
 
If it is deemed that the change fund is no longer necessary the change fund will be returned 
and the fund dissolved by resolution. 
 
The Custodian of the change fund will sign a copy of these procedures acknowledging receipt 
and willingness to comply with these procedures.  The signed copy will be kept on file in the 
Chief Financial Officer’s office. 
 
PROCEDURE 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
N/A 

70



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Date:  November 14, 2022 

Item Title:  2023 Budget and Property Tax Resolutions 

Attachments:  Resolutions: 22‐08, 22‐09, 22‐10, & 22‐11, PRELIM 2023 BUDGET BOOK, Levy Compare 

Submitted by:  Tanya Robacker 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

First reading
 

Second reading
 

Motion to approve
 

For information only
 

Other:
  Click here to enter text. 

BOARD MOTIONS (Four Motions Please): 

 

1. Resolution 22‐08 establishing the regular levy at a 1% increase over last year’s levy.   

 

2. Resolution 22‐09 re‐establishing the EMS levy at the statutory maximum of 50 cents per 

thousand.  

 

3. Resolution 22‐10 setting the FBC at $30,376,500 gross collections for 2023. 

 

4. Resolution 22‐11 Adopting the 2023 District Budget at $123,789,275, appropriating budgets at 

the fund level and establishing a levy certification for Pierce County. 

 

SUMMARY:    Second Reading, 2023 Levy, FBC and Budget Adoption: 

1. 22‐08 Regular Levy 101% ‐ establishing the regular levy at a 1% increase over last year’s levy.  

2023 collection will be set at $29,860,088.85. 

2. 22‐09 EMS Levy 50¢ ‐ re‐establishing the EMS levy at the statutory maximum of 50 cents per 

thousand. 2023 collection will be set at $20,976,272.50.  

3. 22‐10 FBC ‐ setting the FBC at $30,376,500 gross collections for 2023. 

4. 22‐11 2023 Budget Adoption & Levy Certification ‐ Adopting the 2023 District Budget at 

$123,789,275, appropriating budgets at the fund level and establishing a levy certification for 

Pierce County. 

71



    

 
 

Preliminary	Budget	
Fiscal	Year	2023	

	
	
	
	
	

	

Mission	of	CPFR:	“Effectively	respond,	continuously	improve,	compassionately	serve”	

72



 

2 
    

73



 CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 

 
 

3 
 

2023 BUDGET SUMMARY 

Summary by Program: 
 

 

Summary by Fund: 
 

 
 
  

Div
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2021

One-Times
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
Transfers 1,223,000 5,069,082 505,540 5,109,958 40,876 0.8%
100 Commissioners 47,015 307,086 0 314,259 7,173 2.3%
200 Administration 1,486,188 2,201,429 560,000 2,326,261 124,832 5.7%
201 Finance 748,465 1,493,971 465,680 1,160,595 (333,376) -22.3%
203 Human Resources 1,345,207 1,578,056 86,780 1,992,722 414,666 26.3%
204 Logistics 2,007,991 2,142,493 36,582 3,023,390 880,897 41.1%
205 Central Stores 213,727 229,043 0 299,613 70,570 30.8%
210 IS 1,643,131 2,147,639 87,000 2,748,343 600,704 28.0%
215 IS Outside Districts 402,008 667,412 0 624,860 (42,552) -6.4%
230 Training 1,212,918 1,483,455 54,200 1,745,395 261,940 17.7%
235 Academy 458,924 421,007 0 661,582 240,575 57.1%
240 Communications 1,452,380 1,507,380 0 1,517,380 10,000 0.7%
250 Health & Safety 667,653 986,592 186,805 2,194,926 1,208,334 122.5%
300 Operations & EMS 50,326,474 51,221,909 67,938 59,643,473 8,421,564 16.4%
310 Volunteers/Residents 6,420 33,000 0 23,400 (9,600) -29.1%
320 Haz Mat 153,652 221,766 0 878,362 656,596 296.1%
330 Spec Ops 143,930 271,432 27,855 2,113,911 1,842,479 678.8%
400 Prevention & Education 1,371,184 1,487,861 28,000 2,536,533 1,048,672 70.5%
410 K9 1,992 4,370 0 4,370 0 0.0%
650 Maint. Shop 1,804,393 1,987,724 60,000 2,204,847 217,123 10.9%
015 ERF 8,839,712 4,989,362 0 4,631,213 (358,149) -7.2%
050 Facilities Maint 270,994 1,700,000 0 1,322,100 (377,900) -22.2%
102F GEMT 10,570,493 7,587,535 894,460 13,445,236 5,857,701 77.2%
201F Debt Fund 2,436,513 2,435,163 0 2,433,213 (1,950) -0.1%
301 Capital 68,199 8,380,000 0 10,783,333 2,403,333 28.7%
630 HRA Flex 15,032 50,000 0 50,000 0 0.0%

Grand Total  88,917,595      100,604,767         3,060,840         123,789,275  23,184,508 23.0%

Div
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2021

One-Times
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
General Fund & EMS (001 &101) 66,716,652 75,462,707 2,166,380 91,124,180 15,661,473 20.8%
015 ERF 8,839,712 4,989,362 0 4,631,213 (358,149) -7.2%
050 Facilities Maint 270,994 1,700,000 0 1,322,100 (377,900) -22.2%
102F GEMT 10,570,493 7,587,535 894,460 13,445,236 5,857,701 77.2%
201F Debt Fund 2,436,513 2,435,163 0 2,433,213 (1,950) -0.1%
301 Capital 68,199 8,380,000 0 10,783,333 2,403,333 28.7%
630 HRA Flex 15,032 50,000 0 50,000 0 0.0%

Grand Total  88,917,595      100,604,767         3,060,840         123,789,275  23,184,508 23.0%

74



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

4 
    

PROGRAM BUDGETS 

100 Commissioners 
 
The Board of Fire Commissioners is the oversight body of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue. The Board has 
the responsibility to manage and conduct the business affairs of the fire district, employ and supervise the 
Fire Chief, execute contracts, employ necessary services, and adopt reasonable rules to govern the 
district. The Board is comprised of five Fire Commissioners elected to six-year terms representing the 
citizens of the District in at-large positions, and an Ex-Officio non-voting member, appointed by the City of 
Puyallup. 
  
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

% 
Change 

Commissioners 5.00 5.00 0.00 0.0% 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
100 Commissioners

51107 Commissioner Time 30,208 32,026 38,400 6,374 19.9%
52001 FICA/Medicare 2,311 2,455 3,129 674 27.5%
52005 L & I 74 75 200 125 166.7%
52008 EAP 83 300 300 0 0.0%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 44 100 100 0 0.0%
53131 Clothing 269 500 500 0 0.0%
54301 Per Diem 405 1,850 1,850 0 0.0%
54311 Lodging 3,404 5,500 5,500 0 0.0%
54331 Mileage 370 2,700 2,700 0 0.0%
54341 Airfare 347 0 0 0 0.0%
54901 Dues/Membership Fees 7,080 7,300 7,300 0 0.0%
54921 Registration 2,420 4,280 4,280 0 0.0%
54981 Commissioner's Contingency 0 250,000 250,000 0 0.0%

100 Commissioners Total 47,015 307,086 314,259 7,173 2.3%

75



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

5 
    

200 Administration 
 
The Administration Division consists of the Fire Chief, Deputy Chief of Operations, Deputy Chief of 
Administration, a Community and Government Relations Officer, an Operations Analyst, an Executive 
Assistant, and administrative support personnel. In support of the District's mission, this division is 
dedicated to developing, implementing, and providing the highest quality of leadership, direction, and 
support to all divisions within Central Pierce Fire & Rescue. 
 
Fire Chief 
The Fire Chief is appointed by and reports directly to the Board of Fire Commissioners and is ultimately 
responsible for all fire district operations and business. This position is very involved in developing the 
annual budget and responsible for long range planning. The Human Resources Director and Finance 
Director report directly to the Fire Chief. The Chief generally fills the role of lead negotiator when 
bargaining union contracts and individual employment agreements. Additionally, the Chief is responsible 
for building partnerships with local public safety agencies as well as building relationships with our 
communities to better understand and serve their needs. Most importantly, the Chief provides leadership 
and direction for the organization. 
 
Deputy Chief of Operations 
The Deputy Chief of Operations is responsible for leading, managing, and supervising the Assistant Chief 
of Field Operations, Assistant Chief of EMS, Assistant Chief of Training, Operations Analyst, and the 
operational functions of the department. This position works closely with the Fire Chief and is involved in 
all the duties listed under the Fire Chief above. The Deputy Chief of Operations may act as Chief of the 
Department in the absence of the Fire Chief. 
 
Deputy Chief of Administration 
The Deputy Chief of Administration is responsible for leading, managing, and supervising the Assistant 
Chief of Logistics, Assistant Chief of Health & Safety, Assistant Chief of Prevention and Education, and 
the Information Technology Director. This position works closely with the Fire Chief and is involved in all 
the duties listed under the Fire Chief above. The Deputy Chief of Administration may act as Chief of the 
Department in the absence of the Fire Chief. The position is also responsible for the management of 
District capital projects, records and grants. 
 
Executive Assistant 
The Executive Assistant is responsible for scheduling and managing the Chief’s activities on a day-to-day 
basis. This position provides administrative support to the Fire Chief and Deputy Chiefs. This position 
oversees the Benefit Charge program and serves as recorder for Board of Commissioner meetings. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

% 
Change 

Fire Chief 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Deputy Chief 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.0% 
Community & Gov’t Relations* 0.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 
Operations Analyst* 0.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 
Executive Assistant 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Support Specialist** 2.00 1.00 -1.00 -50.0% 
Total: 6.00 7.00 1.00 16.7% 

*Moved here from Other Divisions 
**1 Moved to Ops  

76



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

6 
    

2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
200 Administration

51101 Regular Time 635,486 768,459 1,091,410 322,951 42.0%
51122 Holiday 8,519 0 0 0 0.0%
51123 Sick Leave 26,589 0 0 0 0.0%
51124 Vacation 90,060 0 0 0 0.0%
51127 Bereavement Leave 4,308 0 0 0 0.0%
51141 Holiday Buy-Back 31,289 32,000 35,000 3,000 9.4%
51142 Sick Leave Buy-Back 2,860 4,500 5,000 500 11.1%
51159 Duty Chief Pay 0 0 8,244 8,244 100.0%
51170 Longevity Pay 74,578 78,425 83,291 4,866 6.2%
51199 Salary Budget Entry 0 104,040 0 (104,040) -100.0%
51201 Overtime 23,368 290,000 40,000 (250,000) -86.2%
52001 FICA/Medicare 13,329 12,550 18,526 5,976 47.6%
52002 Retirement 56,576 57,706 80,703 22,997 39.9%
52003 Medical/Dental 134,685 131,244 181,406 50,162 38.2%
52005 L & I 15,876 13,270 26,056 12,786 96.4%
52007 Deferred Compensation 19,550 18,600 29,700 11,100 59.7%
52015 Uniform Allowance 600 0 0 0 0.0%
52017 HRA 17,949 21,440 24,424 2,984 13.9%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 924 1,000 2,000 1,000 100.0%
53101 Office Supplies 1,157 3,500 3,500 0 0.0%
53141 Operating Supplies 642 1,900 1,900 0 0.0%
53171 Food 86 1,500 1,500 0 0.0%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 127 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
54111 Advertising 1,088 5,500 5,500 0 0.0%
54151 Legal Fees 89,730 40,000 80,000 40,000 100.0%
54161 Election Fees 0 120,000 120,000 0 0.0%
54191 Other Professional Services 4,871 19,000 19,000 0 0.0%
54221 Postage 1,944 4,000 4,000 0 0.0%
54301 Per Diem 154 4,375 2,275 (2,100) -48.0%
54311 Lodging 321 14,500 7,000 (7,500) -51.7%
54331 Mileage 168 600 600 0 0.0%
54341 Airfare (261) 2,100 0 (2,100) -100.0%
54611 Insurance 70,005 72,000 89,256 17,256 24.0%
54813 Maintenance Agreements 5,290 12,000 12,000 0 0.0%
54901 Dues/Membership Fees 5,745 6,000 9,000 3,000 50.0%
54902 Subscriptions 742 750 1,200 450 60.0%
54911 Contractual Services 45,422 231,500 216,500 (15,000) -6.5%
54912 Fees/Permits 0 0 250 250 100.0%
54914 Penalties and Late Fees 380 0 0 0 0.0%
54915 Judgements and Settlements 3,423 0 0 0 0.0%
54921 Registration 1,025 7,870 5,920 (1,950) -24.8%
54925 College Tuition 73,296 75,000 75,000 0 0.0%
54941 Printing & Binding 68 600 600 0 0.0%
54961 B & O Tax 24,219 19,500 19,500 0 0.0%
54981 Commissioner's Contingency 0 25,000 25,000 0 0.0%

200 Administration Total 1,486,188 2,201,429 2,326,261 124,832 5.7%

77



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

7 
    

201 Finance 
 
The Finance Division provides financial accounting, budgeting, payroll, and reporting services as well as 
communicating the financial position of the District to both internal users and the constituents of Central 
Pierce Fire & Rescue. It is also the responsibility of the Finance Division to ensure that sound financial 
policies and procedures are in place and are being followed as well as ensuring all financial data is 
reported in a timely and accurate manner. 
 
Finance works closely with other divisions to provide support and to ensure legal, fiscal, and contract 
compliance with all applicable federal and state laws. Finance is also responsible for the preparation of 
the annual budget and financial statement reporting. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

% 
Change 

Director 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Controller* 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Purchasing Analyst 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Payroll Coordinator* 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
Payroll Analyst* 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Support Specialist 3.00 2.00 -1.00 -33.3% 
Total: 7.00 7.00 0.00 0.0% 

*Senior Accountant and Payroll Analyst reclassed 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
201 Finance

51101 Regular Time 351,962 552,782 711,340 158,558 28.7%
51111 Admin Acting Pay 1,927 4,400 0 (4,400) -100.0%
51121 Comp Time Off 2,214 0 0 0 0.0%
51122 Holiday 12,646 0 0 0 0.0%
51123 Sick Leave 33,056 0 0 0 0.0%
51124 Vacation 49,015 0 0 0 0.0%
51141 Holiday Buy-Back 8,573 12,000 13,000 1,000 8.3%
51142 Sick Leave Buy-Back 618 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
51149 Comp Time Payout 0 200 0 (200) -100.0%
51170 Longevity Pay 18,441 29,602 26,982 (2,620) -8.9%
51199 Salary Budget Entry 0 143,880 0 (143,880) -100.0%
51201 Overtime 2,394 14,560 20,000 5,440 37.4%
52001 FICA/Medicare 7,190 8,706 11,682 2,976 34.2%
52002 Retirement 54,845 61,540 80,560 19,020 30.9%
52003 Medical/Dental 78,423 98,568 113,266 14,698 14.9%
52005 L & I 1,352 1,568 2,400 832 53.1%
52007 Deferred Compensation 14,974 18,000 25,200 7,200 40.0%
52015 Uniform Allowance 1,200 0 0 0 0.0%
52017 HRA 22,400 27,480 32,080 4,600 16.7%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 647 1,000 1,100 100 10.0%
53101 Office Supplies 4 2,200 2,200 0 0.0%
53102 Books/Manuals 65 125 125 0 0.0%
53141 Operating Supplies 93 150 450 300 200.0%

78



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

8 
    

 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
201 Finance

53501 Small Tools & Equipment 132 500 1,000 500 100.0%
54101 Accounting/Auditing 31,360 43,330 40,830 (2,500) -5.8%
54111 Advertising 0 100 100 0 0.0%
54191 Other Professional Services 42,207 2,950 57,950 55,000 1864.4%
54301 Per Diem 30 450 450 0 0.0%
54311 Lodging 0 5,400 5,400 0 0.0%
54331 Mileage 93 400 400 0 0.0%
54341 Airfare 0 2,950 2,950 0 0.0%
54901 Dues/Membership Fees 1,107 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
54902 Subscriptions 0 200 200 0 0.0%
54911 Contractual Services 10,319 2,500 2,500 0 0.0%
54914 Penalties and Late Fees 120 0 0 0 0.0%
54921 Registration 790 5,530 5,530 0 0.0%
54922 Certifications 0 200 200 0 0.0%
54941 Printing & Binding 268 700 700 0 0.0%
56411 Equipment - Computer/Software 0 450,000 0 (450,000) -100.0%

201 Finance Total 748,465 1,493,971 1,160,595 (333,376) -22.3%

79



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

9 
    

203 Human Resources 
 
The Human Resources (HR) Division of the District encompasses several programs and services designed 
to support the District and its employees in the mission to serve and protect the community. Human 
Resources personnel oversee salary administration, employee benefits, recruitment, hiring, promotions, 
performance evaluations, job analysis, succession planning, disciplinary proceedings, personnel policies, 
FMLA and other federal and state mandates, safety and worker’s compensation matters. HR personnel 
work to ensure District compliance with various rules and regulations to limit our risk and liability. HR 
participates on negotiating teams with the Fire Chief and the Deputy Chief.    
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

% 
Change 

Director 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Senior HR Analyst* 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
HR Analyst* 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.0% 
Total: 3.00 4.00 1.00 33.3% 

*Senior Reclassed from Analyst & Added an Analyst 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
203 Human Resources

51101 Regular Time 265,472 261,801 468,330 206,529 78.9%
51103 Seminar/School 1,139 0 0 0 0.0%
51111 Admin Acting Pay 0 3,000 4,000 1,000 33.3%
51121 Comp Time Off 481 0 0 0 0.0%
51122 Holiday 9,792 0 0 0 0.0%
51123 Sick Leave 5,577 0 0 0 0.0%
51124 Vacation 33,665 0 0 0 0.0%
51141 Holiday Buy-Back 5,868 9,000 9,500 500 5.6%
51142 Sick Leave Buy-Back 0 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
51146 Holiday Payout 857 0 0 0 0.0%
51148 Vacation Payout 21,435 0 0 0 0.0%
51149 Comp Time Payout 196 0 0 0 0.0%
51170 Longevity Pay 31,680 29,013 33,952 4,939 17.0%
51199 Salary Budget Entry 0 108,000 108,000 0 0.0%
51201 Overtime 22,385 9,280 19,000 9,720 104.7%
52001 FICA/Medicare 5,920 4,304 7,905 3,601 83.7%
52002 Retirement 42,375 30,424 54,412 23,988 78.8%
52003 Medical/Dental 55,069 43,968 93,523 49,555 112.7%
52005 L & I 849 523 1,300 777 148.6%
52006 Unemployment 3,566 7,000 20,000 13,000 185.7%
52007 Deferred Compensation 8,901 6,000 14,400 8,400 140.0%
52009 LEOFF I Retirees - Medical 73,932 133,000 100,000 (33,000) -24.8%
52015 Uniform Allowance 300 0 0 0 0.0%
52016 LEOFF II Retirees-Medical 544,424 738,274 825,000 86,726 11.7%
52017 HRA 12,600 8,240 17,200 8,960 108.7%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 535 800 900 100 12.5%
53101 Office Supplies 543 1,500 1,500 0 0.0%
53102 Books/Manuals 124 3,000 500 (2,500) -83.3%
53132 Employee Recognition Supplies 5,052 5,625 15,625 10,000 177.8%
53141 Operating Supplies 1,131 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
53171 Food 1,673 2,500 3,200 700 28.0%

80



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

10 
    

203 Human Resources (Cont’d) 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
203 Human Resources

53501 Small Tools & Equipment 2,607 5,000 5,000 0 0.0%
54111 Advertising 6,571 500 5,000 4,500 900.0%
54151 Legal Fees 55,929 70,000 55,000 (15,000) -21.4%
54171 Medical Exams 3,282 3,650 6,125 2,475 67.8%
54191 Other Professional Services 116,751 82,875 109,625 26,750 32.3%
54301 Per Diem 0 350 650 300 85.7%
54311 Lodging 0 1,500 2,800 1,300 86.7%
54331 Mileage 0 500 500 0 0.0%
54341 Airfare 419 0 0 0 0.0%
54901 Dues/Membership Fees 1,367 1,694 2,000 306 18.1%
54902 Subscriptions 0 500 500 0 0.0%
54911 Contractual Services 1,086 1,375 1,875 500 36.4%
54921 Registration 1,485 2,860 3,400 540 18.9%
54922 Certifications 169 0 0 0 0.0%

203 Human Resources Total 1,345,207 1,578,056 1,992,722 414,666 26.3%

81



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

11 
    

204 Logistics (Includes Stations, Facilities, and Towers: 600-712) 
 
Logistics 
The Logistics Division provides management services including planning, supervising, and evaluating 
facility needs, vehicle maintenance and replacement, communications infrastructure, and the District’s 
centralized purchasing operation. This Assistant Chief, with the support of the Captain, also coordinates 
the installation and maintenance of all emergency communication equipment in vehicles as well as those 
used by front-line personnel.  
 
Another function of Logistics is the purchasing and maintenance of equipment and vehicles owned and 
operated by the District. This includes emergency apparatus, automobiles, suppression, and 
communication equipment. Equipment and vehicles are purchased through a variety of methods including 
utilization of the Washington State Purchasing Cooperative contracts, inter-local governmental bids, as 
well as advertising and bidding for equipment as a sole purchaser. 
 
Facilities 
The Facilities Division is responsible for the facilities owned by Central Pierce Fire & Rescue; specifically, 
nine District fire stations, three leased stations owned by the City of Puyallup, one technology office, two 
training towers, one training center, and one vehicle maintenance shop. Facilities has one Facilities 
Maintenance Technician and Landscape Technician to support building repair, maintenance, and 
landscape needs for all of these facilities. 
 
Station Captains are primarily responsible for overseeing and requesting major maintenance projects for 
their respective stations. Should the services of a contractor be required to make the necessary repairs, 
modifications or enhancements, the Assistant Chief of Logistics will oversee the development of 
specifications, the advertisement of bids and eventual contract award or hire a contractor directly if the 
project is small. The Assistant Chief of Logistics may assist, as required, in the acquisition of land and/or 
facilities. 
 
This Division also accounts for all costs specifically associated with the stations themselves. This includes 
all building maintenance and utilities. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

% 
Change 

Assistant Chief 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Captain – Days 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Facilities Maintenance Lead* 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
Facilities Maintenance Tech* 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.0% 
Grounds Maintenance Tech 1.00 2.00 1.00 100% 
Hydrant Workers (move frm Ops) 0.00 2.00 2.00 100% 
Total: 5.00 9.00 4.00 80.0% 

*Reclassed one Fac Tech to Lead, and added one additional Fac Tech 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
204 Logistics

51101 Regular Time 354,453 459,152 600,810 141,658 30.9%
51102 Part Time 0 0 22,060 22,060 100.0%
51121 Comp Time Off 919 0 0 0 0.0%
51122 Holiday 12,512 0 0 0 0.0%

82



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

12 
    

204 Logistics (Continued) 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
204 Logistics

51123 Sick Leave 10,936 0 0 0 0.0%
51124 Vacation 61,922 0 0 0 0.0%
51127 Bereavement Leave 551 0 0 0 0.0%
51141 Holiday Buy-Back 12,490 13,000 15,000 2,000 15.4%
51142 Sick Leave Buy-Back 5,428 8,500 8,500 0 0.0%
51149 Comp Time Payout 0 3,500 0 (3,500) -100.0%
51159 Duty Chief Pay 0 0 2,850 2,850 100.0%
51170 Longevity Pay 21,272 21,936 28,875 6,939 31.6%
51199 Salary Budget Entry 0 130,000 276,873 146,873 113.0%
51201 Overtime 7,080 3,600 3,600 0 0.0%
52001 FICA/Medicare 7,323 7,204 11,846 4,642 64.4%
52002 Retirement 34,980 36,269 50,397 14,128 39.0%
52003 Medical/Dental 123,903 124,812 168,547 43,735 35.0%
52005 L & I 16,587 14,176 28,230 14,054 99.1%
52007 Deferred Compensation 15,216 15,456 21,000 5,544 35.9%
52011 Uniforms 49,157 110,500 153,000 42,500 38.5%
52012 Tool Allowance 800 800 1,200 400 50.0%
52013 Disability/Pension 130 240 360 120 50.0%
52014 Quartermaster 44,352 30,000 30,000 0 0.0%
52017 HRA 8,832 9,072 11,040 1,968 21.7%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 639 100 1,000 900 900.0%
53101 Office Supplies 4,452 10,755 11,255 500 4.6%
53102 Books/Manuals 82 0 200 200 100.0%
53121 Cleaning Supplies 16,903 17,460 18,360 900 5.2%
53141 Operating Supplies 54,395 66,630 68,630 2,000 3.0%
53142 Equipment Repair Parts 9,275 15,500 17,820 2,320 15.0%
53145 Software 1,118 0 0 0 0.0%
53146 Building Repair Parts 11,326 20,565 22,621 2,056 10.0%
53171 Food 562 500 500 0 0.0%
53201 Fuel 378,045 380,000 760,000 380,000 100.0%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 56,738 114,960 109,335 (5,625) -4.9%
53504 Hose Replacement 35,550 31,500 36,225 4,725 15.0%
54191 Other Professional Services 70,537 28,451 28,701 250 0.9%
54221 Postage 1,345 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
54301 Per Diem 0 200 200 0 0.0%
54311 Lodging 733 684 684 0 0.0%
54331 Mileage 536 300 300 0 0.0%
54502 Other Operating Rental 1,950 2,438 2,438 0 0.0%
54701 Gas 25,009 33,670 34,670 1,000 3.0%
54705 Propane 17,071 12,500 12,500 0 0.0%
54711 Water 35,894 40,180 41,580 1,400 3.5%
54712 Surface Water Management 28,169 65,700 66,200 500 0.8%
54721 Sewer 19,126 28,841 32,041 3,200 11.1%
54731 Electricity 169,550 180,175 191,175 11,000 6.1%
54741 Garbage 37,112 37,700 38,300 600 1.6%
54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 46,004 40,000 40,000 0 0.0%
54811 Equipment Repair/Maintenance 11,837 5,500 5,500 0 0.0%
54813 Maintenance Agreements 20,726 10,000 10,000 0 0.0%
54815 SCBA Air Compressor Repair 2,793 7,000 7,000 0 0.0%
54911 Contractual Services 29,802 500 29,500 29,000 5800.0%

83



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

13 
    

204 Logistics (Continued) 
 

 
 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
204 Logistics

54912 Fees/Permits 133 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
54914 Penalties and Late Fees 11 0 0 0 0.0%
54921 Registration 300 467 467 0 0.0%
56411 Equipment - Computer/Software 48,960 0 0 0 0.0%
56431 Equipment - Miscellaneous 82,465 0 0 0 0.0%

204 Logistics Total 2,007,991 2,142,493 3,023,390 880,897 41.1%

84



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

14 
    

205 Central Stores  
 
Central Stores 
The responsibilities of the Central Stores Division are to, within the parameters of the District’s purchasing 
policy, purchase, inventory, and deliver supplies to all Central Pierce stations and administrative offices 
when requested. This Division is also responsible to ensure appropriate stock levels are available for 
emergency responders to respond quickly and efficiently to citizens. 
 
This Division also maintains an inspection and maintenance program for personal protective equipment 
as well as fitting personnel with bunker gear, uniforms, and equipment as required. 
 
Runners (Courier Service) 
The Runner Program provides Central Pierce Fire & Rescue with a courier service. Employees for this 
program (known as “Runners”) include one full time runner, as well as civilians who pick up and deliver 
mail, equipment, supplies, etc. and perform day-to-day errands. The Runners also pick up backboards 
and other miscellaneous equipment left at hospitals and return the items to other area fire districts that 
participate in the runner program. The Purchasing Manager is responsible for scheduling the Runners 
daily. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

% 
Change 

Purchasing Manager 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Main Runner 1.00 2.00 1.00 100% 
Runner Part-Time 2.00 0.00 (2.00) (100)% 
Total: 4.00 3.00 (1.00) (25.0)% 

 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
 
 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
205 Central Stores

51101 Regular Time 116,825 132,058 140,270 8,212 6.2%
51102 Part Time 12,425 7,608 0 (7,608) -100.0%
51111 Admin Acting Pay 4,860 2,249 2,249 0 0.0%
51122 Holiday 4,094 0 0 0 0.0%
51123 Sick Leave 7,847 0 0 0 0.0%
51124 Vacation 7,322 0 0 0 0.0%
51141 Holiday Buy-Back 2,463 3,000 3,500 500 16.7%
51142 Sick Leave Buy-Back 0 1,000 1,100 100 10.0%
51170 Longevity Pay 6,828 7,033 9,312 2,279 32.4%
51199 Salary Budget Entry 0 0 64,000 64,000 100.0%
51201 Overtime 0 511 511 0 0.0%
52001 FICA/Medicare 3,216 2,688 2,399 (289) -10.8%
52002 Retirement 16,217 14,872 16,517 1,645 11.1%
52003 Medical/Dental 2,754 11,024 10,880 (144) -1.3%
52005 L & I 7,747 9,285 10,000 715 7.7%
52007 Deferred Compensation 6,000 6,000 7,200 1,200 20.0%
52017 HRA 8,000 8,240 8,000 (240) -2.9%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 239 100 300 200 200.0%
53101 Office Supplies 247 0 0 0 0.0%
53121 Cleaning Supplies 28 0 0 0 0.0%

85



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

15 
    

205 Central Stores (Cont’d) 
 

 
 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
205 Central Stores

53131 Clothing 0 2,400 2,400 0 0.0%
53141 Operating Supplies 822 0 0 0 0.0%
53198 Inventory 2,134 20,000 20,000 0 0.0%
53409 Inventory Loss 3,161 0 0 0 0.0%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 161 775 775 0 0.0%
54191 Other Professional Services 300 0 0 0 0.0%
54911 Contractual Services (6) 200 200 0 0.0%
54914 Penalties and Late Fees 43 0 0 0 0.0%

205 Central Stores Total 213,727 229,043 299,613 70,570 30.8%

86



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

16 
    

210 Information Technology 
 
The Information Technology (IT) Division is responsible for collaboration with department leadership to 
develop IT Consortium Support and Services, determine and develop new technology and methodologies 
enterprise-wide for all 44 fire stations and 800+ end users throughout the IT Consortium for Central 
Pierce Fire and Rescue, Graham Fire, Gig Harbor Fire and Key Peninsula Fire. 
 
The IT Division is responsible for production operations, production applications, services and support, 
desktop, telecommunications, networks, servers, and data centers. This includes Commissioner Board 
presentations, budgetary and financial planning. The IT Division is responsible for defining and 
implementing the technical strategic plans, objectives and governance process around technology to help 
the organization’s structure and accountability long-term over the next 5-10 years ensuring management 
controls and best practices are shared across all operations. 
 
The IT Division also provides third-party application support for the fire and medical records management 
systems (ESO), mobile data computers (MDCs), as well as the links between South Sound 911’s 
Dispatch Center and the District’s ESO.  
 
District operations have increased the utilization of technology in all facets of emergency response, from 
initial dispatch through end reporting. The IT Division integrates these technologies across Divisions in 
the most effective manner possible. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

% 
Change 

Director 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Help Desk Supervisor 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
Network Systems Specialist 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Systems Administrator 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.0% 
Operations Analyst* 1.00 0.00 (1.00) (100)% 
IT Technician 3.00 4.00 1.00 33.3% 
Support Specialist 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
Total: 8.00 10.00 2.00 25.0% 

*Moved to Administration 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
 
 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
210 IS

51101 Regular Time 483,123 771,031 832,090 61,059 7.9%
51102 Part Time 0 22,000 0 (22,000) -100.0%
51121 Comp Time Off 3,360 0 0 0 0.0%
51122 Holiday 19,750 0 0 0 0.0%
51123 Sick Leave 32,280 0 0 0 0.0%
51124 Vacation 47,560 0 0 0 0.0%
51127 Bereavement Leave 1,034 0 0 0 0.0%
51141 Holiday Buy-Back 6,381 12,000 13,500 1,500 12.5%
51146 Holiday Payout 3,219 0 0 0 0.0%
51147 Sick Leave Payout 13,996 0 0 0 0.0%
51148 Vacation Payout 15,657 0 0 0 0.0%
51149 Comp Time Payout 2,226 2,500 0 (2,500) -100.0%

87



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

17 
    

 
210 Information Technology (Cont’d) 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
210 IS

51160 IT Standby Pay 7,522 9,000 20,130 11,130 123.7%
51170 Longevity Pay 14,490 28,569 5,129 (23,440) -82.0%
51199 Salary Budget Entry 0 0 130,000 130,000 100.0%
51201 Overtime 14,072 22,896 22,896 0 0.0%
52001 FICA/Medicare 10,022 13,841 15,000 1,159 8.4%
52002 Retirement 70,256 85,675 93,069 7,394 8.6%
52003 Medical/Dental 146,892 162,624 214,759 52,135 32.1%
52005 L & I 3,326 2,303 31,602 29,299 1272.2%
52007 Deferred Compensation 20,216 27,600 32,400 4,800 17.4%
52013 Disability/Pension 348 720 840 120 16.7%
52017 HRA 16,443 21,848 24,056 2,208 10.1%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 944 1,000 1,500 500 50.0%
53101 Office Supplies 0 250 250 0 0.0%
53102 Books/Manuals 0 250 250 0 0.0%
53141 Operating Supplies 0 500 500 0 0.0%
53145 Software 0 370 370 0 0.0%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 84,524 106,460 104,460 (2,000) -1.9%
54191 Other Professional Services 35,736 5,000 25,030 20,030 400.6%
54202 Communication Connection 364,163 374,237 374,237 0 0.0%
54331 Mileage 404 900 400 (500) -55.6%
54502 Other Operating Rental 0 0 123,400 123,400 100.0%
54811 Equipment Repair/Maintenance 708 4,000 4,000 0 0.0%
54813 Maintenance Agreements 223,800 394,701 611,301 216,600 54.9%
54902 Subscriptions 521 4,064 4,064 0 0.0%
54913 Transport Billing Svcs 36 0 0 0 0.0%
54914 Penalties and Late Fees 473 0 0 0 0.0%
54921 Registration 0 8,800 8,000 (800) -9.1%
56411 Equipment - Computer/Software 0 65,000 55,110 (9,890) -15.2%

210 IS Total 1,643,482 2,148,139 2,748,343 600,204 27.9%

88



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

18 
    

218/220/222  IT – Outside Districts 
 
The IT Consortium for Central Pierce Fire and Rescue includes Graham Fire, Gig Harbor Fire and Key 
Peninsula Fire. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts - No Budgeted Positions. 
 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
218 IS Gig Harbor

53401 Resale Items 65,233 77,888 59,580 (18,308) -23.5%
54191 Other Professional Services 0 0 5,340 5,340 100.0%
54202 Communication Connection 109,843 175,100 175,100 0 0.0%
54813 Maintenance Agreements 29,824 58,800 58,800 0 0.0%

218 IS Gig Harbor Total 204,900 311,788 298,820 (12,968) -4.2%

220 IS Graham
53401 Resale Items 11,326 154,024 104,860 (49,164) -31.9%
54191 Other Professional Services 0 0 6,780 6,780 100.0%
54202 Communication Connection 72,806 96,500 96,500 0 0.0%
54813 Maintenance Agreements 30,101 20,600 20,600 0 0.0%

220 IS Graham Total 114,233 271,124 228,740 (42,384) -15.6%

222 IS Key Peninsula
53401 Resale Items 13,843 33,400 43,850 10,450 31.3%
54191 Other Professional Services 0 0 2,850 2,850 100.0%
54202 Communication Connection 52,370 39,900 39,900 0 0.0%
54813 Maintenance Agreements 16,310 10,700 10,700 0 0.0%

222 IS Key Peninsula Total 82,523 84,000 97,300 13,300 15.8%

89



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

19 
    

230 Training 
 
The Training Division is responsible for coordinating and scheduling the majority of department training. 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue provides all suppression personnel with initial training, and on-going training 
for skills maintenance. The Training Division manages all training requirements. The maintenance of 
firefighter skills is accomplished in a variety of ways including: outside instructors, company level training, 
battalion level training, monthly reading assignments, online web-based computer training, monthly 
written tests, and in-house academies. Personnel attend conferences and classes outside the department 
for specialized training as well. 
 
Training operates in compliance with requirements established by Washington Administrative Code 
(WAC), Revised Code of Washington (RCW), and the standards of the National Fire Protection 
Association (NFPA). As standards change, training programs, records, and District policy, are continually 
evaluated and updated to remain in compliance. 
 
Technology is an integral part of the Training Division operations. Use of the computer network and an 
intranet web page have optimized training by keeping emergency crews and administrative personnel up-
to-date on training information, opportunities, and schedules. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

%  
Change 

Assistant Chief 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Captain - Days 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Lieutenant - Days 1.00 2.00 1.00 100% 
Support Specialist 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Total: 4.00 5.00 1.00 25.0% 

 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
230 Training

51101 Regular Time 449,448 485,473 525,570 40,097 8.3%
51102 Part Time 4,480 0 0 0 0.0%
51103 Seminar/School 303 0 0 0 0.0%
51104 Union Business 162 0 0 0 0.0%
51121 Comp Time Off 405 0 0 0 0.0%
51122 Holiday 12,459 0 0 0 0.0%
51123 Sick Leave 9,219 0 0 0 0.0%
51124 Vacation 54,221 0 0 0 0.0%
51127 Bereavement Leave 929 0 0 0 0.0%
51141 Holiday Buy-Back 15,889 15,000 15,500 500 3.3%
51142 Sick Leave Buy-Back 8,995 10,000 10,000 0 0.0%
51164 FF Project Pay 418 4,130 4,550 420 10.2%
51170 Longevity Pay 39,757 37,478 37,054 (424) -1.1%
51199 Salary Budget Entry 0 0 198,000 198,000 100.0%
51201 Overtime 235,926 405,942 405,942 0 0.0%
52001 FICA/Medicare 12,684 7,881 9,041 1,160 14.7%
52002 Retirement 48,183 34,759 35,937 1,178 3.4%
52003 Medical/Dental 138,945 106,356 106,461 105 0.1%
52005 L & I 18,147 13,009 19,242 6,233 47.9%
52007 Deferred Compensation 17,538 15,384 18,900 3,516 22.9%

90



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

20 
    

230 Training (Cont’d) 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
230 Training

52010 Personal Protective Equipment 0 0 93,750 93,750 100.0%
52011 Uniforms 0 0 18,000 18,000 100.0%
52014 Quartermaster 0 0 2,100 2,100 100.0%
52015 Uniform Allowance 300 0 0 0 0.0%
52017 HRA 11,224 11,224 11,224 0 0.0%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 1,063 100 2,000 1,900 1900.0%
52092 NLEC Retirement 290 200 300 100 50.0%
53101 Office Supplies 584 1,000 3,625 2,625 262.5%
53102 Books/Manuals 1,407 4,000 4,000 0 0.0%
53141 Operating Supplies 1,448 10,000 20,000 10,000 100.0%
53142 Equipment Repair Parts 0 500 500 0 0.0%
53145 Software 0 2,500 2,500 0 0.0%
53171 Food 670 1,500 2,000 500 33.3%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 897 2,500 2,500 0 0.0%
53503 Audio - Visual Equipment 2,240 4,000 4,000 0 0.0%
54143 Instructors 15,900 15,000 15,000 0 0.0%
54191 Other Professional Services 79 500 500 0 0.0%
54301 Per Diem 2,573 7,978 7,978 0 0.0%
54311 Lodging 8,160 21,450 21,450 0 0.0%
54331 Mileage 3,115 2,000 2,000 0 0.0%
54341 Airfare 4,236 7,871 7,871 0 0.0%
54502 Other Operating Rental 3,016 5,100 5,600 500 9.8%
54741 Garbage 1,358 2,200 2,700 500 22.7%
54901 Dues/Membership Fees 2,983 3,400 3,400 0 0.0%
54902 Subscriptions 46,601 46,200 50,200 4,000 8.7%
54911 Contractual Services 0 118,920 0 (118,920) -100.0%
54914 Penalties and Late Fees 6 0 0 0 0.0%
54921 Registration 36,323 72,000 72,000 0 0.0%
54922 Certifications 337 7,900 4,000 (3,900) -49.4%

230 Training Total 1,212,918 1,483,455 1,745,395 261,940 17.7%

91



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

21 
    

235 Academy 
 
The Academy Division, although managed by the Training Division, was created in 2017 to track hiring 
and training costs separately from the Training Division. The Recruit Academy is approximately 21 weeks: 
16 weeks of training and 5 weeks of EMT school, operating Monday through Friday during the day. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

%  
Change 

Hourly Trainer 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Total: 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 

 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
235 Academy

51102 Part Time 0 6,870 7,640 770 11.2%
51201 Overtime 159,036 175,120 175,120 0 0.0%
52001 FICA/Medicare 2,308 526 908 382 72.6%
52002 Retirement 8,722 0 1,189 1,189 100.0%
52003 Medical/Dental 306 0 0 0 0.0%
52005 L & I 12 391 500 109 27.9%
52007 Deferred Compensation 0 0 3,600 3,600 100.0%
52010 Personal Protective Equipment 96,242 93,750 156,250 62,500 66.7%
52011 Uniforms 31,263 18,000 30,000 12,000 66.7%
52014 Quartermaster 416 2,100 3,500 1,400 66.7%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 190 0 500 500 100.0%
53101 Office Supplies 1,364 2,625 4,375 1,750 66.7%
53102 Books/Manuals 15,464 9,000 24,000 15,000 166.7%
53132 Employee Recognition Supplies 0 1,500 4,000 2,500 166.7%
53141 Operating Supplies 5,591 7,500 20,000 12,500 166.7%
53147 Breathing Apparatus Supplies 0 12,000 32,000 20,000 166.7%
53171 Food 1,132 2,000 4,000 2,000 100.0%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 8,103 7,500 20,000 12,500 166.7%
54111 Advertising 0 1,600 1,600 0 0.0%
54143 Instructors 0 0 4,000 4,000 100.0%
54171 Medical Exams 46,007 27,300 72,800 45,500 166.7%
54191 Other Professional Services 75,474 44,425 76,800 32,375 72.9%
54311 Lodging 2,783 3,600 10,800 7,200 200.0%
54502 Other Operating Rental 3,498 0 0 0 0.0%
54741 Garbage 230 1,500 2,000 500 33.3%
54911 Contractual Services 0 1,200 0 (1,200) -100.0%
54914 Penalties and Late Fees 28 0 0 0 0.0%
54922 Certifications 755 1,500 4,000 2,500 166.7%
54941 Printing & Binding 0 1,000 2,000 1,000 100.0%

235 Academy Total 458,924 421,007 661,582 240,575 57.1%

92



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

22 
    

240 Communication 
 
The Communications Division oversees the acquisition of all emergency communication equipment and 
applications including portable, mobile, and base station radios, pagers, 800 MHz communication system, 
and dispatch services. The purchasing of emergency equipment is done through a variety of methods 
including the utilization of Washington State Purchasing Cooperative contracts, inter-local governmental 
bids, as well as advertising and bidding for equipment. This division is managed by the Assistant Chief of 
Logistics with direction and input from the Operations division. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts - No Budgeted Positions. 
 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
240 Communications

53142 Equipment Repair Parts 9,696 7,000 7,000 0 0.0%
53502 Communication Equipment 0 0 10,000 10,000 100.0%
54181 Dispatch 1,276,510 1,305,980 1,305,980 0 0.0%
54182 Radio System Fees 154,017 163,000 163,000 0 0.0%
54811 Equipment Repair/Maintenance 10,517 7,000 7,000 0 0.0%
54911 Contractual Services 1,640 4,400 4,400 0 0.0%
56433 Capital - Communication 0 20,000 20,000 0 0.0%

240 Communications Total 1,452,380 1,507,380 1,517,380 10,000 0.7%

93



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

23 
    

250 Health and Safety 
 
The Assistant Chief of Health & Safety manages the Health & Safety Division, which was created in 2016 
to ensure health and safety laws, rules, protocols, policies, and applicable industry standards are 
maintained and followed. The Division is also responsible for managing and promoting firefighter health 
and wellness. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

% 
Change 

Assistant Chief 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Crisis Intervention Coordinator 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
Wellness Coordinator 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
Total: 1.00 3.00 2.00 200% 

 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
250 Health & Safety

51101 Regular Time 144,894 173,963 311,180 137,217 78.9%
51122 Holiday 2,407 0 0 0 0.0%
51124 Vacation 19,683 0 0 0 0.0%
51141 Holiday Buy-Back 4,218 5,000 6,500 1,500 30.0%
51159 Duty Chief Pay 0 0 2,850 2,850 100.0%
51164 FF Project Pay 3,553 0 5,448 5,448 100.0%
51170 Longevity Pay 16,140 16,649 20,823 4,174 25.1%
51199 Salary Budget Entry 0 0 150,000 150,000 100.0%
51201 Overtime 13,959 66,708 120,912 54,204 81.3%
52001 FICA/Medicare 3,075 2,824 5,256 2,432 86.1%
52002 Retirement 11,076 11,354 25,153 13,799 121.5%
52003 Medical/Dental 24,427 24,588 44,281 19,693 80.1%
52005 L & I 4,970 4,250 10,780 6,530 153.6%
52007 Deferred Compensation 4,008 4,128 8,700 4,572 110.8%
52010 Personal Protective Equipment 210,963 300,000 999,700 699,700 233.2%
52013 Disability/Pension 0 0 0 0 0.0%
52017 HRA 2,208 2,208 6,208 4,000 181.2%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 231 100 500 400 400.0%
53141 Operating Supplies 324 500 1,000 500 100.0%
53147 Breathing Apparatus Supplies 65,720 15,000 65,000 50,000 333.3%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 2,847 2,700 24,000 21,300 788.9%
54143 Instructors 0 0 8,000 8,000 100.0%
54171 Medical Exams 0 44,500 44,500 0 0.0%
54191 Other Professional Services 16,176 13,500 15,000 1,500 11.1%
54301 Per Diem 0 200 500 300 150.0%
54311 Lodging 1,016 700 1,400 700 100.0%
54331 Mileage 165 0 0 0 0.0%
54341 Airfare 0 500 1,200 700 140.0%
54811 Equipment Repair/Maintenance 3,097 5,300 8,300 3,000 56.6%
54812 Equip Repair/Breath Apparatus 10,775 0 0 0 0.0%

94



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

24 
    

250 Health and Safety (Cont’d) 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
250 Health & Safety

54813 Maintenance Agreements 1,778 3,800 3,800 0 0.0%
54814 Personal Prot Equip Repair 51,298 55,000 70,000 15,000 27.3%
54901 Dues/Membership Fees 2,461 485 485 0 0.0%
54902 Subscriptions 4,000 7,800 7,800 0 0.0%
54911 Contractual Services 31,806 97,600 95,000 (2,600) -2.7%
54921 Registration 2,625 4,200 9,200 5,000 119.0%
54922 Certifications 0 7,035 450 (6,585) -93.6%
56401 Equipment - Vehicles 0 0 30,000 30,000 100.0%
56411 Equipment - Computer/Software 0 0 36,000 36,000 100.0%
56431 Equipment - Miscellaneous 7,753 116,000 55,000 (61,000) -52.6%

250 Health & Safety Total 667,653 986,592 2,194,926 1,208,334 122.5%

95



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

25 
    

300 Operations (Includes Suppression, EMS, & Grants) 
 
300 Suppression: 
The main work of the Fire Suppression Division concentrates on responding to 9-1-1 calls. The 
Suppression Division provides resources in the extinguishment of all types of fires, as well as provides 
the supplemental resources for specialty teams, Emergency Medical Services operations and non-
emergent incidents (service calls, alarm activations, gas leaks, electrical malfunctions, etc.). The District 
utilizes career personnel to perform the duties of suppression, emergency medical services (EMS), and 
patient transportation. The costs of personnel are shared between the suppression and EMS budgets. 
 
The primary elements for success are preparedness of personnel and maintaining equipment in a high 
state of readiness. This is accomplished by devoting duty hours to training in the latest technology, 
mandated requirements, and core techniques to promote safety and efficiency, pre-planning based on our 
community’s risks, and maintenance of equipment and systems that support the Suppression Division’s 
effort. This division also supports technical advisors and various task work groups whose responsibilities 
are to research and recommend tools, equipment, and procedures that enhance firefighter safety and job 
performance. 
 
The retention of a highly skilled workforce, which operates under dynamic, hazardous situations, requires 
a focus on safety, wellness, system efficiency, and professional growth. Suppression operations are 
administered by day shift personnel; including an Assistant Chief, a Battalion Chief, and an Operations 
Analyst. 
 
 
340 EMS: 
The Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Division is responsible for providing emergency medical care to 
the citizens of the District as well as to others in need through mutual aid agreements. The District 
provides both advanced life support, basic life support, and medical transport. Emergency medical 
technicians (EMTs) and paramedics provide immediate medical assessment, evaluation, treatment, and 
transport. Patients are transported to area receiving facilities as their conditions warrant. 
 
In order to keep their certifications, paramedics and EMTs must continually train to maintain their skills 
and knowledge in any type of medical emergency. The EMS Division is administered by an Assistant 
Chief, an EMS Captain, and a Support Specialist assigned to day shift. Each shift has two assigned EMS 
Lieutenants. 
 
Additionally, Central Pierce has an EMS Transport Levy Program, by which residents of the fire district 
have no “out of pocket” expense for Emergency Department transports beyond what their insurance will 
pay. The balance of transport costs not paid by insurance comes from the EMS Levy and is transferred 
as needed into the budget. 
 
In 2019, Central Pierce implemented a C.A.R.E.S. program as a resource to reduce low acuity incidents 
through education and care management. This program is being expanded in 2023.  

96



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

26 
    

 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

% 
Change 

Assistant Chief EMS 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Assistant Chief Operations 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
District Chief – Shift 0.00 3.00 3.00 100% 
Battalion Chief – Shift 7.00 6.00 (1.00) (14.3)% 
Battalion Chief Supp – Days 1.00 0.00 (1.00) (100)% 
Battalion Chief – EMS Days 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
C.A.R.E.S. Program Manager 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
C.A.R.E.S. RN 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
Captain – Shift 11.00 11.00 0.00 0.0% 
Captain EMS - Days  1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Captain Special Teams – Days 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
Captain Staffing Officer – Days 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
Lieutenant - Shift 33.00 52.00 19.00 57.6% 
Lieutenant Medical Service Operators 6.00 6.00 0.00 0.0% 
Firefighter Aparatus Operators 0.00 102.00 102.00 100% 
Firefighter Paramedics 0.00 42.00 42.00 100% 
Firefighters 198.00 57.00 (141.00) (71.2)% 
Operations Analyst (Moved to Admin) 1.00 0.00 (1.00) (100)% 
Support Specialist (1 from Admin) 1.00 2.00 1.00 100.0% 
Hydrant Workers (Moved to Logistics) 2.00 0.00 (2.00) (100)% 
Total: 264.00 289.00 25.00 9.5% 

 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
300 Operations & EMS

50840 Ending Cash 0 0 52,385 52,385 100.0%
51101 Regular Time 17,188,146 28,123,547 31,524,490 3,400,943 12.1%
51102 Part Time 6,938 0 0 0 0.0%
51103 Seminar/School 304,026 0 0 0 0.0%
51104 Union Business 7,631 0 0 0 0.0%
51111 Admin Acting Pay 0 0 4,000 4,000 100.0%
51112 BC Acting Pay 5,506 10,000 17,500 7,500 75.0%
51113 Lt Acting Pay 69,582 70,500 80,000 9,500 13.5%
51114 Rescue Driver Pay 113,915 152,000 170,220 18,220 12.0%
51115 Mechanic Acting Pay 0 0 4,000 4,000 100.0%
51116 Engine Driver Pay 161,305 186,000 208,040 22,040 11.8%
51117 Ladder Driver Pay 35,733 51,000 37,825 (13,175) -25.8%
51118 Medic Pay 105,784 152,000 290,220 138,220 90.9%
51121 Comp Time Off 114,817 0 0 0 0.0%
51122 Holiday 1,329,987 0 0 0 0.0%
51123 Sick Leave 2,256,928 0 0 0 0.0%
51124 Vacation 2,504,087 0 0 0 0.0%
51127 Bereavement Leave 48,088 0 0 0 0.0%
51128 L & I Disability Leave 185,008 0 0 0 0.0%
51129 Military Leave 85,751 0 0 0 0.0%
51130 Kelly Day 2,671,525 0 0 0 0.0%

97



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

27 
    

300 Operations (Cont’d) 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
300 Operations & EMS

51141 Holiday Buy-Back 695,335 835,000 860,000 25,000 3.0%
51142 Sick Leave Buy-Back 111,116 200,000 200,000 0 0.0%
51146 Holiday Payout 24,206 13,500 15,200 1,700 12.6%
51147 Sick Leave Payout 79,408 128,000 140,000 12,000 9.4%
51148 Vacation Payout 238,778 251,000 267,000 16,000 6.4%
51149 Comp Time Payout 10,887 21,000 0 (21,000) -100.0%
51151 Paramedic Premium Pay 919,660 966,821 933,048 (33,773) -3.5%
51155 BC Premium Pay 3,672 0 15,764 15,764 100.0%
51156 Staffing Person Pay 10,108 10,320 44,184 33,864 328.1%
51157 SCBA Technician Pay 18,219 23,220 36,576 13,356 57.5%
51159 Duty Chief Pay 21,938 21,696 5,700 (15,996) -73.7%
51162 Gurney Repair 7,524 7,740 9,468 1,728 22.3%
51163 Chainsaw Repair 2,508 7,740 8,424 684 8.8%
51164 FF Project Pay 6,479 6,540 33,531 26,991 412.7%
51165 Printing, Engraving 7,524 7,740 9,468 1,728 22.3%
51167 PIO Pay 0 15,480 0 (15,480) -100.0%
51168 Aid Unit Pay 71,607 81,800 0 (81,800) -100.0%
51170 Longevity Pay 1,261,450 1,387,227 1,480,671 93,444 6.7%
51199 Salary Budget Entry 0 108,000 3,189,742 3,081,742 2853.5%
51201 Overtime 5,445,950 4,228,463 3,801,500 (426,963) -10.1%
52001 FICA/Medicare 542,438 461,675 543,995 82,320 17.8%
52002 Retirement 1,965,520 1,860,006 1,942,181 82,175 4.4%
52003 Medical/Dental 7,485,108 7,627,548 7,842,678 215,130 2.8%
52005 L & I 1,284,981 1,103,069 1,717,234 614,165 55.7%
52007 Deferred Compensation 1,069,223 1,090,632 1,392,900 302,268 27.7%
52010 Personal Protective Equipment 0 0 42,000 42,000 100.0%
52015 Uniform Allowance 600 0 0 0 0.0%
52017 HRA 553,240 545,003 578,136 33,133 6.1%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 48,593 20,000 67,000 47,000 235.0%
52092 NLEC Retirement 16,306 9,000 19,000 10,000 111.1%
53101 Office Supplies 408 1,250 1,250 0 0.0%
53102 Books/Manuals 7,865 9,400 13,600 4,200 44.7%
53132 Employee Recognition Supplies 440 0 500 500 100.0%
53135 Immunizations 5,226 7,500 7,500 0 0.0%
53136 Program Supplies 0 250 250 0 0.0%
53141 Operating Supplies 242,791 432,000 565,000 133,000 30.8%
53142 Equipment Repair Parts 4,666 8,500 8,500 0 0.0%
53151 Medications 106,455 108,000 158,000 50,000 46.3%
53171 Food 12,635 7,500 12,500 5,000 66.7%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 40,391 34,500 75,000 40,500 117.4%
54143 Instructors 2,250 0 0 0 0.0%
54144 Physician Advisor 34,812 41,963 43,223 1,260 3.0%
54171 Medical Exams 723 1,200 1,200 0 0.0%
54191 Other Professional Services 19,538 21,700 22,200 500 2.3%
54301 Per Diem 433 400 2,100 1,700 425.0%
54311 Lodging 1,621 2,220 6,620 4,400 198.2%
54331 Mileage 7 1,500 1,500 0 0.0%
54341 Airfare 433 1,100 9,000 7,900 718.2%
54502 Other Operating Rental 8,142 1,000 8,000 7,000 700.0%
54611 Insurance 221,686 228,000 241,324 13,324 5.8%

98



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

28 
    

300 Operations (Cont’d) 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
300 Operations & EMS

54742 Hazardous Waste Disposal 1,777 2,000 2,000 0 0.0%
54811 Equipment Repair/Maintenance 660 11,000 16,000 5,000 45.5%
54813 Maintenance Agreements 200,654 137,100 137,100 0 0.0%
54901 Dues/Membership Fees 188 535 535 0 0.0%
54902 Subscriptions 20,050 22,800 22,800 0 0.0%
54911 Contractual Services 37,253 130 6,940 6,810 5238.5%
54913 Transport Billing Svcs 225,496 250,000 250,000 0 0.0%
54921 Registration 3,231 3,340 19,700 16,360 489.8%
54922 Certifications 7,142 16,830 16,830 0 0.0%
54925 College Tuition 22,051 32,424 42,721 10,297 31.8%
54941 Printing & Binding 252 2,500 2,500 0 0.0%
54961 B & O Tax 63 0 0 0 0.0%
56401 Equipment - Vehicles 0 0 365,000 365,000 100.0%
56431 Equipment - Miscellaneous 0 52,000 0 (52,000) -100.0%

300 Operations & EMS Total 50,326,474 51,221,909 59,643,473 8,421,564 16.4%

99



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

29 
    

310 Community Service Volunteers (CSV’s) 
 
The Volunteer Program is designed to assist in the delivery of services at emergency incidents and public 
information and education events. The program is divided into two areas: community services and 
chaplains. Currently, we have 23 community services personnel and 5 chaplains. 
 
Volunteers earn points for specific duties and each point has a cash value. The point system is used as a 
way to reimburse volunteers for expenses incurred while participating in District activities. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts - No Budgeted Positions. 
 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
310 Volunteers/Residents

51106 Points 2,836 30,000 20,000 (10,000) -33.3%
52001 FICA/Medicare 217 0 0 0 0.0%
52005 L & I 46 0 300 300 100.0%
52008 EAP 432 0 0 0 0.0%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 4 0 100 100 100.0%
54331 Mileage 2,885 3,000 3,000 0 0.0%

310 Volunteers/Residents Total 6,420 33,000 23,400 (9,600) -29.1%

100



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

30 
    

320 Hazardous Materials 
 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue has a Hazardous Materials (Haz Mat) response team consisting of eighteen 
Haz Mat technicians and one program manager. The team provides the community and surrounding 
communities with technical expertise, knowledge, skills and abilities during incidents involving hazardous 
materials that could range from common household chemicals to weapons of mass destruction. The team 
is part of the Pierce County Hazardous Incident Team known as PCHIT with neighboring departments, 
and routinely trains and drills with members of those various departments. Many of the members 
participate as members of Washington Task Force 1 providing expertise at numerous national disasters 
over the years as part of the FEMA national response plan. Members have deployed to terrorist attacks in 
New York and Oklahoma City, hurricanes in Florida, Texas, Georgia, and Hawaii, and to the mudslide in 
Oso, WA. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts - Positions accounted for in Operations. 
 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
320 Haz Mat

51152 Haz Mat Team Pay 42,636 50,220 53,652 3,432 6.8%
51155 BC Premium Pay 3,672 3,500 4,000 500 14.3%
51201 Overtime 61,136 159,146 308,560 149,414 93.9%
52001 FICA/Medicare 1,560 0 0 0 0.0%
52002 Retirement 5,864 0 0 0 0.0%
52003 Medical/Dental 57 0 0 0 0.0%
52005 L & I 8 0 0 0 0.0%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 141 0 300 300 100.0%
53136 Program Supplies 0 50 50 0 0.0%
53141 Operating Supplies 1,092 50 1,000 950 1900.0%
53142 Equipment Repair Parts 0 250 250 0 0.0%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 242 500 3,000 2,500 500.0%
54171 Medical Exams 26,123 0 0 0 0.0%
54331 Mileage 0 50 50 0 0.0%
54502 Other Operating Rental 0 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
54911 Contractual Services 11,121 6,500 6,500 0 0.0%
54922 Certifications 0 500 0 (500) -100.0%
56401 Equipment - Vehicles 0 0 500,000 500,000 100.0%

320 Haz Mat Total 153,652 221,766 878,362 656,596 296.1%

101



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

31 
    

330 Technical Rescue 
 
The primary functions of the Special Operations team are to respond to high risk, low frequency technical 
rescue calls. The team responds to high angle rope rescue, confined space rescue, trench rescue, swift 
water rescue, structural collapse rescue, and heavy vehicle/machinery extrication. All Central Pierce 
Special Operations Team members are part of the Pierce County Special Operations Response Team 
and respond to calls anywhere in Pierce County. There are currently seventeen members on the team. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts - Positions accounted for in Operations. 
 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
330 Spec Ops

51153 Spec Ops Team Pay 38,608 52,800 66,276 13,476 25.5%
51155 BC Premium Pay 3,672 3,500 5,000 1,500 42.9%
51201 Overtime 57,534 166,652 1,249,560 1,082,908 649.8%
52001 FICA/Medicare 1,394 0 0 0 0.0%
52002 Retirement 5,450 0 0 0 0.0%
52010 Personal Protective Equipment 2,864 0 0 0 0.0%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 136 0 300 300 100.0%
53102 Books/Manuals 0 100 100 0 0.0%
53130 Personnel Supplies 797 3,000 3,000 0 0.0%
53141 Operating Supplies 572 500 2,000 1,500 300.0%
53142 Equipment Repair Parts 0 200 200 0 0.0%
53171 Food 990 0 0 0 0.0%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 11,238 21,430 6,775 (14,655) -68.4%
54171 Medical Exams 7,728 0 120,900 120,900 100.0%
54502 Other Operating Rental 667 1,000 2,000 1,000 100.0%
54811 Equipment Repair/Maintenance 130 1,250 1,250 0 0.0%
54911 Contractual Services 12,150 7,800 7,800 0 0.0%
54921 Registration 0 0 148,750 148,750 100.0%
56401 Equipment - Vehicles 0 0 500,000 500,000 100.0%
56431 Equipment - Miscellaneous 0 13,200 0 (13,200) -100.0%

330 Spec Ops Total 143,930 271,432 2,113,911 1,842,479 678.8%

102



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

32 
    

400 Prevention and Education 
 
The Prevention & Education Division (P & E) is responsible for Fire Prevention, Fire Investigation, Public 
Information, Public Education and Public Relations. A variety of activities and responsibilities fall under 
the following five categories: 
 
Fire Prevention 
Within the city limits of Puyallup, Prevention personnel inspect occupancies and property to ensure 
compliance with International Fire codes and ordinances as adopted by the City of Puyallup. The Fire 
Prevention section issues and administers operational permits, plan reviews and inspections, and spring 
and fall Washington State Fairs. In addition, it receives and receipts fees associated with the permitting 
process. 
 
Throughout the District, the division provides Knox Box service, and other prevention functions. In the 
unincorporated area of the District, we work closely with the Pierce County Fire Marshal’s Office to 
coordinate services. 
 
Fire Investigation 
Within the city limits of Puyallup, Deputy Fire Marshals respond to emergencies to examine fire scenes 
and determine the origin and cause of fires. This involves collecting and preserving evidence, interviewing 
witnesses, and testifying in court proceedings. Background investigations are also conducted in this 
division for the District. 
 
Public Information 
The division is the primary conduit for information to the public about the district. This is provided through 
public information releases, direct communication with media, The Responder newsletter, Facebook, 
Twitter, the CPFR website, and other media channels. The Public Information Officer (PIO) provides 
timely release of information regarding significant incidents. 
 
Public Education 
This section provides fire and life safety awareness programs to the public. These include school 
programs for fifth graders, Safe Sitter® classes, fire extinguisher training, CPR/First Aid classes, and a 
presentation to high school students addressing driving while impaired. In addition, we coordinate 
activities to make our communities safer; such as smoke alarm installation and battery replacement, 
blood pressure checks, sport helmet fittings, and Active Shooter exercises with community members. We 
also schedule station tours and participate in community events and health and safety fairs. 
 
Public Relations 
The Public Relations section develops and seeks to enhance the relationships with the citizens of our 
District and remain actively involved within the community. Additionally, Community Service Volunteers 
and the Medical Explorers program provide critical outreach to our citizens. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

% 
Change 

Assistant Chief 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Assistant Fire Marshal 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
Captain Deputy Fire Marshal 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
Lieutenant Deputy Fire Marshal 4.00 4.00 0.00 0.0% 
Public Educator 1.00 2.00 1.00 100% 
Community & Gov’t Relations* 1.00 0.00 (1.00) (100)% 
Support Specialist 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Total: 8.00 10.00 2.00 25.0% 

*Moved to Administration 

103



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

33 
    

2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
 
 
 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
400 Prevention & Education

51101 Regular Time 548,200 717,280 838,660 121,380 16.9%
51119 DFM PAY 5,640 8,712 6,312 (2,400) -27.5%
51121 Comp Time Off 540 0 0 0 0.0%
51122 Holiday 13,640 0 0 0 0.0%
51123 Sick Leave 89,584 0 0 0 0.0%
51124 Vacation 108,122 0 0 0 0.0%
51127 Bereavement Leave 593 0 0 0 0.0%
51128 L & I Disability Leave 8,237 0 0 0 0.0%
51141 Holiday Buy-Back 30,258 40,000 42,000 2,000 5.0%
51142 Sick Leave Buy-Back 5,506 9,000 9,000 0 0.0%
51149 Comp Time Payout 0 400 0 (400) -100.0%
51159 Duty Chief Pay 0 0 2,850 2,850 100.0%
51166 K9 Pay 6,000 2,904 7,200 4,296 147.9%
51167 PIO Pay 14,638 0 0 0 0.0%
51170 Longevity Pay 50,327 51,288 49,737 (1,551) -3.0%
51199 Salary Budget Entry 0 165,000 627,276 462,276 280.2%
51201 Overtime 60,140 62,352 185,782 123,430 198.0%
52001 FICA/Medicare 14,154 11,731 14,439 2,708 23.1%
52002 Retirement 54,237 50,467 59,653 9,186 18.2%
52003 Medical/Dental 196,724 172,500 197,650 25,150 14.6%
52005 L & I 28,790 21,507 36,356 14,849 69.0%
52007 Deferred Compensation 26,346 23,640 32,700 9,060 38.3%
52011 Uniforms 65 0 0 0 0.0%
52013 Disability/Pension 0 0 120 120 100.0%
52015 Uniform Allowance 300 0 0 0 0.0%
52017 HRA 15,640 15,640 17,848 2,208 14.1%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 1,276 1,000 2,500 1,500 150.0%
52092 NLEC Retirement 107 2,000 200 (1,800) -90.0%
53101 Office Supplies 172 1,320 1,320 0 0.0%
53102 Books/Manuals 1,503 800 1,200 400 50.0%
53103 Safety Supplies 1,161 5,500 5,500 0 0.0%
53105 Agency Recognition Supplies 440 2,000 2,000 0 0.0%
53133 Class Supplies/Extinguishers 141 500 500 0 0.0%
53134 Class Supplies/CPR 0 5,500 5,500 0 0.0%
53136 Program Supplies 2,973 7,500 7,500 0 0.0%
53137 Program Supplies/Safe Sitter 0 3,750 3,750 0 0.0%
53138 Program Supplies/Schools 0 5,000 30,800 25,800 516.0%
53139 Program Supplies/WW Fair 1,339 6,500 14,500 8,000 123.1%
53141 Operating Supplies 2,035 2,700 2,700 0 0.0%
53171 Food 349 500 500 0 0.0%
53401 Resale Items 0 500 500 0 0.0%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 3,930 8,800 24,100 15,300 173.9%
54111 Advertising 275 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
54191 Other Professional Services 37,961 500 5,500 5,000 1000.0%
54221 Postage 17,680 37,800 20,200 (17,600) -46.6%
54301 Per Diem 1,990 1,350 3,900 2,550 188.9%
54311 Lodging 3,592 4,350 9,500 5,150 118.4%

104



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

34 
    

400 Prevention and Education (Cont’d) 
 

 
 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
400 Prevention & Education

54331 Mileage 1,265 100 700 600 600.0%
54341 Airfare 97 300 6,400 6,100 2033.3%
54811 Equipment Repair/Maintenance 3,054 500 500 0 0.0%
54813 Maintenance Agreements 0 0 1,420 1,420 100.0%
54901 Dues/Membership Fees 1,540 3,000 3,000 0 0.0%
54902 Subscriptions 813 600 7,640 7,040 1173.3%
54911 Contractual Services 468 500 500 0 0.0%
54921 Registration 3,734 5,550 9,600 4,050 73.0%
54922 Certifications 1,603 1,900 1,900 0 0.0%
54941 Printing & Binding 4,005 24,000 14,000 (10,000) -41.7%
54961 B & O Tax 0 120 120 0 0.0%
56401 Equipment - Vehicles 0 0 180,000 180,000 100.0%
56431 Equipment - Miscellaneous 0 0 40,000 40,000 100.0%

400 Prevention & Education Total 1,371,184 1,487,861 2,536,533 1,048,672 70.5%

105



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

35 
    

410 ATF Accelerant Detection K9 
 
The ATF K9 falls under the Prevention & Education Division.  
 
Fire Investigation 
The K9 team’s primary responsibility is the assistance in the investigation of fires. K9 Hansel has been 
requested thirty-four times by twenty-seven different agencies, including five counties and two states. K9 
Hansel has identified and submitted approximately 116 items of evidence, assisted in 10 felony arrests, 8 
fatality fires (3 being multiple homicides), multiple standbys for Seattle riots, and assisted with clearing 
protest corridors. 
 
Public Education & Demonstrations 
K9 Hansel actively engages with the public at local events and schools. He has a standing invitation to 
visit various local business and our school districts once Covid restrictions lift. 
 
Public Relations 
Even with the current restrictions, K9 Hansel is out in the public engaging citizens daily. We are building 
relationships with many business and other entities, providing locations and various materials to train 
Hansel.  
 
ATF TFO 
K9 Hansel’s federal commission has created a liaison between federal, state, and local agencies (both 
fire and law enforcement) and our jurisdiction. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts - No Budgeted Positions. 
 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
410 K9

53141 Operating Supplies 1,024 2,000 2,000 0 0.0%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 128 1,300 1,300 0 0.0%
54191 Other Professional Services 840 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
54902 Subscriptions 0 70 70 0 0.0%

410 K9 Total 1,992 4,370 4,370 0 0.0%

106



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

36 
    

650 Shop 
 
The District owns and operates a maintenance shop for the repair and maintenance of vehicles and small 
equipment it owns, including emergency apparatus, automobiles, and suppression / communications 
equipment and station generators. The division operates under the management of the Assistant Chief of 
Logistics. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 

Position 
2022 

Positions 
2023 Proposed 

Positions 
Position 
Change 

% 
Change 

Lead Mechanic 1.00 2.00 1.00 100% 
Mechanic 6.00 6.00 0.00 0.0% 
Support Specialist 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Light Duty Parts Tech 0.00 1.00 1.00 100% 
P/T Mechanic 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.0% 
Total: 9.00 11.00 2.00 22.2% 

 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
650 Maint. Shop

51101 Regular Time 495,908 726,449 751,530 25,081 3.5%
51102 Part Time 37,055 75,000 81,410 6,410 8.5%
51115 Mechanic Acting Pay 2,622 2,080 2,080 0 0.0%
51121 Comp Time Off 4,385 0 0 0 0.0%
51122 Holiday 26,742 0 0 0 0.0%
51123 Sick Leave 106,371 0 0 0 0.0%
51124 Vacation 58,040 0 0 0 0.0%
51127 Bereavement Leave 2,007 0 0 0 0.0%
51128 L & I Disability Leave 7,349 0 0 0 0.0%
51141 Holiday Buy-Back 9,806 11,000 11,500 500 4.5%
51142 Sick Leave Buy-Back 0 2,000 2,000 0 0.0%
51147 Sick Leave Payout 3,615 0 0 0 0.0%
51148 Vacation Payout 35,365 0 0 0 0.0%
51158 Mechanic Certification Pay 24,324 25,671 13,524 (12,147) -47.3%
51170 Longevity Pay 47,662 63,608 27,642 (35,966) -56.5%
51199 Salary Budget Entry 0 0 275,406 275,406 100.0%
51201 Overtime 70,018 75,000 75,000 0 0.0%
52001 FICA/Medicare 16,722 17,998 19,725 1,727 9.6%
52002 Retirement 97,933 88,362 95,993 7,631 8.6%
52003 Medical/Dental 198,288 210,972 207,687 (3,285) -1.6%
52005 L & I 25,070 22,753 35,808 13,055 57.4%
52007 Deferred Compensation 33,552 33,760 32,400 (1,360) -4.0%
52011 Uniforms 1,928 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
52012 Tool Allowance 2,950 2,800 3,200
52013 Disability/Pension 444 720 840 120 16.7%
52015 Uniform Allowance 300 0 0 0 0.0%
52017 HRA 18,952 20,808 20,056 (752) -3.6%
52019 WA Paid FMLA 1,351 1,500 1,800 300 20.0%

107



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

37 
    

650 Shop (Cont’d) 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
650 Maint. Shop

53101 Office Supplies 357 2,000 2,000 0 0.0%
53102 Books/Manuals 0 100 100 0 0.0%
53121 Cleaning Supplies 185 300 300 0 0.0%
53141 Operating Supplies 21,017 30,600 30,600 0 0.0%
53142 Equipment Repair Parts 5,605 16,500 16,500 0 0.0%
53143 Vehicle Repair Parts 248,101 280,000 280,000 0 0.0%
53171 Food 369 500 500 0 0.0%
53181 Lubricants 21,086 13,500 13,500 0 0.0%
53501 Small Tools & Equipment 9,034 18,375 18,375 0 0.0%
54143 Instructors 0 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
54171 Medical Exams 329 400 400 0 0.0%
54191 Other Professional Services 7,188 8,000 8,000 0 0.0%
54301 Per Diem 223 1,628 1,629 1 0.1%
54311 Lodging 886 6,275 6,277 2 0.0%
54331 Mileage 413 2,000 2,000 0 0.0%
54502 Other Operating Rental 0 1,650 1,650 0 0.0%
54711 Water 476 800 800 0 0.0%
54712 Surface Water Management 3,286 2,800 2,800 0 0.0%
54721 Sewer 781 788 788 0 0.0%
54731 Electricity 4,771 6,300 6,300 0 0.0%
54741 Garbage 2,588 3,700 3,700 0 0.0%
54742 Hazardous Waste Disposal 2,642 2,500 2,500 0 0.0%
54811 Equipment Repair/Maintenance 12,380 5,000 5,000 0 0.0%
54813 Maintenance Agreements 10,984 6,000 6,000 0 0.0%
54820 Sub-Let Vehicle Repair/Maint 94,862 100,000 100,000 0 0.0%
54821 Paint & Body Work 17,604 25,000 25,000 0 0.0%
54901 Dues/Membership Fees 0 600 600 0 0.0%
54902 Subscriptions 0 800 800 0 0.0%
54911 Contractual Services 63 60,000 0 (60,000) -100.0%
54912 Fees/Permits 1,440 0 0 0 0.0%
54921 Registration 806 2,127 2,127 0 0.0%
54922 Certifications 1,574 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%
54931 Laundry (Linen) Services 6,259 5,500 5,500 0 0.0%
54961 B & O Tax 325 500 500 0 0.0%

650 Maint. Shop Total 1,804,393 1,987,724 2,204,847 217,123 10.9%

108



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

38 
    

015 Equipment Replacement Fund 
 
This fund was established to ensure that Central Pierce Fire & Rescue would be able to equip firefighters 
and paramedics with the tools and equipment necessary to maximize our service to the community and 
provide for the safety of our personnel in an inherently dangerous job. It also allows for the 
standardization of equipment, which reduces training costs, increases safety, and is more suitable to the 
District’s mobile and stationary work force. Additionally, the fund aids the District in future budget and 
strategic planning by outlining long-term major equipment needs. Since the District’s needs are ever-
changing, the plan is reviewed each year during the budgeting process and adjustments deemed 
appropriate are made. Because the ERF purchases vehicles to respond to emergencies as well as 
equipment to enhance firefighter safety, the District considers this fund to be a priority during the 
budgeting process.  
 
The ERF has been set up as a sub fund of the General Fund and has the same account code structure 
as the General Fund, the only difference being the designated fund number. It is classified on the 
District’s financial statements as committed fund balance. 
 
The District contributes to the ERF based on the needs of the Fund. Originally the District contributed 
$850,000 annually. In 2010 The District found it necessary to increase the annual contribution amount to 
$1,000,000 due to the addition of equipment from the City of Puyallup merger. In 2014 the contribution 
was reduced, and no contributions were made in 2016. The contribution was restored to $1,250,000 in 
the 2017 Budget.   
 
Additional funding for the ERF comes from the sale of surplus equipment scheduled to be replaced 
through this fund. Revenues received from the sale of ERF equipment help to augment the General Fund 
contributions and offset the cost of inflation. Currently, all District funds are combined for investment 
purposes and interest earned is recorded in the General Fund.   
 
Equipment purchased through the ERF is categorized in the following manner: 

 Vehicles: Engines, medic units, and other support vehicles. 
 Technology: Copiers, phone system, and mobile data equipment. 
 Emergency medical supplies: Defibrillators and stretchers. 
 Fire suppression equipment: SCBAs, personal protective gear, and thermo-imaging cameras. 
 Specialized equipment: Hazardous materials and technical rescue equipment. 
 Shop equipment: Portable lifts, compressors, and emissions equipment. 

 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts - No Budgeted Positions. 
 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
015 ERF

53501 Small Tools & Equipment 4,656 156,964 138,670 (18,294) -11.7%
54911 Contractual Services 1,355 0 0 0 0.0%
56401 Equipment - Vehicles 4,163,102 4,832,398 4,474,583 (357,815) -7.4%
56431 Equipment - Miscellaneous 170,054 0 17,960 17,960 100.0%
56432 Capital - Breathing Apparatus 22,625 0 0 0 0.0%
59122 Debt Svc Repayment 4,237,975 0 0 0 0.0%
59222 Int and Other Debt Svc Costs 239,945 0 0 0 0.0%

015 ERF Total 8,839,712 4,989,362 4,631,213 (358,149) -7.2%

109



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

39 
    

050 Facilities Fund 
 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue established this Fund to adequately maintain and ensure extended useful 
life of existing facilities, while keeping long-term costs to a minimum. Additionally, the Fund aids the 
District in future budget and strategic planning by outlining long-term facility needs.   
 
The Facilities Repair & Maintenance Fund is as a sub fund of the General Fund and has the same 
account code structure as the General Fund, the only difference being the designated fund number. The 
District’s financial statements classify this fund balance as reserved. 
 
The District historically budgets $100,000 annually, however beginning in 2019 funded $300,000 annually 
to catch up some needed facilities repairs.   
 
Parameters for use of these funds include the following: 

 Repair or maintenance cost should exceed $5,000. 
 Types of repair and maintenance include painting, roofing, HVAC system, paving, flooring, etc. 
 The fund is not to be used for capital purchases such as land acquisition, new buildings, major 

site development projects, or major remodeling. 
 

Facilities maintained with these funds include all fire stations, the maintenance shop, training center, 
training towers, and portable housing. It does not include small storage sheds. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts - No Budgeted Positions. 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
050 Facilities Maint

54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 270,994 300,000 962,100 662,100 220.7%
56201 Capital - Buildings 0 1,400,000 360,000 (1,040,000) -74.3%

050 Facilities Maint Total 270,994 1,700,000 1,322,100 (377,900) -22.2%

110



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

40 
    

050 Facilities Fund (Continued) 
 
2023 Proposed Budget by Station: 
 

 
 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
050 Facilities

Station 60 26,926 110,722 40,000 (70,722) -63.9%
Station 61 38,186 0 214,800 214,800 100.0%
Station 62 69,833 0 0 0 0.0%
Station 63 0 0 13,000 13,000 100.0%
Station 64 0 24,068 201,900 177,832 738.9%
Station 65 3,297 504,050 41,000 (463,050) -91.9%
Station 66 23,805 622,360 1,400 (620,960) -99.8%
Station 67 25,323 29,040 58,100 29,060 100.1%
Station 68 46,965 42,010 34,000 (8,010) -19.1%
Station 69 0 365,000 313,400 (51,600) -14.1%
Station 71 36,659 0 0 0 0.0%
Station 72 0 0 61,500 61,500 100.0%
Station 73 0 0 110,600 110,600 100.0%
Shop 0 2,750 180,000 177,250 6445.5%
Training Center 0 0 52,400 52,400 100.0%

050 Facilities Total 270,994 1,700,000 1,322,100 (377,900) -22.2%

111



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

41 
    

102 Ground Emergency Medical Transportation (GEMT) 
 
Washington State Health Care currently pays reimbursement rates to providers for medical transportation 
services to patients on Medicaid.  The amounts reimbursed by the State are far under the actual costs of 
services provided.  The Federal Center for Medicaid/Medicare Services (CMS) reimburses Ground 
Emergency Medical Transportation (GEMT) provider costs not fully covered under the State Medicaid rate 
schedule. 
 
The District proposed this GEMT legislation for Washington State in 2017.  HB 2007 was approved and 
signed by the Governor April 29, 2015, and GEMT collections commenced effective July 1, 2017.  
 
These funds are used to pay for the medical transport portions of personnel, apparatus, and capital 
facilities where eligible.  
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts - No Budgeted Positions. 
 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
102 GEMT

50840 Ending Cash 0 3,326,694 0 (3,326,694) -100.0%
59701 Transfer Out to EMS 101 0 0 3,438,000 3,438,000 100.0%
59715 Transfer Out - ERF 6,153,362 3,366,381 2,965,160 (401,221) -11.9%
59731 Transfer Out to 301 Cap Proj 4,417,131 0 6,633,416 6,633,416 100.0%
59750 Transfer Out - Facilities 0 894,460 408,660 (485,800) -54.3%

102 GEMT Total 10,570,493 7,587,535 13,445,236 5,857,701 77.2%

112



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

42 
    

201 General Obligation Debt Fund 
 
In the State of Washington, there are two categories of debt available to Fire Districts to finance capital 
projects: voted debt or nonvoter debt, sometimes referred to as Commissioner Bonds. 
 
The District has the authority, under RCW 52.16.080, to incur general indebtedness for capital purposes. 
Voted bonds must pass with a 60% yes vote of the District electorate in which there is at least a 40% 
turnout of the voters that voted in the last preceding general state election. The ballot title must state the 
maximum amount of the bonds, the maximum term of the bonds, and must specify uses for the proceeds. 
The bonds are repaid from an excess property tax levy and may not be outstanding longer than 20 years. 
Total voted debt must not exceed, together with any nonvoter debt, equal to ¾ of 1% of the value of 
taxable property within the boundaries of the Fire District.  
 
Nonvoter debt, or Commissioner Bonds, as allowed under RCW 52.16.061, do not require a vote of the 
District electorate and are repaid from the regular property tax levy and other revenue sources. These 
bonds may be used for any general District purpose including expenses of maintenance, operations, and 
the acquisition of firefighting facilities. Total nonvoter debt must not exceed ⅜ of 1% of the value of 
taxable property within the boundaries of the Fire District. 
 
The District set up this fund to track and account for debt income from excess levies and debt payments 
after the issuance of the 2013 General Obligation Bonds. The Citizens approved a $39,800,000 GO Bond 
at the November 2013 General Election. All general obligation debt is on track to be paid off as scheduled 
in 2035. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts - No Budgeted Positions. 
 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 
  

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
201F Debt Fund

58400 Debt Issue Costs 600 0 0 0 0.0%
59122 Debt Svc Repayment 1,340,000 1,380,000 1,420,000 40,000 2.9%
59222 Int and Other Debt Svc Costs 1,095,913 1,055,163 1,013,213 (41,950) -4.0%

201F Debt Fund Total 2,436,513 2,435,163 2,433,213 (1,950) -0.1%

113



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

43 
    

301 Capital Projects Fund 
 
The District set up this fund to track and account for capital projects funded by the 2013 and 2016 
General Obligation Bonds. The Citizens approved a $39,800,000 GO Bond at the November 2013 
General Election. The bonds have been fully expended, and funds are now transferred to cover capital 
projects on a pay as you go basis. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts 
 
No budgeted positions are accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund. Some administrative labor may be 
charged to this fund for direct support of capital projects, but the positions themselves are budgeted and 
accounted for in Divisions. 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
301 Capital

53501 Small Tools & Equipment 6,349 0 0 0 0.0%
56101 Land Acquisition 0 0 1,100,000 1,100,000 100.0%
56201 Capital - Buildings 0 6,000,000 0 (6,000,000) -100.0%
56210 Capital - Building Permits (45,000) 100,000 0 (100,000) -100.0%
56241 Capital Construction Contract 0 1,000,000 3,333,333 2,333,333 233.3%
56242 Bldgs-Arch Svcs 106,850 1,000,000 750,000 (250,000) -25.0%
56243 Buildings - Engineering Svcs 0 250,000 750,000 500,000 200.0%
56244 Bldgs - Other Prof Svcs 0 30,000 500,000
59170 Lease Rent LongTerm 0 0 550,000
59470 Capital Expense Fire & EMS 0 0 3,800,000 3,800,000 100.0%

301 Capital Total 68,199 8,380,000 10,783,333 2,403,333 28.7%

114



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

44 
    

630 HRA/Flex Fund 
 
The HRA/Flex Fund is an agency fund used to account for assets Central Pierce Fire & Rescue (CPFR) 
holds on behalf of its employees who elect to participate in the Flexible Spending Account (FSA) benefit 
program.  An FSA allows a fixed amount of pre-taxed wages to be set aside for qualified expense which 
may include uncovered medical expenses or dependent care. As of 2023, CPFR contracts with Rehn & 
Associates to administer expense reimbursements from this fund. 
 
2023 Budgeted Position Counts - No Budgeted Positions. 
 
 
2023 Proposed Budget 
 

 

Div Account Name
2021 

Actuals
 2022 Adopted 

Budget 
2023 Proposed 

Budget
$ Change

Incr/ (Decr)
%

Change
630 HRA Flex

52003 Medical/Dental 15,032 50,000 50,000 0 0
630 HRA Flex Total 15,032 50,000 50,000 0 0.0%

115



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

45 
    

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA 

Account Summary 
 

Account Account Title Account Description 
51106 Points Pay for Volunteer Events 

51111 Admin Acting Pay 
Admin support personnel working at a higher pay 
grade 

51112 BC Acting Pay Suppression personnel acting as BC 
51113 Lt Acting Pay Suppression personnel acting as Lt 
51115 Mechanic Acting Pay Mechanic personnel acting at higher pay grade 
51155 BC Premium Pay Premium for Team Leads 
51201 Overtime Pay at time and a half 
52009 LEOFF I Retirees - Medical Medical Insurance for Retirees 

52010 Personal Protective Equipment 
Suppression Masks, Bunker gear, hoods, helmets, 
gloves, passport 

52011 Uniforms Trousers, shirts, belts, boots, jackets, hats 
52014 Quartermaster T-shirts, sweat suits, shorts, etc. 
52016 LEOFF II Retirees-Medical Medical Insurance for Retirees 

53101 Office Supplies 
Paper, binders, etc. - Consumable in less than one 
year 

53102 Books/Manuals Books and manuals 

53103 Safety Supplies 

Special events, safety fair education materials, 
parades, coloring books, hats, preprinted info 
brochures, file for life, car seat info, senior safety, fire 
stoppers 

53105 Agency Recognition Supplies Decals, Magnets 
53111 Printed Forms Stock Printed forms -No Logos or custom layout 
53121 Cleaning Supplies Cleaning Supplies 

53130 Personnel Supplies 
Replacement items for team members  includes 
lights, maps, harness, etc 

53131 Clothing OPEIU Contracted shirts, sweaters 
53132 Employee Recognition Supplies Awards, plaques, certificates 
53133 Class Supplies/Extinguishers Fire Extinguisher refilling, brochures 
53134 Class Supplies/CPR First aid books, CPR cards 
53135 Immunizations Vaccinations 

53136 Program Supplies 
Smoke alarms, hearing impaired smoke alarms, 
batteries 

53137 Program Supplies/Safe Sitter Supplies for Safe Sitter Classes 
53138 Program Supplies/Schools Supplies for various school programs 
53139 Program Supplies/WW Fair Supplies for spring and fall fairs 

53141 Operating Supplies 
Light Bulbs, batteries, garbage bags, Consumable in 
less than one year 

53142 Equipment Repair Parts Parts to repair equipment (no outside labor) 
53143 Vehicle Repair Parts Parts to repair vehicles (no outside labor) 
53144 Tires Tires 
53145 Software Software 
53146 Building Repair Parts Parts to repair buildings (no outside labor) 

53147 Breathing Apparatus Supplies 
Parts used for in house repair of SCBA and testing 
equipment (no outside labor) 

 
  

116



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

46 
    

 
Account Account Title Account Description 

53151 Medications EMS Medications 
53171 Food Food for meetings, assessment centers, fires 
53181 Lubricants Shop oil, grease 
53201 Fuel Fuel 
53401 Resale Items Bike Helmets for sale 

53501 Small Tools & Equipment 
Drills, beds, recliners -expected life of greater than 1 
year 

53502 Communication Equipment Radios, Nextel phones 

53503 Audio - Visual Equipment 
Multi-media projector, digital camera & bulbs, media 
hardware 

53504 Hose Replacement Replacement hose for suppression 
54101 Accounting/Auditing Financial statement auditing 
54111 Advertising Surplus Ads, Hiring Ads, etc 
54143 Instructors Outside instruction 
54144 Physician Advisor EMS contracted physician 
54151 Legal Fees Attorney fees 
54161 Election Fees Election fees 
54171 Medical Exams Exams for hiring and Specialty Teams 
54181 Dispatch 911 Dispatch 
54182 Radio System Fees 800MHz and Radio repair 
54191 Other Professional Services Outside services 
54202 Communication Connection Telephone lines, network fiber, cellular data 
54221 Postage Postage for mailing and shipping 
54301 Per Diem Daily meals per travel policy 
54311 Lodging Lodging/Hotels 
54331 Mileage Reimbursement for mileage at IRS rate 
54341 Airfare Airfare for classes, meetings, conferences 
54502 Other Operating Rental Honey buckets, Equipment rental 
54611 Insurance Insurance for property, liability and vehicles 
54701 Gas Natural Gas Utility 

54705 Propane 
Propane Utility (propane for BBQ is operating 
supply) 

54711 Water Water Utility (bottled water is food) 
54712 Surface Water Management Surface Water Utility  
54721 Sewer Sewer Utility 
54731 Electricity Electricity Utility 
54741 Garbage Garbage and dump fees 
54742 Hazardous Waste Disposal Disposal of used oil, antifreeze, medical waste 

54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 
Repair or maintenance of building, includes outside 
labor. 

54811 Equipment Repair/Maintenance 
Repair or maintenance of equipment, includes 
outside labor. 

54812 Equip Repair/Breath Apparatus 
Repair or maintenance of breathing apparatus, 
includes outside labor. 

 
  

117



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

47 
    

 
Account Account Title Account Description 

54813 Maintenance Agreements 
Maintenance agreements-Software/hardware, 
copier, Lifepak  

54814 
Personal Protection Equip 
Repair 

Cleaning and repair of bunker gear 

54815 SCBA Air Compressor Repair Repair of compressor, includes outside labor 

54820 Sub-Let Vehicle Repair/Maint 
Outside glass repair, staff vehicles, engine and 
transmission work 

54821 Paint & Body Work Vehicle body repair, includes outside labor 
54830 Grounds Maintenance Landscaping contract 

54901 Dues/Membership Fees 
Annual dues and membership fees, WSFC, GFOA, 
PCFC, NAEFO 

54902 Subscriptions Professional subscriptions 
54911 Contractual Services Pre-negotiated contracts for service 
54912 Fees/Permits Fees 
54921 Registration Class fees, conference fees 
54922 Certifications Certifications-Mechanic, ALS,  
54925 College Tuition Tuition for college - paramedics 
54931 Laundry (Linen) Services Shop laundry 

54941 Printing & Binding 
Custom printing, includes letterhead, envelopes, 
responder 

54961 B & O Tax Washington State business & occupation tax 

54981 Commissioner's Contingency 
Reserve requiring Board Approval for unfunded and 
unanticipated costs 

 
 
  

118



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

48 
    

Glossary of Terms 
 
Account 

A term used to identify an individual asset, liability, expenditure, revenue, or fund balance. 
 
Accrual Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting used in proprietary (enterprise and internal service) funds.  When this method 
is used, transactions are recognized when they occur.  Revenues are recognized when earned 
and expenses are recognized when incurred.  When cash is received or distributed is not a 
determining factor. 

 
Adopted Budget 

The financial plan adopted by the Board of Fire Commissioners which forms the basis for 
appropriations. 

 
Ad Valorem Tax 

A tax based on the assessed value of taxable property, also referred to as a Mill tax. 
 
Adoption 

Formal action by the Board of Fire Commissioners which sets the spending limits for the fiscal 
year. 

 
Agency Fund  

A trust fund used to account for assets Central Pierce Fire & Rescue (CPFR) holds on behalf of 
its employees. 

 
Alarm 

A call received by the dispatch center (Fire Comm), which is then related to the appropriate fire 
station for emergency response. 

 
Appropriation 

The legal authorization granted by the Board of Fire Commissioners to make expenditures and 
incur obligations.  An appropriation is usually limited in amount and as to the time when it may be 
expended. 

 
Approved Budget 

The financial plan agreed upon by the Board of Fire Commissioners and staff. 
 
Assess 

To establish an official property value for taxation purposes. 
 
Assessment 

(1) The process of making the official valuation of property for purposes of taxation.   
(2) The valuation placed upon property as a result of this process. 

 
Assets 

Property owned by a government, which has monetary value. 
 

Balanced Budget 
A budget in which estimated expenditures equal estimated revenues and surplus (fund balance). 

 
Basis of Accounting 

A term used to refer to when revenues, expenditures, expenses, and transfers, and the related 
assets and liabilities, are recognized in the accounts and reported on the financial statements.  It 
relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the nature of the measurement, on 
either the cash or accrual method. 

119



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

49 
    

 
Beginning Cash Balance 

The amount of unexpended funds carried forward from one fiscal year to the next. 
 
Benefits 

Employer contributions paid by the Fire District as part of the conditions of employment.  
Examples include: health/dental insurance, state public employees' retirement system, and 
employment security. 

 
Budget 

A financial operating plan with estimated expenditures and expended revenues for a given period. 
 
Budget Amendment 

A change to a budget adopted in accordance with state law.  A budget may be amended to 
increase expenditures/expenses at the fund level by Board approval with or without public notice 
or public hearing requirements, when unanticipated revenues occur or emergencies exist.   

 
Budget Document 

The instrument used by the budget-making authority to present a comprehensive financial 
program to the appropriating body. 

 
Budget Message 

The opening section of the budget which provides the Board of Fire Commissioners and the 
Public with a general summary of the most important aspects of the proposed budget in 
comparison with the current and prior years. 

 
Cadet Program 

A program designed by the District to allow males and females, between the ages of 16 and 19, 
the ability to get a first-hand look at the life of a firefighter by attending drills, working and 
interacting with the public, and responding with the career firefighters on calls. 

 
Capital Outlay 

Expenditures that result in the acquisition of, or addition, to capital assets. 
 
Captain 

Rank above Lieutenant.  Responsible for the overall administration of his/her assigned station, 
including operational readiness and personnel supervision. 

 
Carry Forwards 

Carry forwards result from timing of project completion.  The final expenditures need to be re-
budgeted to provide an appropriation from one fiscal year to the next in order to accomplish the 
purpose for which the funds were originally budgeted. 
 

Cash Basis of Accounting 
A basis of accounting under which transactions are recognized only when cash is received or 
disbursed. 

 
Chart of Accounts 

The classification system used by a governmental agency to organize the accounting for various 
funds. 

 
Current Taxes 

Taxes levied and due during the current fiscal period, from the time the amount of the tax levy is 
first established to the date on which a penalty for nonpayment is attached. 

  

120



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

50 
    

 
Debt Service Fund 

Governmental fund type used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment 
of, general long-term debt principal and interest. 

 
Delinquent Taxes 

Taxes remaining unpaid on and after the date on which a penalty for nonpayment is attached.  
Even though the penalty may be subsequently waived and a portion of the taxes may be abated 
or canceled, the unpaid balances continue to be delinquent taxes until abated, canceled, paid, or 
converted into tax liens. 

 
Division 

The term is used to administratively categorize the operational areas of the District. 
 
Encumbrances 

The formal accounting recognition of commitments to expend resources in the future. 
 
Expenditures 

Decreases in net financial resources, including current operating expenses and capital outlay. 
 
Fixed Assets 

Assets intended to be held or used for the long term, such as land, buildings, improvements other 
than buildings, machinery, and equipment.   

 
Fund 

An independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounting records which 
are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives. 

 
Fund Balance 

The excess of the assets of a fund over its liabilities and reserves. 
 
General Fund 

The general operating fund of the District.  It is used to account for all financial resources except 
those that are required to be accounted for in other fund types. 

 
Governmental Funds 

Funds generally used to account for tax-supported activities.  There are five different types of 
governmental funds:  the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, capital projects 
funds, and permanent funds. 

 
Hazardous Materials 

Any substance or matter that is likely to inflict injury or harm or impose great or continued risk 
unless dealt with in a manner prescribed by state and federal regulations. 
 

Internal Control 
A plan of organization for purchasing, accounting, and other financial activities, which provides 
that: (1) The duties of employees are subdivided so that no single employee handles a financial 
action from beginning to end, (2) Proper authorizations from specific responsible officials are 
obtained before key steps in the processing of a transaction are completed, and (3) Records and 
procedures are arranged appropriately to facilitate effective control 

 
Levy 

(Verb) To impose taxes, special assessments, or service charges for the support of governmental 
activities. (Noun) The total amount of taxes, special assessments, or service charges imposed by 
a government. 

  

121



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

51 
    

 
Lieutenant 

Rank above Firefighter. 
 
Line Item 

A specific item or group of similar items defined by detail in a unique account in the financial 
records. 

 
Major Fund 

A major fund is one whose revenues and expenditures are at least 10% of corresponding totals 
for all governmental funds and at least 5% of the aggregate amount for all governmental funds for 
the same item.   
 

Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting 
A basis of accounting which is used in governmental fund types (general, special revenue, debt 
service, and capital project funds).  Under it, revenues and other financial resource increments 
are recognized when they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the 
current period.  Expenditures are generally recognized when they are incurred. 

 
Object (or Object Code) 

Used as expenditure classifications.  This term applies to the article purchased or the service 
obtained.   

 
Objective 
 A specific, measurable achievement that may be accomplished within a specific time period. 
 
Operating Revenues 
 Those revenues received within the present fiscal year. 
 
Proposed Budget 

Financial and operating program prepared by the budget officer and submitted to staff for 
consideration. 

 
Paramedic  

An advanced level of training and education following the basic EMT courses.  This additional 
certification allows the individual to administer medications, defibrillate, and perform advanced 
airway care. 

 
Reserve Fund 

A fund used to segregate a portion of equity as legally set aside for a specific future use. 
 
Revenues 

Monies received or anticipated to be received during the year to finance District services.  It 
includes such items as property taxes, interest income, and miscellaneous revenue. 

 
Special Revenue Fund 

Governmental fund type used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes. 

 
Tax Rate 

The amount of property tax paid by property owners for each $1,000 of the property's assessed 
value.  This rate is computed by dividing the total amount of the tax levies by the total assessed 
value of the District. 

  

122



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

PROGRAM BUDGETS 
 

52 
    

 
Travel Time (or Response Time) 

The time between the turnout time and the time the initial company arrives at the scene of an 
emergency. 

Turnout Time 
The time between personnel being alerted by the dispatch center of an emergency to the time 
that they are radio responding to the incident. 

Unappropriated Fund Balance 
Where the fund balance at the close of the preceding year is not included in the annual budget, 
this term designates that portion of the current fiscal year’s estimated revenues, which has not 
been appropriated.  Where the fund balance of the preceding year is included, this term 
designates the estimated fund balance at the end of the fiscal period. 

 
 

123



CPFR – LEVY EQUIVALENT WITH FBC
2019-2023

Revenue Source
2019
Rate

2020
Rate

2021
Rate

2022
Rate

2023
Rate*

Property Tax Levy $ 0.84 $ 1.00 $  0.94 $  0.83 $  0.71

EMS Tax Levy 0.42 0.40 0.37 0.33 0.50

FBC 0.86 0.84 0.81 0.75 0.72

GO Debt 0.10 0.09 0.08 0.07 0.06

TOTAL Levy  and 
Levy Equivalent $ 2.22 $ 2.33 $ 2.20 $ 1.98 $ 1.99

% of Op Budget 35.1% 36.6% 37.8% 35.9% 35.3%

*2022 Includes 5.0 % estimated increase to FBC and preliminary 16.3% increase in AV1 11/14/2022

124



2023 CPFR LEVY EQUIVALENTS –
Comparison to Other Jurisdictions (2022)

Revenue
Source

East
Pierce 22

South
Pierce 17

Gig 
Harbor 5

Central 
Pierce

Graham 
21

Riverside 
14

Orting 
18

West
Pierce 3

Property Tax Levy $ 1.07 $ 1.31 $ 1.37 $ 0.71 $ 1.00 $ 1.12 $ 1.00 $ 1.36

EMS Levy 0.50 0.44 0.44 0.50 0.45 0.46 0.44 0.45

M&O Levy - - - - - 0.61 - 0.90

FBC - - - 0.72 0.73 - 1.15 -

GO Bond Debt 0.10 - - 0.06 - - - -

TOTAL Levy and Levy 
Equivalent $ 1.67 $ 1.75 $ 1.81 $ 1.99 $ 2.18 $ 2.19 $ 2.59 $ 2.71

2 11/14/2022* 2022 data used for other Districts, 2023 not yet available 125



Resolution No. 22-08 – 2023 Regular Levy  Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS FOR CENTRAL 
PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, REQUESTING 2023 
(COLLECTION YEAR) HIGHEST LAWFUL LEVY FOR THE REGULAR PROPERTY 

TAX LEVY 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue has 
properly given notice of the public hearing held October 24th, 2022 to consider the 
District's budget for the 2023 calendar year, pursuant to RCW 84.55.120; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, after 
hearing and duly considering all relevant evidence and testimony presented, determined 
that Central Pierce Fire & Rescue requires an increase in property tax revenue from the 
previous year, in addition to that resulting from the addition of new construction and 
improvements to property and any increase in the value of state-assessed property, in 
order to discharge the expected expenses and obligations of the District and in its best 
interest; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the District’s actual regular levy amount from the previous year was 
$28,852,746.89; and, 
 

WHEREAS, such amount represents the actual amount levied, including refunds; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District's aggregate assessed valuation has been preliminarily 
certified at $41,952,544,990; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to RCW 84.52.125 it is the intent of the fire district 
commissioners to protect the district's tax levy from prorationing under RCW 
84.52.010(2), by imposing up to a total of twenty-five cents ($0.25) per thousand dollars 
of assessed valuation of the tax levies authorized under RCW 52.16.140 and RCW 
52.16.160, or either of them, outside of the five dollars and ninety cents per thousand 
dollars of valuation limitation established under RCW 84.52.043(2), if those taxes would 
otherwise be prorated under RCW 84.52.010(2)(e); and, 
  
 Further, pursuant to RCW 84.55.092, it is the intent of the fire district 
commissioners to protect the fire district's future levy capacity.  Therefore, in any year in 
which the district reduces the regular tax levy below the amount of levy to which the district 
is entitled by law, consistent with existing voter authorizations and the limitations of the 
state constitution and statutes, it is the district's intent to fully preserve future levy capacity 
as the aforesaid statute allows.  The county assessor is therefore requested to set the 
regular property tax levy at the amount which would be allowed under RCW 84.55, as if 
the regular property tax for the district for taxes due in prior years (beginning with 1986) 
had been set for the full or maximum amount authorized under the law; and 
 

126



Resolution No. 22-08 – 2023 Regular Levy  Page 2 of 2 

  WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue attests 
that the District population is approximately 230,339;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners for 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue that an increase in the regular property tax levy is hereby 
authorized for the levy to be collected in the 2023 tax year.  The dollar amount of the 
increase over the actual levy amount from the previous year shall be $264,282.06 which 
is a percentage increase of 0.91597% from the previous year.  This increase is exclusive 
of additional revenue resulting from new construction, improvements to property, newly 
constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state assessed property, any 
annexations that have occurred and refunds made.   
 
 ADOPTED, at the Public Meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, this _____ 
day of November, 2022, by a majority of the members.   
 
 
             
Matt Holm, Chairman    Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner  
 
 
             
Rich Coleman, Commissioner    Bob Willis, Commissioner 
 
 
        
Dale Mitchell, Commissioner 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Tanya Robacker, District Secretary 
 

127



Resolution No. 22-09 – 2023 EMS Levy  Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS FOR CENTRAL 
PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, REQUESTING $0.50 

LEVY FOR 2023 (COLLECTION YEAR) FOR THE EMS PROPERTY TAX LEVY 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue has 
properly given notice of the public hearing held October 24th, 2022 to consider Central 
Pierce Fire & Rescue's budget for the 2023 calendar year, pursuant to RCW 84.55.120; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, after 
hearing and duly considering all relevant evidence and testimony presented, determined 
that Central Pierce Fire & Rescue requires an increase in property tax revenue from the 
previous year, in addition to that resulting from the addition of new construction and 
improvements to property and any increase in the value of state-assessed property, in 
order to discharge the expected expenses and obligations of the District and in its best 
interest; and, 
  
  WHEREAS, the District’s actual EMS levy amount from the previous year was 
$11,377,564.28; and, 
 

WHEREAS, such amount represents the actual amount levied, including refunds; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue attests 

that the District population is approximately 230,339;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners for 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue that an increase in the EMS property tax levy is hereby 
authorized for the levy to be collected in the 2023 tax year.  The EMS levy shall be levied 
at the rate of $0.50 per $1,000 of assessed valuation as authorized by the voters’ approval 
on August 2nd 2022.    
  

128



Resolution No. 22-09 – 2023 EMS Levy  Page 2 of 2 

 
ADOPTED, at the Public Meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, this _____ day of 
November 2022, by a majority of the members.   
 
 
 
             
Matt Holm, Chairman    Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner  
 
 
             
Rich Coleman, Commissioner    Bob Willis, Commissioner 
 
 
        
Dale Mitchell, Commissioner 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Tanya Robacker, District Secretary 
 

129



RESOLUTION NO. 22-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS FOR CENTRAL 
PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, IMPOSING A BENEFIT 
CHARGE ON IMPROVEMENTS TO REAL PROPERTY WITHIN THE DISTRICT FOR 

CALENDAR YEAR 2023 
 

 WHEREAS, the District is authorized by Chapter 52.18 RCW to establish, impose, 
and collect a benefit charge on improvements to real property located within the District,  
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the voters of the District have authorized the District to impose a fire 
benefit charge; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 52.18.060(2) a public hearing was held on October 
24th, 2022 to review and establish the benefit charge to be imposed for calendar year 
2023; and, 
 
  WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners, having heard and considered the 
testimony at the public hearing, such testimony being supportive of the continuation of 
the Fire Benefit Charge, deem it in the best interests of the District to establish the Fire 
Benefit Charge for 2023; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners for 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue that:  The benefit charge to be collected in 2023 is hereby 
established in the total amount of $30,376,500. 
 
 ADOPTED, at the Public Meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, this ____ 
day of November, 2022, by a majority of the members.   
 
 
             
Matt Holm, Chairman    Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner 
 
 
             
Rich Coleman, Commissioner   Bob Willis, Commissioner 
 
 
        
Dale Mitchell, Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Tanya Robacker, District Secretary 

130



   

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-11 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & 

RESCUE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. That the County Assessor has notified the Commissioners of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
that the assessed valuation of real properties lying within the boundaries of said District for 
the calendar year 2023 is $41,915,447,904. 

2. That the fund summary below hereby is adopted as the budget of Central Pierce Fire & 
Rescue for the fiscal year 2023.  Estimated resources for each separate fund for the year 
2023 are set forth in summary form below, and are hereby appropriated for expenditure at the 
fund level during the year 2023: 

 
Fund Amount 
General Fund (001) $   62,277,907 
EMS Special Revenue Fund (101)       28,846,273 
Equipment Replacement (001-015) 
Facilities Fund (001-050) 
GEMT SRF (102) 
GO Debt Fund (201)     
Capital Projects Fund (301)    
HRA/Flex (630)                                                     

        4,631,213 
        1,322,100    
      13,445,236 
        2,433,213 
      10,783,333 
             50,000 

   Total               $ 123,789,275 
 
3. That the Honorable County Council of Pierce County, Washington, be and is hereby requested 

to make a levy for 2023 for said Central Pierce Fire & Rescue of $83,646,075. 
4. That the County Treasurer of Pierce County, Washington, be and is hereby authorized and 

directed to deposit and sequester the monies received from the collection of the tax levy 
specified in Section 3 above in the amounts and funds specified below: 

A. $ 60,236,589 into the Current Expense Fund of said District 
B.        -0-           into the Reserve Fund of said District 
C.        -0-          into Registered Warrant Fund 
D.      2,433,213   into the GO Bond Fund 
E. _ 20,976,273  into the EMS Fund of said District 

5. That one copy of this resolution be delivered to the County Council and Auditor of Pierce 
County, Washington. 

Adopted at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, this 14th 
day of November, 2022. 
 

 

             

Matt Holm, Chairman     Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner  

 

 

             

Rich Coleman, Commissioner     Bob Willis, Commissioner 

 

 

       ATTEST:                       

Dale Mitchell, Commissioner    Tanya Robacker, District Secretary 

131



   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
2023 LEVY CERTIFICATION 

 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY OF PIERCE 
 

In accordance with RCW 84.52.020, I, Tanya Robacker, District Secretary for Central Pierce 
Fire & Rescue, do hereby certify to the Pierce County legislative authority that the Board of Fire 
Commissioners of said district requests that the following levy amounts be collected in 2023 as 
provided in the District’s budget, which was adopted following a public hearing held on the 24th 
day of October, 2022: 

A. CURRENT EXPENSE FUNDS: 
1. REGULAR LEVY 

a) Regular Levy    $   29,814,145.46 
b) Plus Refunds- Regular Levy  $          45,943.39 
c) Total Levy    $   29,860,088.85 

 

2. EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES   
a) EMS Levy    $    20,958,063.34 
b) Plus Refunds-EMS   $           18,209.16 
c) Total Levy    $    20,976,272.50 

 

B. RESERVE FUND     $       -0- 
C. REGISTERED WARRANT FUND   $       -0- 
D. G.O. BOND FUND Excess Levy    

a) Bond Levy    $      2,427,201.31 
b) Plus Refunds-EMS   $             6,011.69 
c) Total Levy    $      2,433,213.00 

 

E. FIRE BENEFIT CHARGE    $   30,376,500.00 

F. TOTAL TAXES REQUIRED    $   83,646,074.35 
 

 

Given under my hand and the official seal of said District on this 14th day of November, 2022. 
 
 

 

      _______________________________ 

      District Secretary 

132



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date    November 14, 2022 
Item Title:    Creation of Community Health Worker Pay Range 
Attachments:    Addendum to 2022 Non-Represented, Exempt, Non-Uniformed Appendix A 
Submitted by    HRD Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  
“To approve the Community Health Worker Pay Range effective November 14, 2022.” 
 
 
SUMMARY:   
As you are aware, you granted Chief Morrow permission to implement the new CARES position 
prior to 2023.  With that approval, staff created a job description, conducted a market study, and 
created a pay range based on the results of that study.   
 
Attached you will find an addendum to the 2022 salary schedule you already approved, that 
adds in this salary range.   
 
Myself and Chief Morrow will be available at the meeting in case you should have any 
questions. 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
A budget amendment will be created for all non-budgeted items after Board approval. 
 

133



Central Pierce Fire & Rescue
Non-Represented/Non-Uniformed/Exempt
Appendix A - 2022 Salary Schedule

January 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022

Monthly Annual 40 Hr/Wk
Position Salary Salary Hourly

Community Health Worker Step A 7,300$            87,600$      42.12$      
New position effective 11.14.2022 Step B 7,665$            91,980$      44.22$      

Step C 8,049$            96,588$      46.44$      
Step D 8,452$            101,424$    48.76$      
Step E 8,875$            106,500$    51.20$      

Initials Reviewed By Date

___________ Fire Chief ___________

___________ HR Director ___________

___________ Chairman/Board ___________

Addendum - 11.14.2022

134



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date    November 14, 2022 
Item Title:    Creation of Help Desk Supervisor Pay Range 
Attachments:    Addendum to 2022 Non-Represented, Exempt, Non-Uniformed Appendix A 
Submitted by    HRD Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:     
“To approve the Help Desk Supervisor Pay Range effective November 14, 2022.” 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
As part of the 2023 budget before you tonight, there is an addition of 1.00 FTE in the IT 
Consortium for a Help Desk Supervisor.   
 
In preparation of recruiting for that position to start as early in 2023 as possible, staff created a 
job description and completed a market survey.  Attached to this AIS is the proposed range for 
that position.   
 
Myself and Chief Morrow will be available at the meeting in case you should have any 
questions. 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
Contained in the 2023 budget. 
 

135



Central Pierce Fire & Rescue
Non-Represented/Non-Uniformed/Exempt
Appendix A - 2022 Salary Schedule

January 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022

Monthly Annual 40 Hr/Wk
Position Salary Salary Hourly

Help Desk Supervisor Step A 8,500$            102,000$    49.04$      
New position effective 1.1.2023 Step B 8,925$            107,100$    51.49$      

Step C 9,372$            112,464$    54.07$      
Step D 9,841$            118,092$    56.78$      
Step E 10,334$          124,008$    59.62$      

Initials Reviewed By Date

___________ Fire Chief ___________

___________ HR Director ___________

___________ Chairman/Board ___________

2022 Rates, would add % for 2023

136



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 
Agenda Date    November 14, 2022 
Item Title:    Retroactive Increase to 1.1.2022 for Non-Represented/Non-Uniformed and OPEIU  
Attachments:    Revised 1.1.2022 Appendix A’s for Non-Rep, Non-Uniformed and OPEIU 
Submitted by    HRD Washo 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Motion: To approve the Revised Appendix A Salary Schedules, retroactive to 

January 1, 2022, for Non-Represented/Non-Uniformed and for OPEIU 
personnel. 

 
 
Over the term of the last round of negotiations, our goal was to align all personnel to the same 
CPI measurement.  The change began with the Firefighter’s and Chief’s contracts earlier this 
year, and has been followed up by the two contracts in front of you tonight (OPEIU and 726 
Non-Uniformed). 
 
There are two final pieces to accomplish this goal.   
 

1. Align the two groups who had 2022 salary schedules completed prior to this change – 
Non-Represented/Non-Uniformed and OPEIU – to the same CPI measurement 

2. Retroactively apply these changes for 2022 
 
Attached you will find revised Appendix A Salary Schedules, retroactive back to January 1, 
2022, for both the Non-Represented/Non-Uniformed and OPEIU personnel.     
 
Myself and Chief Morrow will be available at the meeting in case you should have any 
questions. 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
A budget amendment will be created for all non-budgeted items after Board approval. 
 

137



Central Pierce Fire & Rescue
Non-Represented/Non-Uniformed/Exempt
Appendix A - 2022 Salary Schedule

January 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022

Monthly Annual 40 Hr/Wk
Position Salary Salary Hourly

Finance Director Step A 12,705$          152,460$    73.30$     
Step B 13,341$          160,092$    76.97$     
Step C 14,009$          168,108$    80.82$     
Step D 14,710$          176,520$    84.87$     
Step E 15,446$          185,352$    89.11$     

Human Resources Director Step A 11,433$          137,196$    65.96$     
Step B 12,005$          144,060$    69.26$     
Step C 12,606$          151,272$    72.73$     
Step D 13,237$          158,844$    76.37$     
Step E 13,899$          166,788$    80.19$     

Information Technology Director Step A 10,894$          130,728$    62.85$     
Step B 11,439$          137,268$    65.99$     
Step C 12,011$          144,132$    69.29$     
Step D 12,612$          151,344$    72.76$     
Step E 13,243$          158,916$    76.40$     

CARES Program Manager Step A 9,847$            118,164$    56.81$     
Step B 10,340$          124,080$    59.65$     
Step C 10,857$          130,284$    62.64$     
Step D 11,400$          136,800$    65.77$     
Step E 11,970$          143,640$    69.06$     

Controller Step A 8,364$            100,368$    48.25$     
No change from original range Step B 8,783$            105,396$    50.67$     
created in 2022 through a market study Step C 9,223$            110,676$    53.21$     

Step D 9,685$            116,220$    55.88$     
Step E 10,170$          122,040$    58.67$     

Crisis Intervention Coordinator Step A 7,885$            94,620$      45.49$     
No change from original range Step B 8,280$            99,360$      47.77$     
created in 2022 through a market study Step C 8,694$            104,328$    50.16$     

Step D 9,129$            109,548$    52.67$     
Step E 9,586$            115,032$    55.30$     

Senior Human Resources Analyst Step A 7,067$            84,804$      40.77$     
Step B 7,421$            89,052$      42.81$     
Step C 7,793$            93,516$      44.96$     
Step D 8,183$            98,196$      47.21$     
Step E 8,593$            103,116$    49.58$     

Human Resources Analyst Step A 6,349$            76,188$      36.63$     
Step B 6,667$            80,004$      38.46$     
Step C 7,001$            84,012$      40.39$     
Step D 7,352$            88,224$      42.42$     
Step E 7,720$            92,640$      44.54$     

Deferred Comp Monthly Annual
No Match Required 250.00$        3,000$            

Longevity Schedule (monthly)
Finance Dir 

(Step E)
HR Director 

(Step E)
IT Director    
(Step B)

CARES 
Manager 
(Step E)

Controller 
(Step A)

Crisis 
Intervention 
Coordinator

(Step C)

Senior HR 
Analyst 
(Step E)

 HR Analyst 
(Step A)

5 - 9 years @ 2% of current wage 309$             278$              229$           240$        168$            174$            172$            127$       
10 - 14 years @ 4% of current wage 618$             556$              458$           479$        335$            348$            344$            254$       
15 - 19 years @ 6% of current wage 927$             834$              687$           719$        502$            522$            516$            381$       
20 - 24 years @ 8 % of current wage 1,236$          1,112$            916$           958$        670$            696$            688$            508$       
25 - 29 years @11% of current wage 1,700$          1,529$            1,259$        1,317$     921$            957$            946$            699$       
30+ years @ 13% of current wage 2,008$          1,807$            1,488$        1,557$     1,088$         1,131$         1,118$         826$       

Hours worked per year 2,080
Holiday hours per year 112

Sick leave hours per month 10

VEBA contribution = $4,000
Medical Cap Initials Reviewed By Date

100% for 2022 ___________ Fire Chief ___________
___________ HR Director ___________

___________ Chairman/Board ___________

6.3% Base Salary Increase
Effective 11-14-2022 retroactively

138



Central Pierce Fire & Rescue
Non-Represented/Non-Uniformed/Hourly
Appendix A - 2022 Salary Schedule 6.3% Base Salary Increase

Effective 11.14.2022 retroactively
January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Monthly Annual 40 Hr/Wk
Position Salary Salary Hourly

Central Stores Manager Step A 6,627$          79,524$          38.23$       
Step B 6,826$          81,912$          39.38$       
Step C 7,031$          84,372$          40.56$       
Step D 7,242$          86,904$          41.78$       
Step E 7,460$          89,520$          43.04$       

Runner (Part-Time) Step A 3,353$          40,236$          19.34$       
(Eligible for base salary only) Step B 3,454$          41,448$          19.93$       

Step C 3,558$          42,696$          20.53$       
Step D 3,665$          43,980$          21.14$       
Step E 3,775$          45,300$          21.78$       

Main Runner/Purchasing Assist Step A 3,450$          41,400$          19.90$       
Step B 3,554$          42,648$          20.50$       
Step C 3,661$          43,932$          21.12$       
Step D 3,771$          45,252$          21.76$       
Step E 3,885$          46,620$          22.41$       

Hourly
Purchasing Manager Acting Pay - Main Runner 15.82$          

Deferred Comp Monthly Annual
No Match required 250.00$        3,000$            

Longevity Schedule (Monthly)
CS Mgr (Step 

E)
Main Runner 

(Step E)
5 - 9 years @ 2% of current wage 150$             78$                 
10 - 14 years @ 4% of current wage 299$             156$               
15 - 19 years @ 6% of current wage 448$             234$               
20 - 24 years @ 8% of current wage 597$             311$               
25 - 29 years @ 11% of current wage 821$             428$               
30+ years @ 13% of current wage 970$             506$               

VEBA Contribtuion - $4000

Hours worked per year 2,080
Holiday hours per year 112

Medical Cap
100% for 2022 Initials Reviewed By Date

___________ Fire Chief ___________

___________ HR Director ___________

___________ Chairman/Board ___________

139



Central Pierce Fire & Rescue

OPEIU Bargaining Unit

Appendix A ‐ 2022 Salary Schedule

Positions Monthly Annual 40/Hr Week

Salary Salary Hrly Rate

5% Steps from Base Step

Accounting Clerk 1‐12 months 3,941$                 47,292$                            22.74$                

13‐24 months 4,139$                 49,668$                            23.88$                

25 ‐ 36 months 4,346$                 52,152$                            25.07$                

37‐48 months 4,564$                 54,768$                            26.33$                

49‐60+ months 4,793$                 57,516$                            27.65$                

Support Specialist 1‐12 months 4,549$                 54,588$                            26.24$                

13‐24 months 4,777$                 57,324$                            27.56$                

25 ‐ 36 months 5,016$                 60,192$                            28.94$                

37‐48 months 5,267$                 63,204$                            30.39$                

49‐60+ months 5,531$                 66,372$                            31.91$                

Executive Assistant 1‐12 months 5,887$                 70,644$                            33.96$                

13‐24 months 6,182$                 74,184$                            35.67$                

25 ‐ 36 months 6,492$                 77,904$                            37.45$                

37‐48 months 6,817$                 81,804$                            39.33$                

49‐60+ months 7,158$                 85,896$                            41.30$                

Purchasing Analyst 1‐12 months 5,921$                 71,052$                            34.16$                

No changes from original range 13‐24 months 6,218$                 74,616$                            35.87$                

created in 2022 through a market study 25 ‐ 36 months 6,529$                 78,348$                            37.67$                

37‐48 months 6,856$                 82,272$                            39.55$                

49‐60+ months 7,199$                 86,388$                            41.53$                

Payroll Analyst 1‐12 months 5,413$                 64,956$                            31.23$                

13‐24 months 5,684$                 68,208$                            32.79$                

25 ‐ 36 months 5,969$                 71,628$                            34.44$                

37‐48 months 6,268$                 75,216$                            36.16$                

49‐60+ months 6,582$                 78,984$                            37.97$                

Payroll Coordinator 1‐12 months 6,737$                 80,844$                            38.87$                

No changes from original range 13‐24 months 7,074$                 84,888$                            40.81$                

created in 2022 through a market study 25 ‐ 36 months 7,428$                 89,136$                            42.85$                

37‐48 months 7,800$                 93,600$                            45.00$                

49‐60+ months 8,190$                 98,280$                            47.25$                

Senior Accountant 1‐12 months 7,026$                 84,312$                            40.53$                

13‐24 months 7,378$                 88,536$                            42.57$                

2.1% Market Adjustment 25 ‐ 36 months 7,747$                 92,964$                            44.69$                

37‐48 months 8,135$                 97,620$                            46.93$                

49‐60+ months 8,542$                 102,504$                          49.28$                

Operations Analyst 1‐12 months 7,530$                 90,360$                            43.44$                

No changes from original range 13‐24 months 7,907$                 94,884$                            45.62$                

reclassed in 2022 through a market study 25 ‐ 36 months 8,303$                 99,636$                            47.90$                

37‐48 months 8,719$                 104,628$                          50.30$                

49‐60+ months 9,155$                 109,860$                          52.82$                

Annual Hours 2,080                               

Deferred Comp

No match required $150/month $1,800/annual

Match required $100/month $1,200/annual

Longevity Schedule

Completion of 5 years 2% of current salary Medical Cap: $2,084/mo

Completion of 10 years 4% of current salary HRA/VEBA: $4600/annual

Completion of 15 years 6% of current salary

Completion of 20 years 8% of current salary

Completion of 25 years 10% of current salary

Completion of 30 years 12% of current salary

6.3% Base Salary Increase

Effective 11.14.2022 retroactively

140



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Date    November 14, 2022 
Item Title:    OPEIU 2023-2025 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
Attachments:    Redlined 2023-2025 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
Submitted by:   HRD Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Motion: To approve the 2023-2025 OPEIU Collective Bargaining Agreement.   
 
 
Please see the attached redlined version of the OPEIU 2023-2025 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement for Board approval.  The 2023 Schedule “A” for salaries will be presented at a later 
date for adoption.   
 
Chief Morrow and I will be at the meeting to answer any questions you may have. 
 
Thank you.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
A budget amendment will be created for all non-budgeted items after Board approval. 
 

141



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Agreement 

 

by and between 

 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

 

and 

 

Office and Professional Employees International Union 

Local No. 8 

 

 

January 1, 2020 2023 – December 31, 20222025 
   

142



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
2 

 

OPEIU, LOCAL NO. 8 
Table of Contents 

 
PREAMBLE ................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

ARTICLE 1  RECOGNITION ................................................................................................................................. 3 

ARTICLE 2  UNION MEMBERSHIP/AUTHORIZED PAYROLL DEDUCTION ........................................................... 4 

ARTICLE 3  NON‐DISCRIMINATION .................................................................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE 4  UNION BUSINESS ............................................................................................................................. 5 

ARTICLE 5  LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ............................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE 6  EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES ............................................................................................................... 7 

ARTICLE 7  MANAGEMENT RIGHTS ................................................................................................................... 7 

ARTICLE 8  HOURS OF WORK ............................................................................................................................ 8 

ARTICLE 9  WAGES ............................................................................................................................................ 9 

ARTICLE 10  RETIREMENT/DEFERRED COMPENSATION ............................................................................... 1211 

ARTICLE 11  PAY OUT OF CLASSIFICATION PAY ................................................................................................. 12 

ARTICLE 12  MEDICAL AND DENTAL COVERAGE ........................................................................................... 1312 

ARTICLE 13  VACATION ACCRUAL ................................................................................................................. 1413 

ARTICLE 14  HOLIDAYS ...................................................................................................................................... 15 

ARTICLE 15  SICK LEAVE/PAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE PROGRAMS ....................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 16  EMERGENCY LEAVE ................................................................................................................... 1816 

ARTICLE 17  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ............................................................................................................... 1817 

ARTICLE 18  REQUESTING LEAVE (COMP OR VACATION OR PERSONAL FLOATING HOLIDAYS) ................... 1917 

ARTICLE 19  JURY DUTY/WITNESS SERVICES ................................................................................................. 1917 

ARTICLE 20  EMERGENCY DECLARATION ...................................................................................................... 1918 

ARTICLE 21  TERMINATION / RESIGNATION/LEAVE BUY‐OUT ...................................................................... 2018 

ARTICLE 22  EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT ............................................................................................. 2019 

ARTICLE 23  POSTING OF JOBS/TESTING/PROBATIONARY PERIODS ............................................................ 2019 

ARTICLE 24  SENIORITY/LAYOFF/RECALL ...................................................................................................... 2220 

ARTICLE 25  PERFORMANCE OF DUTY .......................................................................................................... 2321 

ARTICLE 26  WELLNESS PROGRAM ............................................................................................................... 2322 

ARTICLE 27  UNIFORMS ................................................................................................................................ 2322 

ARTICLE 28  LEAVE OF ABSENCE ................................................................................................................... 2422 

ARTICLE 29  PROCEDURE FOR CHANGING RULES AND REGULATIONS ......................................................... 2422 

ARTICLE 30  SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS ................................................................................................. 2422 

ARTICLE 31  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ........................................................................................................... 2423 

ARTICLE 32  SAVINGS CLAUSE ....................................................................................................................... 2725 

ARTICLE 33  BINDING ON SUCCESSORS ........................................................................................................ 2725 

ARTICLE 34  TERM OF AGREEMENT .............................................................................................................. 2725 

 

143



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
3 

 

PREAMBLE   
 

This Agreement is entered into by and between CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE, hereinafter 
referred to as the “District”, and LOCAL NO. 8, Office and Professional Employees International 
Union, hereinafter referred to as the “Union.” 
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to achieve and maintain harmonious relations between the 
District and Union employees, to provide equitable and peaceful adjustments of differences 
which may arise, and to establish proper standards of wages, hours and other conditions of 
employment. 
 
The Fire District and its employees are to regard themselves as public servants, and are to be 
governed by the highest ideals of honor and integrity in all their public conduct, in order that 
they may merit the respect and confidence of the general public. 
 
ARTICLE 1  RECOGNITION    
 
1.1 The District recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining representative of all 

regular administrative support employees of the District, excluding the positions of 
supervisors, exempt employees, Information Services, Purchasing/Warehouse staff, 
building maintenance and runner personnel, and other represented employees. 

 
1.1.1  Regular: Regular employees are those employees who are regularly scheduled to 

work forty (40) hours per week. 
 
  1.1.2  Permanent Part Time: Permanent part‐time employees are those  

  employees who are scheduled to work less than forty (40) hours per week, and 
shall be entitled to holidays, vacation, sick leave, physical fitness hours and 
bereavement leave on a pro‐rata basis.   
 

1.1.3  Temporary: Temporary employees are hired for a limited period not to exceed 
six (6) months for peak workload conditions, maternity leave, leave of absence 
or new job creation.  Qualified part‐time employees may be offered added hours 
prior to hiring such temporary employees.  Temporary employees are not 
eligible for any benefits provided under this Agreement except Article 9, Wages.  
Temporary employees may be subject to a work permit from the Union Office.  
The District will notify the Union of temporary employees within five (5) calendar 
days of their hire.  Temporary assignments may be extended beyond the six (6) 
months by mutual agreement between the District and the Union.  The District 
has the right to fill temporary vacancies through employment agencies as 
needed, utilizing the agency's established pay scales. 

 
1.1.4  Interns/Work Study Students:  Interns and Work Study students are high school 

or college students hired to assist in entry level clerical functions.  The District 
will notify the Union of interns or work study students.  It is not the intent of the 
District to utilize interns or work study students to displace bargaining unit 

144



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
4 

 

members through layoff or hours reduction.  Interns/work study students are 
not eligible for any benefits.   

 
 
ARTICLE 2  UNION MEMBERSHIP/AUTHORIZED PAYROLL DEDUCTION  

 
2.1  New Employee Orientation. The District shall provide a copy of this Agreement to each 

employee upon entering the bargaining unit. The District will provide a list to the Union 
via electronic mail of new employees (including their name, job classification, FTE, and 
division). A representative of the Union will be permitted up to thirty (30) minutes to 
meet with new employees during the first ninety (90) days of employment pursuant to 
RCW 41.56.037.  No employee will be required to participate in that meeting.  
 

2.2   The District will deduct an amount equal to the Union's uniform monthly dues from the 
pay of each employee who has elected to be a member of the Union, and who 
voluntarily executes a wage assignment authorization form. When filed with the District, 
the authorization form will be honored in accordance with its terms unless an employee 
requests that the District stop deducting dues, in which case the employee shall inform 
the Union and the Union shall inform the District to stop deducting dues. Deductions 
will be transmitted to the Union by check payable monthly. Upon issuance and 
transmission of a check to the Union, the District's responsibility shall cease with respect 
to deductions covered thereby. The Union and each employee authorizing the 
assignment of wages for the payment of Union dues hereby undertake to indemnify and 
hold the District harmless from all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that 
may arise against the District for or on account of any deduction made from the wages 
of such employee. 

 
2.3  The District shall deduct the sum specified from the pay of each member of the Union 

who voluntarily executes a voluntary political action contribution authorization form.  
The amount will be deducted once each month and will be transmitted to the Union 
office.  The Union agrees that neither employees nor the Union representatives will 
solicit for political action fund deductions in work areas or on work time. 
 

2.4  The Employer shall supply to the Union monthly a list by email of all employees covered 
by this Agreement including their classification, rate of pay and gross pay, hours worked, 
FTE status, home address, work email address, home email address and personal phone 
number. 

 
2.5  Hardship Fund Deduction. The District shall deduct the specific sum from the pay of any 

member of the bargaining unit who voluntarily executes an OPEIU Local 8 Hardship 
Fund Check‐Off Authorization form. When filed with the District, the authorization form 
will be honored in accordance with its terms. The authorization form will remain in 
effect until revoked in writing by the employee. The amount deducted and a roster of all 
employees using payroll deduction for voluntary Hardship Fund contributions will be 
promptly transmitted to the Union by separate check payable to its order. Upon 

145



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
5 

 

issuance and transmission of a check to the Union, the District’s responsibility shall 
cease with respect to such deductions. The Union and each employee authorizing the 
assignment of wages for payment of voluntary contributions to the Union’s Hardship 
Fund hereby undertake to indemnify and hold the District harmless from all claims, 
demands, suits or other forms of liability that may arise against the District for or on 
behalf of any deduction made from wages of such employee.  

 
2.56  The District agrees not to unlawfully discriminate against any employee for or because 

of membership in the Union.  Such non‐discrimination policy also applies to any 
activities conducted by a member of the Union on behalf of said Union. 

 
2.67  All references to employees in this contract designates both sexes, and wherever the 

female gender is used, it shall be construed to include male and female  
  employees. 
 
 
ARTICLE 3  NON‐DISCRIMINATION 
 
3.1  The District and the Union agree that conditions of employment shall be consistent with 

applicable municipal, state and federal laws regarding non‐discrimination. 

3.2  The District and the Union agree that the provisions of this agreement shall be applied 

equally to all employees covered hereby without regard to age, sex, creed, religion, 

color, national origin, marital status, pregnancy, veteran status, the presence of any 

physical, mental or sensory disability, or perceived or actual sexual orientation, or any 

other criteria established by state or federal statutes, rules or regulations.  No employee 

covered by this agreement shall be discriminated against because of membership in the 

Union or activities on behalf of the Union. 

3.3  All references to employees in this contract designates all genders.  
 
 
ARTICLE 4  UNION BUSINESS   
 
4.1  In addition to the Local Union Representative, the Union shall have the right to 

designate one (1) shop steward and one (1) alternate shop steward.  The Union shall 
notify the District of the name of the Shop Steward, and alternate Shop Steward and will 
provide notice of any changes.  The Shop Steward or alternate shall be allowed to 
perform the following Union business without loss of pay: 

 
4.1.1  Meetings held for the purpose of contract administration and negotiations, 

which are held during the employee’s normal working hours. 
 
4.1.2  Processing of grievances up to Step 4. 
 

146



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
6 

 

4.1.3  The Shop Steward or alternate will be allowed a reasonable amount of time 
during working hours to investigate grievances or other such Union business, 
except that such activity shall not take precedence over normal job duties. 

 
4.2  Bulletin Board.  The District shall provide reasonable space for the use of a Union 

bulletin board in an accessible and convenient location in each applicable fire station.  
Such bulletin boards shall be for the posting of official Union business. 
 

4.3  Union representatives of the Union shall be granted permission to visit work locations of 
the employees covered by this Agreement at any reasonable time or location for the 
purpose of administering this Agreement or investigating possible grievances.  Such 
visitations shall not interfere with the normal operation of the District.  Organizing, 
campaigning or solicitation shall not be conducted during work hours and/or at work 
locations. 

 
4.4  Monthly and/or special meetings may be held in fire district facilities when available.   

Notification to hold meetings in the fire station must be made to the Fire Chief or their 
designee in advance of the meeting.  Meetings shall be held after normal business 
hours, and shall be limited to twelve (12) per year.   

 
4.5  A designated bargaining unit representative shall be allowed to participate in various 

committees of the Fire District that affect the bargaining unit. 
 
4.6  The District agrees to release up to two (2) employees for the first five (5) meetings, and 

up to one (1) employee for meetings beyond the fifth (5th) meeting, in addition to the 
designated Steward, to attend negotiating meetings with the District without loss of pay 
relative to securing contract negotiation and/or renewal provided that any time in 
excess of thirty (30) minutes at the start of a scheduled meeting that is spent in Union 
caucus preparing for actual face to face negotiations shall be unpaid.   

 
4.7  Union‐designated employees may be allowed time off without pay to attend Union‐

sponsored meetings, training sessions, conferences, and assemblies.  The employee may 
use accumulated compensatory time, vacation leave, or leave without pay.  The Union 
will provide the Chief with a written list of the names of the employees it is requesting 
attend the above‐listed activities at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the date of 
event/activity. 

 
 
ARTICLE 5  LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE     
 
5.1  In order to address issues of mutual concern between the District and Union, a 

committee shall be formed consisting of up to three (3) representatives of the Union 
and up to three (3) representatives of management.  The committee shall meet at least 
semi‐annually or more frequently if mutually agreed for the purpose of seeking 
resolution on issues of common concern.  The employee member shall receive no loss of 

147



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
7 

 

pay or overtime for participation in such meetings.  Meetings shall be no longer than 
one (1) hour unless extended by mutual agreement of the District and Union.  

 
 
ARTICLE 6  EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 
 
6.1  Non‐probationary employees will not be disciplined or discharged without just cause.  

Employees will be notified of their right to Union representation for any investigation 
that may lead to disciplinary action.  If an investigatory interview does or does not result 
in disciplinary action, the employee should be informed of this decision within thirty 
(30) calendar days from the conclusion of the full investigation or receipt of final report 
from an outside investigator.  Employees will be provided a copy of any discipline placed 
in their personnel file.  The Union shall be provided a copy of all oral reprimands and 
above within fifteen (15) calendar days of the date of execution.   

 
6.2  New Classifications.  The District shall notify the Union of any future job classifications 

appropriate to the bargaining unit.  Prior to implementation of the new classifications, 
the parties will meet and bargain the rate of pay and job duties of the new position.   

   
6.3  Personnel files.  Employees may review their personnel file upon request.    
   
6.4  Job Descriptions.  The District will provide job descriptions for members of the 

bargaining unit to the Union or the employee upon request.   
 
 
ARTICLE 7  MANAGEMENT RIGHTS   
 
7.1  Any and all rights concerned with the management and operations of the District are 

exclusively that of the District unless otherwise provided by the terms of this 
Agreement.   

 
7.2  The District has the authority to adopt rules and regulations, including but not limited to 

dress, appearance and work performance for the operation of the District and the 
conduct of its employees; provided such rules are not in conflict with this Agreement or 
with applicable law.   

 
7.3  The District has the right to discipline, temporarily lay off, or discharge employees for 

just cause; to assign work and determine duties and performance standards of 
employees; to determine, establish and/or revise the number of personnel to be 
assigned to duty at any time; and to perform all other functions not otherwise expressly 
limited to this Agreement.  The District agrees that departmental rules and regulations, 
which affect working conditions and performance shall be subject to the Grievance 
Procedures.   

 

148



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
8 

 

7.4  All rights and privileges held by the District at the time, which are not included in this 
Agreement, shall remain in force unaffected in any manner.   

 
7.5  If sub‐contracting by the District results in a reduction of hours or lay‐offs of bargaining 

unit members, the District will negotiate the decision.  The Union reserves the right to 
bargain the impacts of any sub‐contracting of work.   

 
 
ARTICLE 8  HOURS OF WORK   
 
8.1  Work Week.  The work week is defined as the period between 12:01 a.m., Sunday 

through 12:00 midnight the following Saturday.  
 
8.2  Hours of Work.  Normal working hours for regular personnel shall be forty (40) hours 

per week, Monday through Friday, from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Employees will be 
entitled to an unpaid meal period, of at least thirty (30) minutes and up to one (1) hour, 
and two (2) fifteen (15) minute paid breaks on a daily basis except as defined in Article 
1.   

 
  8.2.1  Employees working under this section may work a flexible schedule, upon 

agreement with the District.   
 
  8.2.2  Flexible Work Hours.  In instances lasting less than one (1) week, and when 

mutually agreeable to the District, the Union and the employee(s), hours of work 
during a work week may be flexed for overtime‐eligible employees, if the flex 
schedule meets the requirements of federal and state laws, and does not result 
in overtime.  

 
    An employee may request to flex work hours during a work week, if the request 

does not result in overtime, and the District agrees to give reasonable 
consideration to the employee requests for flex‐time, given employee interests 
and District needs.  

 
  8.2.3  Alternative Work Schedules.  The parties agree that work schedules of work 

shifts of different number of hours may be established for overtime eligible 
employees upon requests of the employee, and if the alternative work schedule 
meets the requirements of federal and state laws, and do not result in overtime.  

 
    An employee may request to an alternative schedule and the District agrees to 

give reasonable consideration to the employee requests for an alternative 
schedule, given employee interests and District needs.  

 
8.3  Overtime, for the purposes of this Agreement, is defined as any employee time spent on 

a District directed assignment that is beyond the employees’ forty (40) hour work week.  

149



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
9 

 

Overtime shall be earned at the rate of time and one half (1‐1/2) for each hour or any 
part thereof worked.   

 
8.4  Employees who work overtime may elect compensatory time, instead of pay, at the 

applicable overtime rate. Such compensatory time may accumulate up to a maximum of 
forty‐eight (48) hours. If compensatory time is elected, employees may elect to cash out 
compensatory time on a monthly basis. For the monthly cash out, employees must 
notify Payroll by the published monthly deadline. Any unused compensatory time will 
be cashed out annually by December 31.   

 
8.54  Employees shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours compensatory time or overtime for 

required work on evenings, weekends, or holidays.  The District reserves the right to 
hold personnel on duty for the full two (2) hours.  Work day extensions will not qualify 
for the two (2) hour minimum.   

 
 
ARTICLE 9  WAGES   
 
9.1  Effective January 1, 20202023, the employees in the following classifications shall 

receive the following market adjustment: 
 

  Senior Accountant– 2.1% salary increase 
  Fire Services Data Analyst – 2.3% salary increase 

    Support Specialist – 3% salary increase 
    Executive Assistant – 4% salary increase 
    Purchasing Analyst – 2% salary increase 
    Payroll Coordinator – 3% salary increase 
 
9.2  Effective each remaining year in the Agreement, on January 1, 2021 and on January 1, 

2022, the employees in the following classifications shall receive the following market 
adjustments: Effective January 1, 2024, the employees in the following classifications 
shall receive the following market adjustment: 

 
  Senior Accountant – 2.1% salary increase 
  Fire Services Data Analyst – 2.3% salary increase 

    Support Specialist – 2% salary increase 
    Executive Assistant – 4% salary increase 
    Purchasing Analyst – 2% salary increase 
    Payroll Coordinator – 3% salary increase 
 

Effective January 1, 2025, the employees in the following classifications shall receive the 
following market adjustment: 

 
    Support Specialist – 2% salary increase 
    Executive Assistant – 4% salary increase 

150



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
10 

 

 
9.3  Effective January 1, 2020, wages for all employees shall be increased by 2.2%.  The 

classification of Parts Specialist will be eliminated, and the incumbent will be reclassed 
as a Support Specialist but shall be “red circled” at their 2019 rate of pay provided that 
their 2019 rate of exceed the 2020 rate of pay for Support Specialist. 

  Effective January 1, 2023, wages for all employees shall be increased by 100% of the 
Seattle‐Tacoma‐Bellevue CPI‐W, for the twelve (12) month period measuring June 2021 
to June 2022, with a minimum of three percent (3%) and a maximum of six percent 
(6%).   

 
9.4  Effective January 1, 2021, wages for all employees shall be increased by 100% of the 

Seattle‐Tacoma‐Bellevue CPI‐W, Semiannual 1st Half, with a minimum of 1% and a 
maximum of 4%. 

  Effective January 1, 2024, wages for all employees shall be increased by 100% of the 
Seattle‐Tacoma‐Bellevue CPI‐W, for the twelve (12) month period measuring June 2022 
to June 2023, with a minimum of three percent (3%) and a maximum of six percent 
(6%). 

 
9.5  Effective January 1, 2022, wages for all employees shall be increased by 100% of the 

Seattle‐Tacoma‐Bellevue CPI‐W, Semiannual 1st Half, with a minimum of 1% and a 
maximum of 4%.  

  Effective January 1, 2025, wages for all employees shall be increased by 100% of the 
Seattle‐Tacoma‐Bellevue CPI‐W, for the twelve (12) month period measuring June 2023 
to June 2024, with a minimum of three percent (3%) and a maximum of six percent 
(6%).   

 
9.6  The District agrees to pay longevity to full‐time employees on a monthly basis, according 

to the following schedule:   
 
 

Completion of 5 years       2% of current salary   
  (61‐120 months, increase @ completion of the 60th month) 
 
Completion of 10 years      4% of current salary 
  (121‐180 months, increase @ completion of the 120th month) 
 
Completion of 15 years      6% of current salary 
  (181‐240 months, increase @ completion of the 180th month) 
 
Completion of 20 years      8% of current salary 
  (241‐300 months, increase @ completion of the 240th month) 
 
Completion of 25 years      10% of current salary 
  (301‐360 months, increase @ completion of the 300th month) 
 

151



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
11 

 

Completion of 30 years      12% of current salary 
  (361+ months, increase @ completion of the 360th month) 

 
9.7  Salary Step Plan.   

 
9.7.1  Newly Hired or Rehired Employees  

Newly hired or rehired employees will begin at Step 1 of the pay range.   
Past Credit Experience – Newly hired employees with comparable past work 
experience, or rehired employees, will be given 50% credit for time worked, up 
to a maximum credit of five (5) years.  Determination of past credit is at the sole 
discretion of the Human Resources Director.   
For example, a newly hired employee has 54 months of comparable past work 
experience. 

A. 54 months divided by 2 = 27 months’ credit 

i. The new hire would be paid at Step 3 (25‐36 months) 

1‐12 months   Step 1  

13‐24 months   Step 2  

25 ‐ 36 months   Step 3  

37‐48 months   Step 4  

49‐60+ months   Step 5  

 
Employees will move through the defined salary steps on an 
annual basis based on the date of hire or rehire. 

 
  9.7.2  Promoted Employees  

  At the time of promotion (defined as accepting a position in a higher pay 
range), employees will move to the first step in the range of the new class 
which results in an increase of at least 5%. Upon successful completion of 
a promotional trial service period, the employee's salary shall be 
increased to the next step of the new range and annually thereafter up to 
the top of the range. In no event shall a promoted employee's salary be 
less than the starting pay of the salary range for the new class, nor in 
excess of the highest step of the regular salary range for the new class.   

 
  9.7.3  Demoted Employees  

  Employees who voluntarily demote (defined as voluntarily applying for 
and accepting a position in a lower pay range) will be placed in the 
appropriate pay range for the new classification that results in the least 
amount of pay reduction, but not above the top of the new range.  If an 
employee is not at the top step, their next step date will be one (1) year 
from the demotion date. 

       
  For example, an employee is currently at Step 3 and is eligible for Step 4 

on November 15th but they voluntarily demote to a new position on 

152



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
12 

 

August 1st.  Their next step date will be reset to one (1) year later, August 
1st, and each August 1st, thereafter until reaching the top step. 

 
  Employees who are involuntarily demoted as part of a reduction in force 

(i.e. layoffs) will be placed in the pay range for the new classification that 
is closest to their current rate of pay provided that if all pay steps in the 
demoted classification are lower than the demoted employee’s current 
rate of pay, the demoted employee’s pay shall be maintained (red‐
circled) until such time as the appropriate pay range encompasses their 
current rate of pay.  Thereafter, they will be entitled to any wage 
increases as set forth in this Agreement.   

 
 
ARTICLE 10  RETIREMENT/DEFERRED COMPENSATION    
 
10.1  It is agreed that in accordance with Chapter 41.04, RCW, for the purpose of federal 

income tax reporting only, the gross income of all personnel shall be reduced by the 
amount of the contribution paid into the PERS retirement system and deferred 
compensation plan paid by the employee. 

 
10.2  The VOYA, Nationwide, Decision Point, ICMA and Washington State Employees 457 

Deferred Compensation Plans shall be made available to employees of the bargaining 
unit, with the option to participate.  Employees shall be governed by the requirements 
of the plan. 

 
  Effective December 31, 2021, the ICMA and Nationwide plans will cease.  Employees 

who have Deferred Compensation Plans in ICMA and/or Nationwide will have until 
December 31, 2021 to move their plans to the recognized providers. 

 
10.3  The District shall contribute One Four Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150.00400) per month, 

per employee, to the deferred compensation plan with no employee matching required, 
for the term of this agreement.   

 
  Effective January 1, 2020, the District shall match up to $100.00 per month, per 

employee to the deferred compensation plan, for a total of $250.00 per month District 
contribution per employee.  

 
   
ARTICLE 11  PAY OUT OF CLASSIFICATION PAY    
 
11.1  Out of class pay will be paid when an employee is fulfilling the duties for an employee of 

a higher classification within the bargaining unit.  Out of class pay will be paid when an 
employee works in the higher position for eight (8) hours or more when the time is pre‐
scheduled.  Out of class pay will be paid when an employee works in the higher position 
for twenty‐four (24) hours or more when the time is unscheduled.   Pay will be paid pro‐

153



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
13 

 

rata according to assignments in the higher classification with a minimum four percent 
(4%) increase. Pay will be paid at the step in the pay range of the higher classification 
that is at least four percent (4%) above the employee’s current rate. 

 
11.2  When an employee is appointed by the Fire Chief or designee to cover the duties of a 

superior position outside the bargaining unit, the following criteria shall apply:   
 
    11.2.1  After five (5) consecutive work days, the employee who has been  

  assigned a significant portion of the absent superior position’s duties, will 
receive a 15% out of class pay adjustment, retroactive to the first day.  

 
    11.2.2  If the Fire Chief or designee recognizes the need for a fully operational  

  Actor to perform the full responsibilities of the higher position (e.g. 
Acting Finance Director), the employee assigned as an Actor will be 
compensated at the 2nd step of the position’s current pay range.  

 
 
ARTICLE 12  MEDICAL AND DENTAL COVERAGE      
 
12.1  Medical and vision coverage shall be provided by the District.  Dental and basic life 

coverage during this agreement shall be provided by the District.  Any benefit changes 
to the existing medical or dental program shall be negotiated between the parties to 
this agreement. 

 
12.2  The District shall pay full insurance coverage costs on employees for their medical and 

dental plan.   
 
  Effective the latter of June 1, 2020 or ratification, the District shall contribute a 

maximum One Thousand Eight Hundred and Nineteen Dollars ($1,819) per month 
towards the employee/dependent medical and dental premiums. If the cost exceeds 
$1,819 per month, the District agrees to contribute fifty percent (50%) of the amount in 
excess of $1,819.  

 
  Effective each Plan Year of this Agreement, the District shall increase its maximum 

contribution by 7%. 
 
  2021 – $1,947 – If the cost exceeds this amount, the District agrees to contribute fifty 

percent (50%) of the amount in excess. 
   
  2022 ‐ $2,084 – If the cost exceeds this amount, the District agrees to contribute fifty 

percent (50%) of the amount in excess. 
 
  Full medical and vision insurance coverage shall be paid through the Northwest 

Firefighters Trust (NWFFT) for 2023.  Dental coverage will be paid through the 

154



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
14 

 

Washington Counties Insurance Fund (WCIF) for 2023.  Nothing precludes CPFR from 
changing policies of insurance to equitable coverage. 

 
  The amount the District will pay for benefits will be increased in 2024 and 2025 by the 

actual premium increase of the healthcare plan and dental plan with a cap of 10% per 
plan.  Any amount over 10% shall be covered by the employee.    

 
 
12.3  The District shall contribute Four Thousand Six Hundred Dollars ($4,6004,000) annually 

to a Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Association (VEBA) for each member of the 
bargaining unit to help offset out‐of‐pocket costs to the employee due to enrollment in 
a high deductible medical/vision coverage plan.  

 
  12.3.1  Funds will be frontloaded to the employee’s account on or about January 5th of 

each year.  
   
  12.3.1.1   For new/rehired/reinstated employees, this  

  contribution will be pro‐rated for the percentage of full 
months the employee will be employed in the calendar 
year.  For example, an employee beginning work on July 1st 
will received 50% of the annual and monthly amounts, for 
a total of $2,3002,000. 

 
  12.3.2  Employees will vote annually on how to distribute leave bank buy‐outs at  
  the time of retirement or termination of employment with CPFR.  The vote of the 

group will be reported to the HRA/VEBA provider in the last quarter of the 
preceding year. 

 
12.4  The District agrees to provide and pay for an Employee Assistance Program for 

employees of this bargaining unit.   
 
12.5  The District agrees to provide IRS Section 125 plan benefits to employees. This plan will 

allow employees to pay for out of pocket medical expenses and dependent daycare 
expenses on a pre‐tax basis. 

 
 
ARTICLE 13  VACATION ACCRUAL   
 
13.1  Each regular employee shall be granted vacation accrual as follows: 
 

         
Annually          Monthly 

1 year of service    80 hours    1 – 12 months   6.67 hours 
 
Completion of 1 year    120 hours    13 – 60 months  10 hours 

155



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
15 

 

  (Increase at completion of 12th month) 
 
Completion of 5 years   160 hours    61 – 120 months  13.34 hours 
  (Increase at completion of 60th month) 
 
Completion of 10 years  180 hours    121 – 168 months  15 hours 
  (Increase at completion of 120th month) 
 
Completion of 15 years  200 hours    169 – 228 months  16.67 hours 
  (Increase at completion of 168th month) 
 
Completion of 20 years  265 hours    229 ‐ 288 months  22.09 hours 
  (Increase at completion of 228th month) 
 
Completion of 25 years  280 hours    289 + months    23.34 hours 
  (Increase at completion of 288th month) 

 
13.2  For ease of vacation calculation only (not affecting seniority), all employees’ vacation 

shall be calculated by using a vacation anniversary date as follows: 
 
  Persons hired from Day 1 (one) to Day 15 (fifteen) of a month will be assigned a vacation 

anniversary date of Day 1 (one) of the month hired. 
 
  Persons hired from Day 16 (sixteen) to the last day of the month will be assigned a 

vacation anniversary date of Day 1 (one) of the month following the month hired.   
 
13.3  Employees’ maximum vacation accrual carry‐over shall not exceed two (2) years’ worth 

of vacation at the applicable accrual schedule for regular personnel.  Unused vacation in 
excess of the amount set forth above shall be forfeited except in the extreme and/or 
unusual circumstances approved by the Fire Chief (i.e. extended period of disability 
leave or vacation scheduling difficulties.) 

 
13.4  Employees may cancel approved vacation leave prior to beginning the leave for reasons 

contained in Article 15 – Sick Leave. A physician’s certificate must be provided to verify 
the medical condition. 

 
13.5   Vacation hours cannot be utilized until accrued. The District may allow an employee to 

go into the negative on vacation only in unusual circumstances and must be approved 
by the Fire Chief or designee.  

 
 
ARTICLE 14  HOLIDAYS     
 
14.1  The business offices of the District will be closed to the public, and employees are not to 

report to work on the following Washington State legal holidays: 

156



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
16 

 

 
  New Year’s Day           January 1 
  Martin Luther King Jr.’s Birthday      3rd Monday in January 
  President’s Day          3rd Monday in February     
  Memorial Day           Last Monday in May 
  Juneteenth            June 19th  
  Independence Day          July 4 
  Labor Day             1st Monday in September 
  Veteran’s Day            November 11 
  Thanksgiving Day           4th Thursday in November 
  Friday following Thanksgiving       Friday after Thanksgiving Day  
  Christmas Day           December 25 
     
14.2  If the Washington State legal holiday falls on a Saturday, employee will be granted 

Friday off for the holiday.  If the legal holiday falls on a Sunday, employee will be 
granted Monday off for the holiday.    

 
14.3  Employees shall be awarded one‐hundred and twelve twenty (112120) holiday hours on 

an annual basis, to include holidays used on the above dates plus any floating holiday 
hours.  Employees may elect to receive a cash payment of base pay at the straight time 
rate for up to fifty‐six sixty (5660) hours each year. It is understood that selling back 
fifty‐sixsixty (5660) hours of holiday leave may require using some other accrued leave 
when business offices are closed.  
 

14.4  Each employee shall elect prior to November 1st of the prior year on forms provided by 
the District, the required cash payment and/or time off. The cash payment shall be paid 
to each employee, having made such an election, on the last pay date of the month of 
November of year earned.  

 
14.5   On Christmas Eve the business office will be closed to the public. Employees may elect 

to work this day or elect to use vacation or , holiday or compensatory time to take the 
day off.  However, it is understood that employees may choose to work Martin Luther 
King, Jr.’s birthday, President’s Day, Juneteenth, Independence Day and the Friday 
following Thanksgiving at straight time.   

 
14.6  Employees required by the district to work on a designated holiday shall be paid at the 

rate of one and one‐half (1 ½) their hourly rate for all time worked but shall have an 
equal number of hours deducted without pay from their annual holiday bank provided 
in Section 14.3 for a total of time and one‐half (1 ½) rather than double time and one‐
half (2 ½). 

 
 
ARTICLE 15  SICK LEAVE/PAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE PROGRAMS     
   

157



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
17 

 

15.1  Regular employees assigned to a forty (40) hour work week shall accrue paid sick leave 
at the rate of ten (10) hours for each full month of service up to a maximum 
accumulation of 1,0401,560 hours. 

 
15.2  In case of employees who are absent due to illness or injury for which they are receiving 

payment from State Industrial insurance, the District’s obligation shall be limited to 
paying the difference between the employee’s basic salary and the amount received 
from the State Fund.  Sick leave shall be charged on a pro‐rated basis in such cases until 
exhausted. 

 
15.3  The District complies with all applicable federal, state and/or local laws relating to 

family or medical leave.  
 
15.4  No employee will be denied time off for the legitimate use of sick leave, including 

employee’s own injury or illness, or for their own medical, dental or vision 
appointments. When an employee utilizes sick leave, they must notify their supervisor 
immediately.   

   
15.5  The District agrees to buy back sick leave hours in excess of the employees’ maximum 

accrual at the rate of 25% of the employee’s base hourly pay.  Sick leave buy back will be 
paid in November of each year and will be treated as regular income, with appropriate 
deductions as applicable. 

 
15.6  Sick leave shall not accrue during leaves of absence without pay, or layoffs.  
 
15.7  On date of hire, employees shall have available to them forty (40) hours of sick leave.  

Monthly accrual will not begin until after the employee has earned forty (40) hours of 
sick leave.  If an employee terminates or is terminated before unearned sick leave hours 
are replaced, the unearned sick leave will be deducted from the final pay check. 

 
15.7  Eligible employees are covered by Washington’s Family and Medical Leave Program, 

RCW 50A.04.  Eligibility for leave and benefits, which begins January 1, 2020, is 
established by Washington law and is therefore independent of this Agreement.  
Premiums for benefits are established by law and for the period ending December 31, 
2020, will total four‐tenths of one percent (0.4%) of employees’ wages (unless 
otherwise limited by action of the State).  Employees will pay through payroll deduction 
the full cost of the premiums associated with family leave benefits and forty‐five 
percent (45%) of the cost of the premiums associated with the medical leave benefits, 
as determined under RCW 50A.04.115.  The District will pay the remaining premium 
amounts. 

 
15.8  Washington State Paid Family & Medical Leave ‐ Eligible employees are covered by 

Washington’s Family and Medical Leave Program, RCW 50A.04.  Eligibility for leave and 
benefits is established by Washington law and is therefore independent of this 
Agreement.  Premiums for benefits are established by law and are split between the 

158



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
18 

 

Employee and Employer.  Employees will pay through payroll deduction the full cost of 
the premiums associated with family leave benefits as determined by the State pursuant 
to RCW 50A.10.030.  The District will pay the remaining premium amounts, as 
determined by the State. 

 
15.89  At the time of retirement from the District, the employee’s sick leave bank will be 

bought out at 25% of base salary for all accrued sick leave hours.   
 
 
 
 
ARTICLE 16  EMERGENCY LEAVE    
 
16.1  In the event of an emergency of the employee that requires the presence of the 

employee, the employee shall be granted immediate leave with pay, said leave being 
deducted from the employee’s accrued sick leave or other accrued leave depending on 
why the leave was necessary. 

 
16.2  The employee shall be required to return to work immediately upon the termination of 

the emergency. Should the emergency last longer than three (3) hours, the employee 
must call the District with an update. 

 
16.3  “Emergency” is defined as an event sudden in onset and unexpected, and which 

demands immediate action by the employee. 
 
 
ARTICLE 17  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE     
 
17.1   Bereavement Leave – In the event of a death in the immediate family of an employee, 

the employee shall be granted up to three (3) work days forty (40) hours off with pay.  
An additional two (2) work days off with pay will be granted with Fire Chief approval.  

 
17.2  Immediate family shall be defined as the spouse and children of the employee, parents 

or step parents, loco parentis, brother, sister, grandchildren, grandparents of the 
employee, and those of the employee’s current spouse. For purposes of this section, 
“step” shall be considered part of the immediate family.  Also covered is the loss of a 
child in the event the employee would have qualified for prenatal or postnatal medical 
leave or family leave to bond with the child, for the seven days following the loss of a 
child.  

 
17.3  Additional leave for covered relationships, or non‐covered relationships, may be 

allowed with the use of accrued vacation leave or holiday leave. 
 
 

159



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
19 

 

ARTICLE 18  REQUESTING LEAVE (COMP OR VACATION OR PERSONAL FLOATING HOLIDAYS)     
 
18.1   Employees shall submit a written request for leave at least twenty‐four (24) hours in 

advance of requested time off.  The District reserves the right to deny leave (comp, 
vacation or holiday) requests if such leave would interrupt services provided to staff or 
the public, or if submitted less than twenty‐four (24) hours in advance.   

 
ARTICLE 19  JURY DUTY/WITNESS SERVICES       
 
19.1 Employees summoned for jury duty will be granted a sufficient leave of absence from 

employment.  
 

19.2 An employee shall continue to receive normal wages for any period of required service 
as a witness in any judicial proceeding in which the employee is subpoenaed to appear 
as a result of, or related to, the performance of official duties with the District.  All 
money received for witness fees, while on duty shall be surrendered to the District.  
Employees scheduled to work will report for work when less than a scheduled work shift 
is required by such duties. 
 
 

ARTICLE 20  EMERGENCY DECLARATION    
 
20.1  In the event of a declared emergency, the District reserves the right to assign employees 

of this bargaining unit to work assignments without regard to their employment 
classification for the duration of the declared emergency. 

 
20.2  The Fire Chief (or designee) will be the authority in determining closures or late starts 

for inclement weather, natural disasters, pandemic outbreaks, war and other such epic 
threats to life and limb.  Such notification shall be made to each member of the 
bargaining unit via the District’s automatic notification system and shall be made no 
later than six (6) am on the day of the closure or late starts.  

 
  20.2.1  An employee is expected to report to work regardless of conditions if they can 

safely and possibly do so. An employee who is unable to or feels unsafe to get to 
work on time or who has approval to leave work early because of conditions 
shall charge the time to accrued vacation leave, personal holiday or leave 
without pay.  

   
  20.2.2  If the District closes the facility, those employees who were scheduled to work 

on that day will be compensated for the entire day, or for whatever portion of 
the day the facility was closed, during which time they were scheduled to work. 
If the employee is on already approved leave, they will be required to use the 
already approved leave.   

 

160



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
20 

 

20.2.3  In the event that a closure or late start is determined as per Article 20.2, and the 
conditions change to a point where the District will be open, the District will 
send an alert via the District’s automatic notification system alerting all members 
of the change and the timeframe for reporting in to the office. , if the employee 
can safely do so.  In the event the employee cannot report back to work, they 
shall charge the time to accrued vacation leave, personal holiday or leave 
without pay.  

 
 
ARTICLE 21  TERMINATION / RESIGNATION/LEAVE BUY‐OUT 

 
21.1  Should the employee voluntarily resign employment, then the employee shall  

give the District advance written notice of not less than fourteen (14) calendar days.  In 
the event of failure to comply with the notice provisions of this section, the resignation 
shall be deemed a quit, and employee shall forfeit all vacation and/or other accrued 
benefits. 

 
21.2  Employees shall be paid for any unused accumulation of vacation, compensatory time 

and accumulation of holiday hours on a pro‐rated basis when they are permanently 
separated from employment, unless discharged for gross misconduct. 

 
  21.2.1  Gross misconduct is defined as deliberate acts of violence, financially  

defrauding the District, murder, sexual assault, embezzlement, being under the 
influence of illegal drugs or alcohol at work, or stealing from District employees. 
In the event an employee is subsequently found not guilty to have engaged in 
gross misconduct (e.g. – jury finds not guilty), the District shall make the payout 
provided in 21.2 above.  

   
 
ARTICLE 22  EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT    
 
22.1  The District agrees to reimburse the costs of necessary books and tuition/registration 

fees for up to the current credit rate for the University of Washington (undergraduate 
program) for job related courses, as approved by the Fire Chief or designee.  Payment 
shall only be made upon successful completion of approved classes, with a passing 
grade. 

 
 
ARTICLE 23  POSTING OF JOBS/TESTING/PROBATIONARY PERIODS     
 
23.1  Posting of Jobs.  It is the desire and intent of the District to fill bargaining unit job 

vacancies with qualified applicants from within the District before hiring new 
employees, providing the employees who apply have the required qualifications for the 
particular job and provided that at the end of the selection process, the District has at 
least three (3) qualified applicants from which to select. 

161



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
21 

 

 
  23.1.1  Job postings for new, vacant or promotional bargaining unit opportunities will 

first be posted internally.   
       

a. When the District receives three (3) or more internal  
applicants who meet the qualifications based on the job 
announcement, When the District receives any number of 
internal applications who meet the qualifications based on the 
job announcement, the District shall hold the testing and 
interview process for those internal applicants. 

 
i. Positions shall be filled through an impartial selection 

process, which could include, but not be limited to: 
online application; letter of interest; assessment of 
skills and abilities; review of past performance; 
seniority; and a scored interview (Oral Board and/or 
Chief Interviews). 
 

i.ii. Any qualified internal candidate(s) who pass the 
Assessment Center process(es) will be afforded a 
Chief’s Interview.  If an internal applicant is not chosen 
after the Chief’s Interview, they will be provided an 
opportunity to hear from the Chief why they were not 
chosen.  The decision of the Chief is final and not 
subject to the grievance process. 
 

    b.  if there are is less than three (3) no internal qualified bargaining  
  unit applicants, at any point in the process, the District may 

consider both internal and external applicants in its selection 
process which will be conducted in accordance with 23.1.1(a)(i) 
above. 

 
i. In an instance where the number of qualified  

internal candidates is reduced to less than three (3) 
at any point in the process, any qualified internal 
candidate(s) who pass the Assessment Center 
process(es) will be afforded a Chief’s Interview.  If 
an internal applicant is not chosen after the Chief’s 
Interview, they will be provided an opportunity to 
hear from the Chief why they were not chosen.  
The decision of the Chief is final and not subject to 
the grievance process.     

 
  23.1.2  The Fire Chief, at their sole discretion, may appoint any of the candidates who 

have successfully passed the selection process to the available position. 

162



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
22 

 

 
23.2  Employees who are promoted shall serve a one (1) year probationary trial service period 

during which periodic evaluations shall be conducted by the District.  In the event the 
employee does not successfully pass the probationary trial service period, such 
employee shall be returned to the position previously held or one of similar 
classification.  Employee who is subject to displacement as a result of a demotion shall 
be governed by language stated in Article 24. 

 
23.3   Newly hired employees shall serve a probationary period of one (1) year.   During such 

time,  the  District  may  discharge  such  employee  without  recourse  to  the  grievance 
procedure.   

 
 
ARTICLE 24  SENIORITY/LAYOFF/RECALL  
 
24.1  Definition.  Seniority shall be on a bargaining unit basis.  Seniority is defined for all full‐

time and part‐time employees as the employee’s total compensated regular hours with 
the District from their most recent date of hire.  Seniority benefits shall not apply to an 
employee until completion of the probationary period.  (Part‐time example:  For every 
2,080 hours of part‐time employment, one (1) year of seniority will be added to the 
length of service). 

 
24.2  Seniority shall be broken by the following: 
 

a. Resignation 
b. Discharge 
c. Retirement 
d. Layoff of more than twenty‐four (24) months 
e. Failure to return in accordance with a leave of absence or recall from reduction‐in‐

force. 
f. Illness or injury of more than twenty‐four (24) months. 
g. Refusal to accept a comparable job opening offered by the District while on layoff. 
h. No pay status of more than twenty‐four (24) months. 

 
24.3  Layoffs.  When it becomes necessary for the District to reduce its work force for an 

extended period of thirty (30) days or more, the District shall give as much notice as 
practical.  In cases of such anticipated layoffs, written notice of layoff will be given 
fourteen (14) days before such action is to become effective. 

 
  24.3.1     Notice of layoff need not be given to employees who are employed 

  in a probationary status.  Layoffs in connection with the elimination of 
job classification(s) and/or reduction of the work force shall be governed 
by seniority together with skill and ability.  Where skill and ability are 
considered substantially equal in the judgment of the District, seniority 
shall prevail. 

163



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
23 

 

 
  24.3.2    The following order of layoff shall be followed: 
 

a. Temporary employees 
b. Regularly scheduled employees by reverse order of seniority, within 

classification. 
 
  24.3.3  In the event of layoff, the incumbent will be allowed to claim a vacant 

position in a lower paid classification or bump an employee with less 
seniority in a lower paid classification provided that the incumbent has 
held status in that classification previously. 

 
24.4  Upon reduction‐in‐force, employees will be placed on a reinstatement roster for a 

period of twenty‐four (24) months from date of commencement of the reduction‐in‐
force. 

 
24.5  Recall.  When a vacancy is to be filled, the order of reinstatement will be in the reverse 

order of reduction‐in‐force, provided skill and ability are considered substantially equal 
in the judgment of the District.  Upon such reinstatement, the employee shall 
commence to accrue seniority.  The District will notify the employee of recall by certified 
mail. 

 
 
ARTICLE 25  PERFORMANCE OF DUTY   
 
25.1  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give an employee the right to strike and 

no employee shall strike or refuse to perform their assigned duties to the best of their 
abilities during the term of this Agreement.  The Union agrees that it will not condone or 
cause any strike, mass sick call or any other form of work stoppage or interference to 
the normal operations of the District during the term of this Agreement. 

 
25.2  Neither an employee nor the District shall intentionally waive any provisions of this 

Agreement, unless such waiver is mutually agreed upon by the Union and the District. 
 
 
ARTICLE 26  WELLNESS PROGRAM 
 
26.1  The parties agree and understand that the District will afford three (3) hours per week 

for physical exercise. Employees will be allowed to utilize District facilities and 
equipment or other mutually agreeable external facilities, and the time and day must be 
approved by the employee’s supervisor.  

 
 
ARTICLE 27  UNIFORMS     
 

164



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
24 

 

27.1  Employees, on a voluntary basis, may wear shirts articles embroidered with the District’s 
logoname that are available through the District “store”.  It is the expectation of the 
District that the employees shall observe a business casual dress code, and employees 
working on Fridays will be allowed to participate in casual day where jeans will be 
allowed (no jeans or athletic wear).  There shall be no variances from business casual 
unless pre‐approved by the Fire Chief or designee. The District agrees to pay for up to 
five (5) shirts articles upon hire, and upon request, up to two (2) additional shirts articles  
per year.   

 
  27.1.1  Effective upon ratification, each employee shall receive a one‐time lump sum of 

$300 to be used towards the purchase of business casual dress clothing.  
 
 
ARTICLE 28  LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
 
28.1  The District may grant an extended leave of absence. In order to apply, employees must 

submit a written request to the Fire Chief. Response to requests will be returned within 
fourteen (14) days. If an employee is granted a leave of absence, the employee may be 
on a leave of absence for up to twelve (12) months without loss in seniority. 

 
 
ARTICLE 29  PROCEDURE FOR CHANGING RULES AND REGULATIONS   
 
29.1  If the District wishes to make a change in the District’s Rules and Regulations (as per 

RCW 41.56), the District must notify the Union in writing of their intent. The Union will 
be given twenty‐one (21) days to review all such changes, and request bargaining 
pursuant to RCW 41.56. A request for an extension will not be unreasonably denied.  

 
 
ARTICLE 30  SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS       
 
30.1  This agreement may be amended provided both parties concur.  Supplemental 

agreements may be completed through negotiations at any time during the life of this 
Agreement.  Either party may notify the other party in writing of its desire to negotiate.  
Supplemental agreements thus completed will be signed by the responsible Union and 
District officials.  Supplemental agreements thus completed shall become part of the 
larger Agreement and subject to all its provisions. 

 
 
ARTICLE 31  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE      
 
31.1  A grievance is defined as an alleged breach of the specific terms and conditions of the 

Agreement.  It is the desire of the parties to this Agreement that grievances be adjusted 
informally whenever possible and at the first level of supervision.  If a grievance arises, it 
shall be submitted to the following grievance procedure.  Any grievance not processed 

165



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
25 

 

in accordance with the procedures and time limits specified herein shall constitute a 
withdrawal of the grievance and the grievance thereafter shall be null and void.  Failure 
of the District to comply with the time limits set forth below shall result in the grievance 
being automatically elevated to the next step without any action necessary on the part 
of the employee.  Time limits set forth in the following steps may be extended by 
mutual agreement by the parties hereto. 

 
31.2  In the event a grievance arises that involves a suspension or discharge, or for grievance 

filed on behalf of multiple employees or the entire bargaining unit, the grievance will 
bypass Step One, and be heard at Step Two with the Fire Chief serving as the District 
representative. 

 
31.3  A grievance shall be submitted in writing and shall contain the following information: 
 

a. Statement of the grievance and facts upon which it is based; 
b. The date or dates of the alleged violation;  
c. A statement of the specific provision(s) of the collective bargaining agreement 

alleged to have been violated; 
d. The manner in which the provision is alleged to have been violated;  
e. The specific remedy or remedies sought. 

 
A grievance must be processed with the following procedure: 
 
Step One – Immediate Supervisor 
 
The Business Representative or shop steward must first present the grievance in writing to the 
immediate supervisor within twenty (20) calendar days of the time the employee knew or could 
reasonably be expected to be aware of the events that precipitated the problem.  A meeting 
will be scheduled with the grievant, shop steward or Business Representative within twenty 
(20) calendar days to review the matter.  Any grievance affecting more than one (1) employee 
within the bargaining unit shall have one (1) employee designated as the spokesperson 
together with a shop steward or Business representative.  The immediate supervisor shall 
within twenty (20) calendar days of the meeting respond in writing to the employee and Union 
(with a copy to the shop steward if authorized by the employee in writing), and provide an 
answer to the grievance. 
 
Step Two – Next Level of Supervision 
 
If the matter is not resolved to the employee’s satisfaction in Step One, the shop steward or 
Business Representative shall present the grievance in writing to the next level of supervision, 
the Fire Chief of the District (or District designated representative) within twenty (20) calendar 
days of the immediate supervisor’s decision.  The Fire Chief of the District (or designated 
representative) shall reply in writing to the employee (with a copy to the shop steward if 
authorized by the employee in writing) within twenty (20) calendar days following receipt of 
the grievance. 

166



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
26 

 

 
Step Three – Board of Commissioners or Designee, and Business Representative 
 
If the matter is not resolved at Step Two to the employee’s satisfaction, the grievance shall be 
referred in writing to the Board of Commissioners by filing written notice with the District 
Secretary (or designated representative) within twenty (20) calendar days of receipt of the Step 
Two response.  The Board shall conduct a hearing and transmit its decision to the grievant and 
the Union within twenty (20) calendar days of the conclusion of the hearing. 
 
Step Four ‐ Mediation 
 
If the matter is not resolved at Step Three, a request may be made to the Public Employee 
Relations Commission within twenty (20) calendar days.  The Commission shall appoint a 
mediator, who shall forthwith meet with the representatives of the parties, either jointly or 
separately, and shall take such other steps as they may deem appropriate in order to persuade 
the parties to resolve their differences and effect an agreement.  The mediator’s 
recommendation shall be non‐binding.  Any comments, determinations or recommendations of 
the mediator, however, shall not be admissible as evidence otherwise disclosed to the 
arbitrator in Step Five if the mediation is unsuccessful and the matter proceeds to arbitration. 
 
Step Five ‐ Arbitration 
 
If the grievance is not resolved to the satisfaction of the Union at Step Four, the Union may 
submit the matter to arbitration.  Within twenty (20) calendar days of receipt of the Board’s 
findings, the Union shall notify the Board in writing of its intent to arbitrate the issue.  Within 
twenty (20) calendar days of the Union’s request to arbitrate, a representative of the Union and 
of the District shall meet and attempt to agree on a neutral arbitrator.  If unable to reach 
agreement, they shall agree to request a list of seven (7) arbitrators from the Public 
Employment Relations Commission or Federal Mediation Conciliation Service.  Upon receipt of 
the list, the two (2) representatives shall meet within twenty (20) calendar days to alternately 
strike names until one (1) name remains.  A coin toss shall determine who strikes first.  This 
person shall service as the sole arbitrator. 
 
The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to add to, subtract from or in any manner 
modify the terms of this Agreement, nor to determine any issue other than that submitted.  
The decision of the arbitrator shall be in writing setting forth the arbitrators reasoning and shall 
be final and binding on all parties. 
The arbitrator’s decision shall be made in writing and should be issued to the parties within 
sixty (60) calendar days after the hearing or reasonably thereafter. 
 
Expenses and compensation for the arbitrators’ service and the proceedings shall be shared 
equally between the parties; provided, however, each party shall be solely and completely 
responsible for all costs of preparing and presenting its own case.  If either party desires a 
record of the proceeding, it shall solely bear the cost of such recording, unless both parties 
agree to share the record and equally share the cost. 

167



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
27 

 

 
 
ARTICLE 32  SAVINGS CLAUSE    
 
32.1  If any provision of this Agreement or the application of such provisions should be 

rendered or declared invalid by a court having jurisdiction or by reason of any existing or 
subsequently enacted legislation, the remaining parts of the provision of this Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect and the parties shall enter into negotiations for the 
purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such provision. 

 
 
ARTICLE 33  BINDING ON SUCCESSORS   
 
33.1  This agreement shall be binding upon the successors, and no provisions, terms or 

obligations herein contained shall be affected, modified, altered or changed in any 
respect whatsoever by consolidation, merger or annexation. 

 
 
ARTICLE 34  TERM OF AGREEMENT    
 
34.1  This agreement shall become effective January 1, 2020 2023 and shall remain in full 

force and effect until and through December 31, 20222025. 
 
34.2  Not less than 180 days prior to the end of the contract, either party may notify the 

other, in writing, of its desire to terminate or modify the Agreement, provided that an 
earlier commencement may be scheduled by mutual agreement. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in duplicate original 

this      day of       ,     . 

 
 
   

168



OPEIU Local 8  20202023‐2022 2025 Agreement 
28 

 

 
                           
Chairman, Board of Commissioners      Leslie Liddle, Union Representative  

OPEIU 
 
                           
Commissioner           Mindy RobertsDiane Hyatt, Union Steward 
 
 
                           
Commissioner           Ashley BeckerJessica Resop, Bargaining 
Team 

 
 

                           
Commissioner           Jessica ResopRebecca Burke, Bargaining 
Team 

 
 

               
Commissioner      
 
 
Reviewed and approved, as to form: 
 
 
             
Daniel OlsonDustin Morrow, Fire Chief 
 
 
             
Tanya Robacker, Finance Director 
 
 
             
Suzi E. Washo, Human Resources Director 

169



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:   November 14, 2022 
Item Title:    Request to Exceed 10 Retirees Under Resolution 13-01 
Attachments:    N/A 
Submitted by: HRD Washo    
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  
“To approve a one-time exception to Resolution 13-01 and allow all eleven (11) employees 
requesting to retire in 2023 to receive the benefits outlined in the resolution.”   
 

SUMMARY: 
 Request to waive the limit of ten (10) retirees pursuant to Resolution 13-01.   
 The District received requests from eleven (11) employees to retire in the 2nd quarter of 

2023.   
 All of these employees meet all of the requirements of Resolution 13-01. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
Has been budgeted for in the 2023 budget 

170



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:   November 14, 2022 
Item Title:    Retiree Medical Benefit – Annis-Levings 
Attachments:    N/A 
Submitted by:   HRD Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
“To approve an exception to Resolution 13-01 and allow DFM Brian Annis-Levings to retire 
effective February 28, 2023 and receive the benefits afforded under the resolution.” 
 

SUMMARY: 
 Request to make two exceptions to Resolution No. 13-01 and approve the Retiree Medical 

Benefit for DFM Brian Annis-Levings, effective February 28, 2023.  DFM Annis-Levings will 
meet the years of service requirements as of his separation date, but will be one (1) year 
short of the required age, and will need to retire in the first quarter of 2023.   
 

 A representative of Local 726 will be present at the meeting to speak to this request. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
Has been budgeted for in the 2023 budget 

171



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Date    November 14, 2022 
Item Title:    Revisions to 2023 Non-Represented Non-Uniformed Wage Increase 
Attachments:    N/A 
Submitted by:   HRD Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
 
 
Motion: To approve the proposal to revise all existing personal service contracts 

for non-uniformed personnel regarding 2023 wages to reflect 100% of the 
change in the Seattle/Tacoma/Bellevue CPI-W for the twelve (12) month 
period measuring June 2021 to June 2022 (with a minimum of three percent 
(3%) and a maximum of six percent (6%) increase). 

 
 
Over the term of the last round of negotiations, our goal was to align all personnel to the same 
CPI measurement.  The change began with the Firefighter’s and Chief’s contracts earlier this 
year, and has been followed up by the two contracts in front of you tonight (OPEIU and 726 
Non-Uniformed). 
 
All current Non-represented, Non-Uniformed personnel are on personal service contracts that 
expire on December 31, 2023.  These contracts reference wage increases in 2023 that 
references a CPI measurement that does not align with the new measurement we are moving 
the entire District to.  
 
Approving this motion will align these personnel with all other represented personnel in respect 
to the CPI measurement used to determine wage increases.  
 
Chief Morrow and I will be at the meeting on November 14th to review this request and answer 
any questions you may have. 
 
 
Thank you.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
Any budget impacts not already in the 2023 will have a budget amendment completed 

172



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: November 14, 2022 
Item Title: Partial Lease Termination- Old Station 72 
Attachments:  City of Puyallup / Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Agreement 
Submitted by: Chief Morrow 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 
 

 
 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  
“I move to approve the Fire Chief to sign, notarize, and execute the Partial Lease Termination 
Agreement, returning the Shaw Road Fire Station to the City of Puyallup.” 
 
SUMMARY:    
The District and the City of Puyallup have a long-term lease agreement for assets that are 
owned by the city but operated by the District. The District no longer has the need to operate out 
of the old station 72, located on Shaw Road. As such, the District has contacted the city and 
both parties have worked with their legal counsels to draft a partial lease termination for the 
return of the Shaw Road Fire Station to the city from the District. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Reduction of lease expense owed to the City of Puyallup. $1  
  
 

173



Partial Release and Termination of Lease - 1 

 

 

 

 

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

 

City of Puyallup 

City Clerk Division 

333 S. Meridian 

Puyallup WA  98371 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

(Space above this line for recorder's use only) 
 

DOCUMENT TITLE: Partial Release of Interest & Termination of Lease 

REFERENCE NUMBER(S) OF 

RELATED DOCUMENTS: 

N/A 

 Additional reference numbers on page(s)   of document. 

GRANTOR: City of Puyallup 

GRANTEE: Central Pierce Fire and Rescue  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A portion of Section 2, Township 19 North, Range 4 East, 

Quarter 42; Specifically, Tract A of Manorwood South 

 Additional legal on page N/A of document. 

ASSESSOR'S TAX PARCEL 

NO(S). 

5481501080 

 

PARTIAL RELEASE OF INTEREST & 

TERMINATION OF LEASE 
 

THIS PARTIAL RELEASE OF INTEREST & TERMINATION OF LEASE (this "Partial 

Release") is made as of the    day of   , 2022, by and between City of 

Puyallup, a Washington State municipal corporation ("Landlord"), and Central Pierce Fire and 

Rescue, a Washington State special purpose municipal corporation ("Tenant"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Landlord, as landlord, and Tenant, as tenant, entered into that certain Real Property 

Lease Agreement dated March 10, 2009 (the "Lease" attached hereto as Exhibit “A”), demising 

four separate properties including those certain premises located at 3509 27th Street SE, Puyallup 

98373 and more particularly described above (the "Premises"); and 

WHEREAS, the Tenant wishes to partially terminate the Lease only with regard to the Premises 

while maintaining the Lease with regard to the other three separate properties described therein; 

and 

174



Partial Release and Termination of Lease - 2 

WHEREAS, the Lease as it relates to the Premises including, but not limited to, any and all 

renewal options, extension options, and/or rights of first offer or refusal as provided in the Lease 

for the Premises (collectively, the "Rights") has been terminated effective as of     

by agreement of the parties as herein memorialized. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set 

forth and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows: 

Termination. Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree that the Lease as it relates to the 

Premises (including, but not limited to, the Rights) has been partially terminated as it relates to 

the Premises and execute this Partial Release to confirm the same and release the Lease as to the 

described Premises only. The Lease (including, but not limited to, the Rights) as it relates to the 

Premises is of no further force or effect. The parties intend for this Partial Release to be an 

isolated, one-time modification of the Lease term as set forth in Section 5 of the Lease (“Term”), 

as permitted by Section 34 (g) of the Lease.   

Release. Landlord and Tenant hereby represent to the other that neither party has any outstanding 

debts, demands, actions, claims, suits, and/or liabilities whatsoever of any name or nature, 

whether at law or in equity, against the other with respect to the Premises and/or the Lease. 

Landlord and Tenant each release and discharge the other from any and all debts, demands, 

actions, claims, suits, and liabilities whatsoever of every name and nature, whether at law or in 

equity, now or hereafter existing (whether known or unknown as of the date hereof), arising out 

of or in connection with the Lease as it relates to the Premises and the Premises. 

Counterparts and Recitals. This Partial Release may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 

of which shall be deemed an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one 

and the same document. The Recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made a part of 

this Partial Release as if fully set forth in the body of this document. The signatories hereto 

covenant that they are each possessed of sufficient authority to execute this Partial Release as 

directed by the governing bodies of each municipal corporation.   

 

GRANTOR:       GRANTEE:   

 

City of Puyallup,     Central Pierce Fire and Rescue,  

a Municipal Corporation   a Special Purpose Municipal Corporation 
 

 

By: ______________________________ By: ____________________________________ 

       Steve Kirkelie                  

  

Its:  City Manager    Its:  ______________________________            

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     

175



Partial Release and Termination of Lease - 3 

 

 

By: _______________________________ 

        Joseph N. Beck, City Attorney 
 

 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

) ss: 

COUNTY OF PIERCE ) 

 

 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Steve Kirkelie is the person who appeared 

before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed the instrument, on oath stated that he/she 

was authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it as the City Manager of the City of 

Puyallup, a Washington State municipal corporation, to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the 

uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

 

DATED: ____________, 2022. 

 

 

       

Print Name:  Steve Kirkelie    

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  

Washington, residing at     

My Appointment expires:      

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 (Use this space for notarial stamp/seal) 

 

176



Partial Release and Termination of Lease - 4 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

) ss: 

COUNTY OF __________ ) 

 

 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ________________________is the person 

who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed the instrument, on oath stated 

that he/she was authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it as the 

_____________________of __________________________, a __________________________, to be 

the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

 

DATED: ____________, 2022. 

 

 

       

Print Name:        

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  

Washington, residing at     

My Appointment expires:      

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 (Use this space for notarial stamp/seal) 

 

 

 

177



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Date    November 14, 2022 
Item Title:    Human Resources Division Report 
Attachments:     
Submitted by:   HRD Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
1. Recruitment 

A. New Hires/Promotions 
i. Assistant Chief - Training – 10.17.2022 

 Captain Dale Benning has been promoted to Assistant Chief – Training after 
completing a thorough recruitment process.  Congratulations Chief Benning!   

ii. Captains 

 Lieutenants Josh Farris (10.9.22) and David Verellen (10.15.22) were promoted to 
Captain in October.   

iii. Lieutenants 

 The following individuals have been promoted to Lieutenant (and the current list has 
now been exhausted): 

Sobole, James  
Bryan, Quentin 
Stanley, Evan 
Burke, Ryan 
Stedman, Anthony 
McDowell, Matthew 
Knighton, Ronnie 
Jaurigue, Ricky 

1. Folden, Jordan 
Hall, Corbin   

 
2. Current Recruitments 

A. Academy 23-1.1 (Laterals) 
i. 38 Candidates were invited to Chief’s interviews 

 29 candidates passed  
 9 candidates did not pass 

ii. 27 candidates are currently in the background stage (2 candidates either withdrew or 
failed to meet a deadline)   

 

178



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
 

iii. Academy 23-1.2 (Laterals) 

 71 candidates applied 
 58 candidates met the lateral requirements 

o Candidates are currently scheduling their oral boards which will be the week 
of November 7th  

iv. Academy 23-2 (Entry Level) 

 We will be opening up an entry level recruitment this month that will be used to fill 
positions in the Academy starting in September 

v. Support Specialist - Administration 

 Unfortunately, our previous recruitment did not find us a candidate, so we are 
restarting the search again, currently it’s posted internally.  If no one internally 
applies, we will move to an external recruitment. 

vi. Support Specialist – Training Consortium 

 Chief has been asked to supply an additional Support Specialist to the Training 
Consortium, and we are currently running an internal posting. If no one internally 
applies, we will move to an external recruitment. 

 
B. Upcoming Recruitments/Other Staffing work 

i. Working on completing all of the pre-employment steps for the following positions 

 Deputy Chief Administration 
 C.A.R.E.S. Community Health Worker 

ii. Suppression Lieutenant  
iii. Positions approved in the 2023 budget 

 
3. Other Projects 

A. Job Analysis  
i. We have now completed our 3rd workshop, for Lieutenant.  Later in November, we have the 

Captain workshop and in December the Battalion Chief workshop. 
 

B. Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI) 
ii. Debriefs with each person who completed the assessment are taking place, and we look 

forward to seeing the plan for 2023 once the debriefs have been completed.   
 

C. Unit Clarification Hearing 
iii. On November 16th Finance Director Robacker and myself will be testifying at the Unit 

Clarification Hearing for the Controller position in Finance.  This is the final step in the 
reclassification of the Senior Accountant to Controller plan that was brought forward this past 
spring.   

 
4. Negotiations/Non-Represented Changes 

A. As you will see by the seven items on the November 14th agenda, things have been moving rapidly in 
Human Resources. These items will help us tie up loose ends for 2022 and get us moving proactively 
into 2023. 

B. We are continuing to meet with Local 726 to negotiate the implementation of a number of items agreed 
to with their recently ratified contract. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
N/A 

179



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
Agenda Date: 11/14/2022 
Item Title: Training Division Report 
Attachments:  N/A 
Submitted by AC Benning 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 
 

 
 

 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. Recruit Academy 22-2 

 
A. Recruit Academy 22-2 is progressing well: all recruits have successfully passed EMT 

school and are in the process of taking their National Registry exam. 
 

2. Apparatus Operator Academy 
 
A. The first of several Apparatus Operator (A/O) academies concluded last week adding 

another twenty Pro-Board certified A/Os to our ranks.  The Training Division has 
several more A/O academies scheduled before the end of the second quarter of 
2023. 

 
3. Training Facilities Update 

 
A. We have partnered with the Pierce County Skills Center to build an additional 

ventilation prop at the training center to accommodate the skills instruction of our 
larger academy groups and add additional training resources for our shift firefighters. 

 
4. Training Consortium Involvement  

 
A. Our academy is being reviewed by the Academy Transition Team (ATT) and has 

received very good reviews up to this point. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 
 

180



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 
Agenda Date: 11/14/2022 
Item Title: Field Operations Division Report 
Attachments: N/A 
Submitted by: AC Kent 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
1. 11/3/22 Mobile Home Fire Rescue  

 
A. A 10-Year-Old Male was rescued and saved via a Window-VES.  Field Operations is 

going to take the lead on conducting a formal post-incident review. 
 

2. Staffing Processes 
 

A. The Operations Captain, Brian Caldier, is working with the Staffing BC’s, Tara, our 
Data Analyst, and myself to streamline our Staffing processes. 

 
3. Tech Rescue and Water Rescue Teams  

 
A. The Tech Rescue Captain, Josh Farris, has jumped right in outlining the Training, 

Staffing and Deployment of our Tech Rescue and Water Rescue Teams for 2023.   
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 

181



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 11/14/2022 
Item Title: EMS Division Report 
Attachments: N/A 
Submitted by: AC Bouchard 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:   
 
1. Cardiac Monitor Modems 

 
A. The cardiac monitor modems are on the rigs and operational. 

 
2. IV Pumps 

 
A. The IV pumps are placed on the medic units and operational. 
 

3. 2021 Cardiac Arrests 
 

A. We had 229 non-traumatic cardiac arrests in 2021: 
i. 98 patients achieved return of spontaneous circulation (ROSC) 
ii. 73 patients survived to hospital admission. 
iii. 27 patients were discharged from the hospital   

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 

182



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 11/14/2022 
Item Title:  Operations Division Report 
Attachments:  N/A 
Submitted by DC Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 

1. 2018 Strategic Plan & Nash Training  
 

A. We are closing out the program elements that were planned: we’ve made some 
adjustments based on end user & consultant feedback.  This curriculum will continue 
to be offered in 2023. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
N/A 

183



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: November 14, 2022 
Item Title:  Fire Chief’s Report 
Attachments:  East Pierce Fire & Rescue Letter regarding OVFR Discussions 
Submitted by: Chief Morrow 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
1. REGIONALIZATION / COOPERATION 
 

A. Discussions continue with Orting Valley Fire & Rescue around concepts of 
cooperation that may benefit both Districts. This past week I met with the Fire Chiefs 
from East Pierce, Graham, and Orting Valley to discuss their willingness to explore a 
larger conversation about how we might create a more effective deployment strategy 
between the four organizations. In order for Central Pierce to understand any 
commitment that it can make to Orting Valley, we must understand the position of 
cooperation that we would experience from East Pierce and Graham ahead of time.  

 
B. Chief Parkinson responded with the attached letter affirming his desire to further 

explore cooperative concepts. I expect that we may receive a similar letter from 
Graham in the near future. Orting Valley remains committed to the concepts being 
discussed. 

 
2. DEPUTY CHIEF REPLACEMENT 
 

A. The suitability assessment is underway for Brent VanKeulen. Human Resources is 
conducting the process and all indications are suggesting positive background 
results. Brent also met with a contingent from Local 726 during the week of the 7th. I 
received positive feedback from that interaction as well. Should Brent complete all of 
his pre-employment tasks, he may be at the District by the end of November or early 
December. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

184



185



**E65, M65

186



Mission:  Effect ively respond, cont inuously improve,  compassionately serve  

November 8, 2022 

On behalf of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, I want to commend you on your actions 
while at a structure fire the night of November 3rd, 2022. 

You and your crew arrived to find a well involved structure with reports of a child 
trapped. Your quick actions assisted the firefighters that were searching for and 
ultimately rescuing a child from the structure.  

We train our entire careers for the moment you encountered. The rescue of a trapped 
victim is very rare. Given the volume of fire that night, every second truly counted. Your 
actions helped to ensure a successful outcome. It was a tremendous display of 
teamwork and every member being fully engaged and intentional. I am extremely proud 
to have witnessed such professionalism. 

Sincerely, 

Adam Jackson, Battalion Chief 

cc: Personnel File 
BOC Packet 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 940, Spanaway, WA  98387 

17520 – 22nd Ave. E., Tacoma, WA  98445 
(253) 538-6400   (253) 276-6770  Fax

www.centralpiercefire.org

Erick Cokl
Kendall Cotter
Matt Currie
Brian Ferrier
Joe Gahms
Malac Gilkey
Brent Grabinski
Colin Graybeal
Kyle Yarbrough

Randall Groat
Brian Hackett
Scott Hollstrom
Cory Kuzaro
Cyndi McCormick
Christian Riddell
Matt Santos
Tanner Sayler
Kevin Willadson

187

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/

	1 - 2022-11-14 Board Agenda DRAFT
	5B - 2022-10-24 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	5C - 2022_11_14 Warrant Approval
	6A - BOD 2.05 AIS Second
	6A1 - 3.04 DISTRICT CHANGE FUNDS CLEAN
	6A2 - 3.04 DISTRICT CHANGE FUNDS DRAFT- T$ Edits
	6A3 - Policy 304 District Change Funds OLD
	6B -  BUDGET AIS FINAL
	6B - FINAL BUDGET
	6B - Levy Comparison
	CPFR – Levy Equivalent with FBC�2019-2023
	2023 CPFR Levy Equivalents – �Comparison to Other Jurisdictions (2022)

	6B1 - Res 22-08_ Regular Levy
	6B2 - Res 22-09_EMS Levy
	6B3 - Res 22-10_FBC
	6B4 - Res 22-11 Budget Adoption
	9A - WASHO C&R - AIS-2022 Appendix A  Revision - Health Worker
	9A1 - Attachment Health Worker
	9B - WASHO C&R - AIS-2022 Appendix A  Revision -  Help Desk Supervisor
	9B1 - Attachment Help Desk
	9C - Retroactive Increase to Non-Represented and OPEIU Appendix A's for 2022
	9C1 - 2022 Non-Represented Non-Uniformed Exempt Salary Schedule revised
	9C2 - 2022 Non-Represented Non-Uniformed Non-Exempt Salary Schedule revised
	9C3 - 2022 OPEIU Salary Schedule
	9D - WASHO C&R -AIS- OPEIU 2023-2025 Contract
	9D1 -  Attachment 2023-2025 OP contract redlined
	9E - WASHO - C&R - AIS-RETIREES REQUEST
	9F - WASHO C&R - AIS-ANNIS LEVINGS
	9G - WASHO C&R AIS Revisions to 2023 Non-Represented Wage Increases
	9H - Old 72 AIS
	9H1 - Partial Lease Termination- Old 72
	10A - HR - Div Report
	10B - Training Div Report
	10C - Field Ops Div Report
	10D - EMS Div Report
	10E - OPSEC Div Report
	10F - Fire Chief Div Report
	10F1 - EPFR Response Letter to OVFR Discussions
	12A- Corres 65
	12B - Nov 3rd Fire



